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Corporate Information
REEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. DONG Li (Chairman)
Ms. YIN Haiyan (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan

Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Dr. NAN Xinsheng (resigned on 1 January 2022)
Mr. LU Zhigiang (appointed on 21 March 2022)

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan (Chairman)

Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Dr. NAN Xinsheng (resigned on 1 January 2022)
Mr. LU Zhigiang (appointed on 21 March 2022)
Remuneration Committee

Mr. LAU Chi Kit (Chairman)

Dr. DONG Li

Mr. CAQO Yixiong Alan

Nomination Committee

Dr. DONG Li (Chairman)

Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Dr. NAN Xinsheng (resigned on 1 January 2022)
Mr. LU Zhigiang (appointed on 21 March 2022)

Company Secretary

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung, Albert
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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL
SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Bank of China

China CITIC Bank International Limited
Rural Commercial Bank

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
CTBC Bank Co., Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation
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Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to
announce the following financial highlights:

Financial Highlights
MFBHEE

BrEEEMARAR ((F28) RENEBAT
(et L) MASH T BREE

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020 Change
“E-F "TETH =10
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETFTT
Revenue Wz 11,303,125 9,631,362 +17.4%
Gross profit EH 1,509,706 1,188,279 +27.0%
Profit for the year AR T 166,729 137,964 +20.8%
Profit attributable to owners of ISYNCIE PN 30
the parent bl 136,126 123,732 +10.0%
Basic earnings per share, BRELEFN
in RMB (NR¥T) 0.10 0.09
Profit attributable to
Revenue Gross profit Profit for the year owners of the parent
Wegs EZl REE BRATER AELET
AR AR ARRR AR
12,000,000 11,303,125 1,600,000 1,509,706 200,000 150,000
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6,000,000 800,000 100,000
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Financial Highlights BA1 75§ &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB136.1 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.10 (2020: RMBO0.09),
the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,357,821,402 (2020: 1,357,594,679) in issue during the
year.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company does
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). The Company had not
declared and paid any interim dividend or special dividend
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 25 May 2022 to Monday, 30 May 2022 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to attend the annual general meeting (the
“AGM”), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
24 May 2022.

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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WORDS FROM THE CHAIRMAN

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Leoch
International Technology Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), | hereby present
the Group’s audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2021 (the “Period”) for shareholders’ review.

2021 Review

While the China economic growth slowed down during the
last quarter of 2021 due to multiple COVID outbreaks, power
shortages, and a regulatory crackdown in certain sectors,
the overall economic recovery was stable resulting in a full-
year GDP growth of 8.1 percent in 2021. The country’s
total GDP in 2021 reached RMB114.37 trillion (USD18
trillion), according to data released by the National Bureau
of Statistics. Economic data showed that China’s economy
was mainly driven by strong industrial output and exports.
In 2021, the two-year average growth of industrial output
exceeded the pre-COVID-19 level in 2019 and the year-on-
year growth rate of exports in dollar terms hit the highest
level since 2011. However, the two-year average growth of
services, consumption, and investment all failed to return
back to the pre-pandemic trajectory, which dragged down
the wider economic performance.

With 85% production capacity located in China, our Group’s
manufacturing plants were running smoothly and efficiently
to support the rapid increasing demand from our overseas
customers when local demand in the PRC was slowing down
after a big rebound in 2020.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement T E#RE

The global economy staged a strong recovery in 2021 after
a deep contraction in 2020. This was aided by robust fiscal
stimulus measures, dovish monetary policy and a nearly
50% full vaccination rate. In contrast to that in advanced
economies, output in emerging market and developing
economies (EMDEs) remained substantially below the
pre-pandemic trend due to Omicron outbreaks. Supply
chain disruption causing more reliance on China’s export
resulted in surging exporting ODM business and the Group
experienced solid recovery of overseas 5G battery business
as well. Accordingly, our business in the EMEA and Americas
regions enjoyed more than 36% and 50% year-to-year
growth rate respectively during the Period except for Asia-
pacific (other than PRC) where most of the EMDEs were
still struggling. Nevertheless, all three categories of battery
business continue enjoyed growth in various degrees.

During the Period, the Group continued pulling in resources
and working on new models of lead-acid and lithium-ion
batteries. Production volume of the Group was stable in the
PRC but there was small interruption during the lockdown
period in Vietnam. However, our overseas business was not
affected due to the strong support by our PRC factories.
Resources for production capacity will be more concentrated
in the PRC in the near future.

PROSPECT & CHALLENGES

The global outlook is clouded by various downside risks,
including renewed COVID-19 outbreaks due to Omicron or
new virus variants, the possibility of de-anchored inflation
expectations, and financial stress in a context of record-high
debt levels as well as the war in Ukraine with unpredictable
chain effect politically and economically. Although recovery
is set to continue into 2022, geopolitical tensions, high
inflationary pressures, supply-chain disruptions, and a
projected tightening of global financial conditions stand to
undermine global GDP growth in 2022. The Group prudently
believes that our overseas business will be sustained and
the growth momentum can continue. We will pay extra
attention to the changing business environment and revise
our strategies as and when situation calls for.

8 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2021
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An economist at Peking University believes China has three
favorable conditions to prop up growth in 2022 — China has
a full-blown digital economy; its central government wields
a powerful fiscal tool and holds effective international policy,
such as the Belt and Road Initiative which stood to test
during 2021. China’s economic outlook for 2022 is predicted
to be relatively bright with GDP growth forecast at over 5
percent — higher than the global average. However, sustained
pressure from COVID-19 outbreaks and supply chain
bottlenecks will continue to have an impact. To counter the
economic pressures, China will place particular importance
on economic stability and recovery, adopting fiscal and
monetary policies to spur growth in strategic portions of
the economy. China is also expected to continue its ‘zero-
COVID’ strategy in 2022, with quarantine-free travel to the
country unlikely. Despite the relative economic slowdown and
closed borders, international trade is reaching record highs,
and foreign companies maintain an optimistic outlook.

2022 marks the second year of the country’s 14th Five-
Year Plan (2021-25). As mentioned in last year, China’s
economy might witness major improvements in the next five
years, as reforms for sustainable development are underway
based on the outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan and the
long-range objectives through 2035. China is developing
strategic technologies and digital infrastructure (including
a cryptocurrency) and policies will be implemented to
accelerate 5G, big data, and artificial intelligence integration
in advanced manufacturing clusters within various industries
from which reserve power battery manufacturer will be
benefited. The Group will continue allocating resources in
relevant technology and products development that can
secure our continuous growth and seize any opportunity
arising from this fast-evolving and important market.

The Group believes that with supportive global initiatives to
eliminate carbon emissions and promote renewable sources,
demand for different kinds of battery in near future will
push up. The decreasing cost of solar PV equipment and
increasing utilization of off-grid solar projects provide great
opportunities for battery market.

Chairman’s Statement T E#R
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Chairman’s Statement T E#RE

COMMITMENT &
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our aim is to provide customers with products of competitive
prices, reliable quality, timely delivery and comprehensive
services. Efforts have been recognised and reflected in our
sales growth over the last decade. As usual and consistent
with before, we will continue to promote our corporate
image, and to increase our customer’s satisfactory level to
further enhance and solidify our world-class status.

In the coming years, we will continue to focus on and
invest in relevant technology and products while increasing
production capacity and flexibility to cater for the ever—
changing and upgrading of client’s demand from time to
time.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank our
shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners
for their long-term support and trust. | also wish to express
my deep appreciation to our management team and our staff
members for their diligent work, and members of the Board
of Directors for their significant contributions. We will continue
to work diligently with dedicated efforts in the international
battery platform; in heydays as in challenging moments.

10 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Period”),
the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB11,303.1 million,
representing an increase of 17.4% from RMB9,631.4 million
for the corresponding period in 2020.

During the Period, revenue from batteries (and related items)
business amounted to RMB9,249.2 million, representing
an increase of 11.1% from RMB8,324.2 million for the
corresponding period in 2020. The increase in revenue from
batteries was mainly contributed by the 27.3% growth rate
in the overseas market while the growth in revenue of the
PRC market was 0.4%. The volume delivered in terms of
ton was around 4.3% higher than the corresponding period
last year and mainly contributed by the overseas business.
This reflected that the per ton selling price had increased
during the Period due to higher material cost and soaring
logistic cost in 2021. Revenue from recycled lead business
amounted to RMB2,053.9 million, representing an increase
of approximately 57.1% from RMB1,307.1 million for the
corresponding period in 2020.

Compared to 2020, export from the PRC was booming
having benefited from continuing increase in overseas
demand at the time when global production capacity
was struggling during the COVID pandemic. By contrast,
the growth in the PRC market slowed down after high
rebounding rate in 2019. The effect of stringent pandemic
control and unclear market outlook resulted in more prudent
business behaviors. As a result, the Group’s export sales
raised while growth in the PRC domestic market was
flat. Nevertheless, all three categories of battery business
continued enjoying growth in various degree.
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Management Discussion and Analysis EIE

Reserve power batteries

The Group’s sales of reserve power batteries during the
Period amounted to RMB4,758.9 million (2020: RMB4,187.1
million), representing an increase of 13.7% as compared
to the same period of last year. This accounted for
approximately 51.5% of the total revenue from batteries sales
for the Period as compared to 50.3% in 2020. The increment
in sales revenue of reserve power batteries amounted to
RMB571.8 million (2020: RMB274.0 million increment) during
the Period.

Benefiting from the recovery of our brand in overseas 5G
business and the strong ODM export, the high growth rate
overcame the sluggish performance in the PRC market,
allowing the Group’s reserve power battery business to grow.
Although the PRC reserve power battery business did not
make any growth contribution in 2021, the huge resources
the Group deployed in the PRC on marketing and research
and development for new 5G product including lithium-ion
battery will definitely be able to capture opportunities from the
rising 5G life cycle in 2022 and onward.

SLI batteries

Sales of SLI batteries for the Group during the Period
amounted to RMB3,006.0 million (2020: RMB2,883.1
million), representing an increase of 4.3% as compared to
the same period last year. This accounted for approximately
32.5% of the total revenue for the Period from batteries
sales as compared to 34.6% in 2020. The increment in sales
revenue of SLI batteries amounted to RMB122.9 million
(2020: RMB412.6 million increment) during the Period.

12 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 18 Rk 21

Similar to the demand for the Group’s Reserve Power
Batteries, export of the Group’s SLI batteries outperformed
the Group’s PRC domestic SLI business in 2021. In order to
enlarge our market share in the PRC market, more resources
shall be deployed to capture the opportunity in the era of
autonomous driving of smart cars. Being one of the major
suppliers of domestic new energy automobile lead-acid
batteries, the Group has confidence to further extend our
customer bases and improve our ranking and status in the
future.

Motive power batteries

During the Period, motive power batteries business (which
includes but not limited to applications in electric vehicles,
electric forklifts and other battery-driven products) of the
Group recorded sales revenue of RMB1,223.1 million (2020:
RMB1,114.6 million), representing an increase of 9.7% as
compared to last year. This accounted for approximately
13.2% of the total revenue from batteries sales for the Period
as compared to 13.4% in 2020. The increment in sales
revenue of motive power batteries amounted to RMB108.5
million (2020: RMB280.7 million increment) during the Period.

After accomplished a high growth rate in the PRC during
2020, the enlarged base created a bottle neck in sustaining
high growth. Supplemented by enlarged export in 2020,
the Group managed to maintain growth. The Group will
continue deploying enough resources in the development of
various battery including lithium models aiming at enlarging
applications and market share.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 51 :a Rk 21

Recycled lead

Revenue from the sales of recycled lead products amounted
to RMB2,053.9 million (2020: RMB1,307.1 million) during
the Period, representing an increase of 57.1% as compared
to last year. After resumption of full operation in May 2020,
production capacity was fully occupied in 2021. Sales to
thirds parties reflected the current potential that the plant can
contribute to the Group’s revenue.

Sales network

The Group maintained to distribute its products to more
than 100 countries and regions across the World and has
established regional sales offices in Beijing, Shenzhen,
Zhaoqging, Nanjing, Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia,
Australia and other ASEAN countries, India, Sri Lanka,
USA and the EU, and United Kingdom. Together with the
domestic sales centers in the PRC, the Group has more
than 80 sales offices and centers around the world. As at 31
December 2021, the Group has over 700 dedicated sales
and marketing and related supporting employees.

Research and development (‘R&D’)

During the Period, the Group continued working on new
models of lead-acid and lithium-ion batteries and rolling out
new products tailor-made for applications in each of the
network power and motive market segments. New models
of battery catering for the era of autonomous driving of
smart cars were among these R&D projects. The Group
worked closely with international and domestic battery
experts and research institutions to perform research on
new technologies and develop new products. Resource
was pulled in and will continue on boosting model yield
and increasing overall running efficiency in view of achieving
higher cost competitiveness. As at 31 December 2021, our
battery R&D team of the Group consists of more than 350
researchers and related development & sampling technicians.
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Production Base

Vietnam was largely successful in containing new coronavirus
infections until spring 2021, when the Delta variant started
to spread. The introduction of factory quarantine significantly
affected our Vietnam factories’ labor supply since large
number of workers resigned resulting labor force reduced
to less than 20% and affected our normal production in the
first half of 2021. Production was gradually ramped up when
more workers returned in the third quarter of 2021 after the
spread was under control and government tried to strike a
balance between fighting the pandemic and battling to get
its economy back on track. Eventually, our Vietnam factories,
which accounted for 8% of the Group’s total production
capacity in 2021, overall annual average utilization ratio
maintained at low 70% level. With 85% of our production
capacity based in China, our overseas business was not
affected due to the strong support by our PRC factories in
2021.

Although there was no aggressive expansion in production
capacity for lead-acid batteries in 2021, we are gradually
expanding lithium-ion batteries production capacity
according to our strategic plan. We believe our preparation
will start to provide fruitful return starting 2022. Resources for
production capacity will be mostly concentrated in the PRC
in the near future.

As mentioned earlier under the paragraph “Recycled Lead”,
recycling plant production capacity was fully utilized under
the allowed production capacity of 200,000 tons in 2021.
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Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major part of the product cost for the
Group’s battery production. According to Shanghai Metals
Market (“SMM”), the monthly average lead price per ton
fluctuated within the range of RMB14,651 to RMB15,591
during the Period, representing a change within the range of-
0.4% to 6.0% as compared with SMM monthly average of
RMB14,710 per ton in December 2020.

The monthly average SMM lead price per ton from January
to June 2021 was RMB15,117, increased by 2.8% as
compared with SMM monthly average in December 2020,
reflected increasing demand for domestic and export battery
products in the PRC. The monthly average SMM lead price
per ton from July to December 2021 was RMB15,224,
increased by 3.5% as compared with SMM monthly average
in December 2020, reflected that the pace of increasing
demand has slowed down due to various reasons including
traffic jam in global logistic jam overseas and temporary
electricity supply shortage during the last quarter of 2021 in
China.

To cope with the potential pricing risk associated with the
fluctuation in future lead price, the Group has adopted
a price-linked pricing mechanism to minimise lead price
fluctuation exposure. In addition, the Group’s centralised
procurement of raw materials enables it to trim down costs
of raw materials through favorable negotiations on bulk
purchase contracts.
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Future Prospects

According to the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s
gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 8.1% in 2021, the
largest jump since 2011. On the other hand, the rebound in
global activity, together with supply disruptions and higher
food and energy prices have pushed up inflation across
many countries. China’s effective outbreak prevention and
control work enabled it to maintain the stable operation of
industrial chains attributing China’s strong export growth to
efficient factory output. The global dependence on Chinese
production continued to increase and the trend is expected
to continue in 2022. However, a lower GDP target 5.5% set
by China government, a thirty-year low, implies a weaker
economy expectation reflecting more unstable factors in
2022.

The continuing disruption caused by COVID-19, as well as
supply bottlenecks contribute to the expectation that global
growth will decelerate markedly in 2022, from 5.5% to
4.1%, according to the World Bank. Output and investment
in advanced economies are projected to return to pre-
pandemic trends in 2022 but remain below in emerging
markets and developing economies. This prediction was
arrived before the war in Ukraine broke out. According to
an assessment by United Nation Conference on Trade and
Development (UNCTAD), rising food, fuel and fertilizer prices
rapidly worsening outlook for the world economy.

Compared to the economic outlook of the rest of the world,
China is still in a relatively strong position. Its success
in containing the COVID-19 pandemic and stimulating
productivity has allowed a relatively normal pace of work and
life in the country, and its forecast GDP growth for 2022 is
expected to exceed the world average. The Group believes
that opportunities and challenges are intertwined in 2022 but
opportunities are dominant especially in China. We will pay
extra attention to the changing macro and micro situations
and revise our strategies as and when situation calls for.
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5G & Reserve Power Products

In 2022, most important China’s growth engines come from
infrastructure. The government report emphasize that part
of infrastructure projects will be used on “new infra”, which
covers digitalization of factory operations, full 5G coverage
of the economy. In 2021, China has more than 1.42 million
5G base stations and government has set a goal to build
more than 600,000 in 2022, an increase by 42%. China will
ramp up 5G coverage for business areas, industrial parks,
high-speed trains, transport hubs, shopping centers, and
other crowded spaces. The country will heavily promote
the innovative development of 5G applications and further
advance the demonstration of ‘5G + industrial internet’
scenarios besides ‘5G + medical health’ and ‘5G + smart
education’. With all these development in plan, China will
work to ensure the number of 5G base stations tops 2
million.

To achieve the goal in stepping up industrial digitalization,
data centers development is pivoted to be a national priority
in 2022. Local governments in China are doubling down on
plans to accelerate 5G rollout and more than 20 provincial
and municipal governments has emphasized that great effort
will be put in construction of “new infrastructure” like 5G and
data centers in their 2022 work plans. City like Shanghai has
push forward the in-depth coverage of the superfast wireless
network and has ambitions to build super large computing
power platforms to meet growing demand.

The Ministry of Industry and Information Technology revealed
that 2022 is a critical year for the large-scale development
of 5G applications. Improving 5G network coverage,
accelerating the in-depth integration of 5G and vertical
industries and moderately speed up the coverage of 5G
in counties and rural towns are the goals. Ten ministries,
including the Cyberspace Administration of China, recently
unveiled a digital rural development action plan for the period
from 2022 to 2025, which called for an intensified push to
promote digital infrastructure upgrades in rural areas.
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As mentioned last year, the global market demand for
lithium batteries used for communication base stations is
estimated to reach 22.8GWh in 2020. The 5G construction
will rapidly push up the demand for lithium batteries using
in base stations from 2021 to 2025. It is estimated that the
number of communication towers will increase to 13 million
by 2025, the global market demand for lithium batteries for
communication will reach 60GWh, and the market size will
exceed RMBG60 billion. We expect the demand for lithium iron
phosphate batteries used in communications will continue to
expand and the Group’s lithium-ion battery plant will provide
ground to capture new opportunity in this area.

Since 2020, the “fast forward button” for the new 5G
infrastructure development has been pressed. To get
prepared for this opportunity, the Group will continue pulling
resources in the development of 5G lead-acid and lithium
batteries for various applications. Our aggressive sales teams
are working hard on expanding our market share in the PRC.

SL/ batteries

In spite of industry-wide chip supply shortage and increasing
price of raw material, China’s new automobile production
and sales managed to grow in 2021, ending three years of
consecutive decrease, according to the China Association of
Automobile Manufacturers (CAAM). In 2021, China produced
26.082 million vehicles, up by 3.4% year over year while the
market sold 26.275 million vehicles, up by 3.8% from a year
ago. For 2022, the association expects vehicle outputs and
sales in the world’s largest automobile market will be better
than 2021. All of that said, then, the outlook for 2022 is —
broadly speaking — one of continued industry recovery, at
least in terms of underlying demand.
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Car sales in China in 2022 will see positive growth compared
with 2021 as the global chip shortages will be solved. Chip
shortages have cut vehicle production by over 1 million in
China and over 11 million worldwide in 2021, according to
statistics from AutoForecast Solutions. New energy vehicle
segment (NEV), including battery electric vehicles, plug-
in hybrid electric vehicles and fuel cell vehicles, will be the
biggest bright spot in 2022. Besides traditional fossil fuel
vehicles, our Group is one of the major suppliers of domestic
new energy automobile brands such as BYD, Geely Auto,
Nio, GWM, BAIO BJEV, Xpeng, ONE, Weltmeister etc. An
auxiliary lead-acid battery is required in high-speed electric
vehicles for low-voltage power supply. The Group will put
enough resource to secure and expand our market share in
China.

The auto industry is used to being demand-led, but supply-
side issues will continue to shape the global market in 2022.
Pressures from energy costs and inflationary sources are
rising and will hit businesses and households in the first
half. This could bring a slowing in demand even before chip
supply is realigned. On the flip side, fiscal stimulus is stil
abundant in many economies and personal mobility needs
are high. The Group has a very solid position in the PRC SLI
battery market and export OEM market. Our professional and
dedicated sales and marketing staff around the globe with
support of our PRC R&D team will continue to extend our
market share globally.
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Motive power batteries

In China, low-speed electric vehicles have shown a rapid
development pattern along with the country’s economic
and social development. Leading manufacturers have all
put forward multiplier growing plan which will drive the
continuous development of the power battery industry. At
present, the domestic market for low-speed electric vehicles,
two-wheelers, and tricycles has reached more than 300
million units and the corresponding power battery market
has reached more than RMB70 billion. It is expected that the
market size will enjoy healthy growth rate in coming years.

The Group’s motive power battery business unit always
quickly responds and adapts to market changes. Compound
average growth rate in the last two year was around 18%
even under unstable economic environment around the
world. We believe our high-end batteries and differentiated
management strategy is the driving force to continuous
future growth. The Group actively deploys lithium motive
power battery projects and successively launched a number
of models to the market. In 2021,
deepening the franchise store model, optimizing the quality
and quantity of agents, improving product turnover efficiency
and sales scale of these sales channels and have paved a
solid foundation for continuous growth.
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International Market

The Group accelerated its growth overseas in 2021. In
the Middle East and Africa market, capitalizing on the fast
rebound of European economies and the fast development
of its li-ion business, our Group’s lithium products continue
to gain market share with major Telcos and Tower operators
in the region, especially in Africa and are also getting traction
in the solar and hybrid generators markets. During the
Period, the Group has consolidated its presence in Europe
by establishing distribution in Spain through the acquisition
of Meibat SA, a Spanish distributor. The Group can now
offer value added logistics services to its clients in the main
European markets of Germany, France, UK, ltaly and Spain
and has won new pan European leading OE customers in the
UPS segment. With the devoting and concentration of our
European team, the Group has confidence that the growth
moment will continue in 2022.

Turning to APAC, although overall performance in 2021
was not well due to lockdown linked to the COVID-19
pandemic, Our Group continued to diversify its business
with strong growth in India and UPS OE segment. With
sustained availability of production in spite of tough
operational challenges, our Group offered excellent service
to its customers and gained significant market share in the
regional UPS OE business. While telecom and infrastructure
business in ASEAN suffered from further delays in customer
investment and projects execution during this phase, the
Group continued to diversify its business with new customers
and launching successfully new products in Motive Power
and Automotive segments. We believe the region recession
has bottomed out and growth momentum will prevail in
2022.
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The America market accomplished over 50% growth rate
in 2021 contributed by the continued disruption in global
production caused by COVID-19 except China. Buyers turn
to stable source of supply in China boosted the demand
even though delivery time will be significantly widened cause
by the global sea freight jam. There was slightly improvement
in the logistic traffic jam but recovery will take months or
more than a year. The Group expected demand for PRC
products will be strong in the first half of 2022 but will be
gradually back to normal in the second half of 2022 if global
production capacity continues improve.

The global economic outlook is exceptionally uncertain and
global growth already expected to be weaker than it would
have been after the war in Ukraine broke out. Inflation will be
higher and the strength of the recovery is moderate in many
countries. The Group will closely monitor the recovering pace
and remain prudent in managing our overseas resources.

Recycled Lead

Our recycling plant was running close to its maximum
allowed occupying ratio and released its potential benefit to
the Group in 2021. Our dedicated scrap battery recycling
department, which will utilize our existing sales network
capability to collect old batteries, has started making
contribution to constant supply of scrap lead-acid batteries
to the recycling plant. The Group will continue strengthening
this closed-loop business model and highly confident that the
output volume in 2022 will be sustained.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB11,303.1 million, representing an increase of 17.4%
from RMB9,631.4 million for the corresponding period in
2020. The profit for the Period amounted to RMB166.7
million as compared to RMB138.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, of which the profit attributable
to the owners of the parent amounted to RMB136.1 million
as compared to RMB123.7 million for the corresponding
period in 2020. Basic earnings per share for the Period was
RMBO0.10 (2020: RMBO0.09).

Revenue

The Group’s revenue from battery business increased by
11.1% from RMB8,324.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to RMB9,249.2 million for the Period.

The Group’s revenue from recycled lead products increased
by 57.1% from RMB1,307.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to RMB2,053.9 million for the Period, due to
the resumption of full operation in late May of 2020.
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Details of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31

UTFAAEERBE_ S _—FR_EEF

December 2021 and 2020 by product category are set out +_HB=+—HIEEERERBELE HHUEEE
below: 4n -
2021 2020
—EC-F —ETEE
Percentage  Percentage Percentage
Revenue share Increase Revenue share
FRid 7l
Product category EmEl Y zs Bt BRE Wz Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Reserve power batteries BAE 4,758,929 42.1% 13.7% 4,187,085 43.5%
SLI batteries HEENES 3,005,998 26.6% 4.3% 2,883,146 29.9%
Motive power batteries B HES 1,223,082 10.8% 9.7% 1,114,583 11.6%
Others HAith 261,210 2.3% 87.4% 139,399 1.4%
Sub-total INET 9,249,219 81.8% 11.1% 8,324,213 86.4%
Recycled lead products [B] e 38 EE 2,053,906 18.2% 57.1% 1,307,149 13.6%
Total A&t 11,303,125 100% 17.4% 9,631,362 100%

Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally located
in the PRC, Europe, Middle East and Africa (‘EMEA”),
Americas and Asia-Pacific (other than PRC). The Group
recorded different degrees of growth in the PRC, EMEA
and Americas while sales in Asia-Pacific (other than PRC)
decreased.

The Group’s sales revenue in the PRC increased by 12.2%
from RMB6,326.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to RMB7,094.7 million for the Period, representing
62.8% of the Group’s total revenue (2020: 65.7%). The
increase was mainly due to the increased production output
from recycled lead products.
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The following revenue information is based on the customer
location for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Estsm R o th

UTFTRBETE-_—FRZTEZEF+ZH
=+ BIEFEERERMEMEE SN NGE
Wl

2021 2020
—E--F ZEIZF
Percentage
Percentage increase/ Percentage
Revenue share (decrease) Revenue share
FR{d FTid
Product category EmiER Wz B R Wz B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
PRC F 7,094,708 62.8% 12.2% 6,325,994 65.7%
EMEA EMEA 1,893,018 16.7% 36.2% 1,390,185 14.4%
Americas EM 1,534,927 13.6% 50.2% 1,022,021 10.6%
Asia-Pacific DKM E
(other than PRC) (MefERE) 780,472 6.9% (12.6%) 893,162 9.3%
Total At 11,303,125 100% 17.4% 9,631,362 100%
Cost of Sales i & s

The Group’s cost of sales increased by 16.0% from
RMB8,443.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to RMB9,793.4 million for the Period, mainly because of the
increased sales volume from both recycled lead products and
battery business.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit increased by 27.0% from
RMB1,188.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to RMB1,509.7 million for the Period, mainly due to the
strong demand from overseas markets and the resumption
of full operation from recycled lead products. The gross profit
margin increased for both battery business and recycled
lead products, resulting in the increase of overall gross profit
margin from 12.3% for the year ended 31 December 2020
to 13.4% for the Period. The increase for battery business
was mainly due to less operational disruption in the PRC for
the Period while the increase for recycled lead products was
primarily a result of resumption of full operation in late May of
2020.
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by 22.3% from
RMB108.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB84.2 million for the Period, mainly due to decrease in
government grants during the Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution costs increased by
21.8% from RMB481.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to RMB586.1 million for the Period. The
increase was mainly caused by increase in delivery costs
and sales commission. The increase in freight charges was
partly due to the increase in sales and partly due to the
freight charge rate hike at overseas markets because of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The increase in sales commission was
in line with the increase in sales.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 15.0%
from RMB266.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to RMB306.2 million for the Period. The increase was
mainly due to the shutdown of factories in February of 2020
in the PRC because of the COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in
less administrative expenses in 2020.

R&D Expenses

R&D expenditure of the Group increased by 38.6% from
RMB172.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB239.4 million for the Period. The increase in expenditure
was mainly used for performance enhancement of existing
products and development of new products in all categories
during the Period.
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Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased by 186.0% from
RMB35.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB102.6 million for the Period, which was mainly due to
the fair value loss from financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss during the Period.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by 9.0% from
RMB158.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB143.9 million for the Period as the average amount of
borrowings during the Period was less than last year.

Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded profit
before tax of RMB192.0 million for the Period as compared
to RMB161.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 6.5% from RMB23.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB25.2
million for the Period, mainly because assessable profits from
the lead-acid battery business increased while profit from
the recycled lead products was not subject to tax during the
Period.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded net
profit of RMB166.7 million (2020: RMB138.0 million) and
profit attributable to the owners of the parent of RMB136.1
million (2020: RMB123.7 million) for the Period.
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Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
assets of RMB541.8 million (2020: RMB596.4 million).
The Group’s current assets mainly consist of inventories,
trade receivables, debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, cash and bank balances,
prepayments, other receivables and other assets. The
Group’s current liabilities mainly consist of trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components
of the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group had inventories of RMB2,019.3 million (2020:
RMB1,776.9 million). Inventories remained stable in recycled
lead products while inventories for battery business increased
during the Period. The increase in battery business was a
result of strong demand from overseas markets.

Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables primarily relate to receivables
for goods sold to its customers and mainly comprised
customers from the battery business. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had trade receivables of RMB2,725.7 million
(2020: RMB2,419.7 million). The increase in trade receivables
was in line with the increase in sales during the Period.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other
Assets

The Group’s prepayments mostly relate to the purchase
of raw materials. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had prepayments, other receivables and other assets of
RMB223.5 million (2020: RMB276.1 million), decreasing by
19.1%. The decrease was mainly because more raw material
suppliers were asked to be paid on delivery other than
prepayment.
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Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its
purchase of raw materials for production. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had trade and bills payables of RMB2,319.3
million (2020: RMB2,139.4 million). The increase in trade and
bills payables was mainly due to increase in bills payables for
short term financing. Such bills were issued on intercompany
sales transactions within the Group and discounted to banks
for short term financing.

Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consisted
of provision for social insurance and retirement benefits,
payments for its expenditures related to construction and
renovation of its production facilities, payments in connection
with transportation charges, contract liabilities, tax payables
other than current income tax liabilities and accruals for
payroll and benefits for its employees. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had other payables and accruals of
RMB1,077.3 million (2020: RMB984.0 million). The slight
increase was mainly due to increase in loan from non-
controlling shareholders.

Capital Expenditures
During the Period, the Group invested RMB282.6 million

(2020: RMB520.0 million) in property, plant and equipment
for its new production facilities.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB541.8 million (2020: RMB596.4 million),
among which cash and bank deposits amounted to
RMB951.7 million (2020: RMB848.5 million). As at 31
December 2021, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB2,372.2 million (2020: RMB2,303.3 million), all of which
are interest-bearing. Except for borrowings of RMB329.7
million (2020: RMB542.4 million) which have a maturity over
one year, all of the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable
within one year. The Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB, US dollars, HK dollars, Singapore dollars, Malaysian
ringgits and Vietnamese Dong, and the effective interest rates
of which as of 31 December 2021 were 1.80% to 7.09%
(2020: 1.00% to 7.90%).

A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings was secured by
pledges over certain assets of the Group including property,
plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits, inventory,
trade receivables and equity interests in its subsidiaries.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was
24.7% (2020: 25.4%), which was calculated by dividing total
borrowings by total assets as at the end of each respective
period, multiplied by 100%.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operated primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities were
transacted in RMB. For other companies outside of
the PRC, their principal activities were transacted in US
dollars. However, as a result of the Group’s revenue being
denominated in RMB, the conversion into foreign currencies
in connection with payments is subject to regulatory
restrictions on currency conversion in the PRC. The value
of the RMB against the US dollars and other currencies
may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things,
change in the political and economic conditions in the PRC.
The Group’s product sales adopted a price mechanism
by which the currency fluctuation is basically transferred
to the customers, but the Group’s foreign currency trade
receivables may still be exposed to risk in the credit period.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiary,
associated company or joint venture by the Group during the
Period.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant

investment with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total
assets.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 13,746
employees. Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration), which comprised wages and salaries,
performance-related bonuses, equity-settled share option
expenses and retirement benefit scheme contributions,
totaled RMB1,020.2 million for the Period (2020: RMB849.2

million).

The Group has a share option scheme for selected
participants as incentive and reward for their contribution to
the Group. A mandatory provident fund scheme and local
retirement benefit schemes are also in effect. The Group
encourages employees to receive continuing education
and training to strengthen their work skills and for personal
development. The Group also provides workshops for
staff at different levels to enhance their knowledge of work
safety and to build up team spirit. Staff are rewarded based
on performance of the Group as well as on individual
performance and contribution.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. DONG Li (%), aged 55, is an executive director,
chairman of the Board and nomination committee, a member
of the remuneration committee and founder of the Company.
Dr. DONG has been appointed as executive director since
27 April 2010, the date of the incorporation of our Company.
Dr. DONG is a controlling shareholder of the Company. He is
also one of the authorised representatives of the Company
and serving as director for various subsidiaries of the Group.
Dr. DONG also serves as director for various private wholly
owned companies which include investment holding and
manufacturing enterprise.

Dr. DONG obtained a Doctor of Science from Shanghai
University in 2021 and an EMBA degree from National
University of Singapore in 2015. Dr. DONG graduated from
Xi'an International Studies College, the predecessor of Xi’an
International Studies University, in 1990 with a Bachelor of
Arts degree and Northwest Textile University of Science and
Technology, the predecessor of Xi'an Polytechnic University,
in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering.

Dr. DONG also holds the positions of part-time professor
of Shanghai University and visiting professor of the Xi'an
Polytechnic University.

Dr. DONG personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2021.
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Ms. YIN Haiyan, aged 46, is an executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Ms. YIN has been
appointed as executive director since 30 July 2018.

Ms. YIN graduated from JiangSu University of Science and
Technology with a degree in Accounting.

Ms. YIN joined the Group in 2004 as manager of the finance
department. She was subsequently promoted to deputy
general manager of administration department, general
manager, vice president of finance department, president,
and finally to her current position, in which her responsibilities
focus on strategic planning and policy development and
make recommendations for the Board’s consideration, and
leading the management in the day-to-day running of the
Group’s business in accordance with the business plans and
within the budgets approved by the Board.

Ms. YIN personally held 2,650,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2021.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan (E75#), aged 53, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of the audit committee and a member of
remuneration committee of the Company since 14 October
2010.

Mr. CAO holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Accounting from
Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from the
Anderson School of the University of California, Los Angeles.
He worked at the auditing department of Coopers &
Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the Executive Director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Founding Partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. Cao is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Chongqging Tongli
Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.

Mr. CAO personally held 800,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2021.
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Mr. LAU Chi Kit (2% %), aged 77, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the remuneration committee, a member of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since 17 September 2014.

Mr. LAU retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (‘HSBC”) in December 2000 after more
than 35 years’ of service. Among the senior positions in
HSBC, he was the Assistant General Manager and Head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“Institute”). He was the chairman of the Institute’s
Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December
2000) and is currently an Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s
Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administration Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001),
the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development
in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May
2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation
Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the
Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects
Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004)
and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). He also served as
Chairman of the Business Environment Council Ltd. (from
September 1998 to December 2001).

Currently, Mr. LAU is also an executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997) and is an
independent non executive director of Royale Home Holdings
Ltd. (stock code: 1198) and Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co Ltd (stock code: 6893). The shares of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited, Royale Home Holdings Ltd.
and Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co Ltd are listed
on the Main Board.
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Mr. LAU resigned as an independent non-executive director
from Janco Holdings Limited (stock code: 8035) with effect
from 13 September 2019 and retired as an independent non-
executive director from Century Sunshine Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 509) with effect from on 30 June 2021.

Mr. LAU personally held 800,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2021.

Mr. LU Zhigiang (E&35%), aged 47, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, a member of the
nomination committee and a member of the audit committee
of the Company since 21 March 2022.

Mr. LU was Asia Fellow in Harvard University from August
2018 to July 2020. Mr. LU holds a Master Degree of
Business Administration from Central State University of
the United States of America in 2001, a Bachelor Degree
of Engineering and a Bachelor Degree of Industry from
Nanchang Hangkong University of The People’s Republic
of China in 1996 and 1997 respectively. Mr. LU attended
the program of a Master of Science Degree in International
Purchasing & Supply Chain Management organised by
Audencia NANTES.Ecole de Management in 2002.

Mr. LU is currently an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Hong Kong Life Sciences and
Technologies Group Limited whose issued shares were listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 8085
but were delisted on 14 September 2020. He served as
an executive director of Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited whose issued shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange under stock code: 858 from 27 January
2017 to 26 January 2020.

Mr. LU personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2021.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, aged 57, joined the
Company as chief financial officer and company secretary in
1 November 2015.

Mr. Chow has over 33 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, tax, information system, corporate finance and
management. Prior to joining the Company, he had held
various senior positions with public companies listed in Hong
Kong which mostly are manufacturing enterprises. Mr. Chow
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration with
double majors in Accounting and Management Information
Systems in 1986 and a Master’'s degree in Accounting in
1987 from the University of Hawaii in the United States. He
is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CFA charter holder and a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 which have been audited by the
Company’s auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2021 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations
of the Group may affect the Group’s financial conditions
or growth prospects. The Group has been focusing on
the control of risks and uncertainties with the aim of
understanding and addressing the concerns of stakeholders.
Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group are
outlined below:

1) Our revenue is substantially derived from batteries using
lead-acid technology. If the lead-acid battery market
does not grow at the rate we expect or at all, or if lead-
acid technology is replaced by another technology,
our business, profitability and future prospects may be
materially and adversely affected;
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Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been
implemented across the world such as heightening
of hygiene and epidemic prevention requirements
in factories and offices and quarantine of certain
residents etc. It may adversely affect our business and
overall short-term performance. The Group will closely
monitor the situation and make timely response and
adjustments where necessary.

The array of tariffs by the US government, the Ukraine
war, any global economic downturn, or changes in the
economic, political and social conditions in the PRC
may have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects;

If we are unable to successfully develop new
technology or new products, our business, results of
operations and prospects may be adversely affected;

We derive a significant portion of our income
from our major customers, particularly UPS and
telecommunications customers, and we have no long-
term sales contracts with our customers. Our results
of operations could be adversely affected if these
customers reduce their orders or cease to order from
us;

We face intense competition in our major markets and
continuing pressure to reduce our production costs to
remain price competitive;

Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials, such as
lead, could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations; in addition, we rely on our major suppliers
for our primary raw materials. Our operations could be
affected if our major suppliers are not able to supply
raw materials as scheduled. More information on
our major suppliers is set out on page 59 under the
heading “Major Suppliers and Customers” in this report.
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These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there may be other risks in addition to those shown above
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could become material in the future.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 90 and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 91 to 92.

To reserve fund for acceleration of production capacity
expansion, the Board does not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group's future business development,
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
and an analysis of the performance of the Group during the
year using key financial performance indicators are set out in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 11 to 33 of the annual report.
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Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out below:

Environmental Policies and Performance
(Environmental Protection)

The Group is committed to safety and environmental
protection and has implemented stringent environment
protection policies to uphold high standards of operating
practices.

Pursuant to the applicable environmental laws and
regulations in PRC, the Group installed environmental
protection equipment in all of our production facilities for
the removal of lead dust and particles generated during
our production process in order to minimize the amount
of pollutants in the air. The equipment includes ventilation
systems, dust absorbing and removing systems, acidic mist
and lead fumes purifying machines and fresh air pipelines.

The Group installed waste water treatment facilities at our
production facilities. The water treatment facility neutralizes
the waste water and removes its lead content in accordance
with the applicable environmental standards in PRC. At our
Zhaoqging and Anhui production facilities, the purified water
is collected and reused in our production process, thus
achieving “zero discharge”.

Our PRC factories management constantly controls and
monitors the waste level. Monitoring systems that provide
ontime reading are connected to local government authorities
in charge of environment protection for real-time monitoring
purpose.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
have significant impact on the Group. The Group holds high
standards of operating practices and complies with the
relevant standards. The Group has stringent requirements
to maintain high levels of quality control and responsible
business practices. Any changes in the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and relevant operation units on a timely basis to
ensure that adjustments are made in our procedures and
operations to reflect such changes.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers

The Group believes that employees are important asset
and provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. The management regularly
reviews the Group’s remuneration to its employees to be
up to prevailing market standards. Furthermore, the Group
provides employee training programs to polish their skills
and knowledge and a number of staff activities to enhance
employees’ sense of belonging and to help create a friendly
and harmonious working environment.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil
its long-term goals and development. To maintain its brand
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards of quality in the service
to its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
there was no material dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 95 to 96 and in note
41 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB1,187.3 million (2020: approximately
RMB1,174.6 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 287 to 288 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. DONG Li (Chairman)
Ms. YIN Haiyan (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan
Mr. LAU Chi Kit
Mr. LU Zhigiang
(appointed on 21 March 2022)
Dr. NAN Xinsheng (resigned on 1 January 2022)

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Dr. DONG Li,
Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Mr. LU Zhigiang will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Subject to the applicable laws, every director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages 34
to 39 in the annual report of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members of the Group was based on
qualifications, years of experiences and the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT
OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year, nor had
there been any contract of significance entered into between
the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in
the shares of the Company which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were required
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company referred to in that
section; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Number and Number and
class of securities class of securities
subject to options subject to options
granted under the granted under the Approximate
Number and Pre-IPO Share Share Option percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest class of securities™ Option Scheme Schemes Total shareholding®
RIREER
AR ERERE BRERREE
IR R RRE RiHrRRRE
FIRRIESHE FRMRRIESHE
iz fEEME EEUBRER REER KRR At BARRERLY
Dr. DONG Li Beneficial Owner 1,009,513,000" (L) - - 1,009,513,000 74.36%
EZEL ERBEAA
Ms. YIN Haiyan Beneficial Owner - 150,000@ (L) 2,500,0009 (1) 2,650,000 0.20%
BlleE3 ERBEAA
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan Beneficial Owner - - 800,000 (L) 800,000 0.06%
EhELE ERBEAA
Mr. LAU Chi Kit Beneficial Owner - - 800,000 (L) 800,000 0.06%
EEy Sk ERBEEA

*

The letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
Shares.
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Notes:

Dr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,009,513,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Dr. DONG Li.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 150,000 shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 2,500,000 shares
under the Share Option Schemes. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Schemes.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 800,000
shares under the Share Option Schemes. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Share Option Schemes.

Mr. LAU Chi Kit has been granted options for 800,000 shares
under the Share Option Schemes. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Schemes.

This is based on 1,357,854,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2021.

SHARE OPTION
A. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company dated 25 May 2010,
the Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2021 was 5,942,000 shares
(representing approximately 0.44% of the Company’s
total issued share capital as at that date). No further
options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

bR EXFTiRBEEIN R —F+"A=+—
B BEFXATDEFREBTHRAERKTAF R
HAEMEEOERE (E&RBHFRIIEHEIBEXVER)
BuBRn ~ BRI FEFT A BB AT
RIEEF KRG RAFE362FREFENE L MR
EREmERE ) AR B RBERETRINE R
NE RGP ERIRE  MNBE—Z
T —HF+ZA=+—HLFER THERHEK
TR A AR o

FERtE
A BRAMEEABREE

RIEA A EEREBEBNHBEA S —
ZERR_+HAHMNZEEEmRER AN
B E R IR B B (BERARBE
AIRBARIECTE) » EEATENSEERHE
BBNK O3k - MUEZRN R E AR ER A BRF]
HEHBEFIFEN ) MR AEEF LA
EEEEENREE - NS —51+_18
=+—HB REEXR A AREERERETE
BT ZERITEERE BIERBERREK
MRITHEZ B ] FHITZRDBES
5,942,000 MBERAABINEHNE ST
IEAR4BEEZ0.44%) o R ABIFRBIREERA
P ER R IR H AR o

BRAREER BT BRI BIR R
RMEE31IEE
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B. Share Option Schemes

M

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed
by all shareholders of the Company dated 14
October 2010, the Company approved and
adopted another share option scheme (the “2010
Share Option Scheme”) (as amended at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 18 May 2018) for the purpose of providing
incentive or reward to selected participants for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Company and for
such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. The number of shares which
may be issued pursuant to the outstanding share
options (i.e. options which have been granted but
not yet lapsed or exercised) under the 2010 Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2021 was
32,680,000 shares (representing approximately
2.41% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at that date).

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company dated 30 October
2020, the Company approved and adopted
another share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution to or potential contribution to the
Group and to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and for
such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. The number of shares which
may be issued pursuant to the outstanding share
options (i.e. options which have been granted but
not yet lapsed or exercised) under the New Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2021 was
20,350,000 (representing approximately 1.50% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at that
date).

Details of the Share Option Schemes are disclosed in note

31 to the financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following person (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO:

Nature of Interest

e

Name of Shareholder

fRRGE

FERRNKROEmRXE

A— i —

T2 —F+ZA=+—8 > MIAL FEHE
ERBEEREIBITEAR) BRI P HEBS5%U

FIARHIN AR B IRIRE S A A E R P 553361F
FENELMIRmARE !

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding?®

B R B 2

Number and class
of securities”

EFHE RER

Beneficial Owner
EnEA A

Master Alliance Investment Limited™

*

The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
shares of the Company.

Notes:

M Dr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,009,513,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Dr. DONG Li.

(2)  This is based on 1,357,854,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2021, the
Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were required to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

1,009,513,000 (L) 74.35%

* MLARBRERARABDROPHIETFA -

(1) EBEZEELKE AR Master Alliance Investment
Limited (—HHEFET2EBEB A FAEZ
1,009,513,0008& f& 10 R #E A e ws o

2  ZAEDTEL1,357,854,666 K% (B
T—FE+AZ+-HABEETHRDYB) BER
HEo

PR ECPIRERSN RS - —F+—"B=+—H>
EEHANBAANEAEMAL FEERATE
FERTETHAB ESBARERERT R HAE
Bl (7 PR RIB RS G R G EXVEMA SR
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ&%m%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ#$@ﬂmﬁﬂ
KENE 1R B 5633615 RF ERE C MR m K

A
Be

T HFR - BrEBREHAERAS 53



O

Report of the Directors EE Z iR

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above-mentioned transactions.
The connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group in 2021, which were
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules, are set out
as follows:

Continuing connected transaction subject to
the reporting, announcement, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements

() Sales of Products to Connected Persons

The Company and Dr. DONG Li entered into a master
agreement dated 16 October 2018 (the “2018 Master
Sales Agreement”), which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group will
sell to Dr. DONG Li's associates, and Dr. DONG Li's
associates will purchase from members of the Group,
products including lead-acid batteries, mainly star
lighting and ignition batteries, reserve power batteries
and motive power batteries and related parts. The
products to be sold and purchased under the 2018
Master Sales Agreement shall be at the prevailing
market price, namely, the price at which the same
type of products is sold by us to independent third
parties on normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of business in the PRC. The 2018 Master Sales
Agreement is for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2019, and ending on 31 December
2021. The annual caps for the transactions under the
2018 Master Sales Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2021 have been set at
RMB138.0 million, RMB172.0 milion and RMB215.0
million respectively. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the aggregate amount received by the Group
under the 2018 Master Sales Agreement was
approximately RMB116.8 million.
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Purchase of Products from Connected Persons

The Company and Dr. DONG Li entered into a master
agreement dated 16 October 2018 (the “2018 Master
Purchase Agreement’), which sets out the terms
and conditions upon which members of the Group
will purchase from Dr. DONG Li’s associates, and
Dr. DONG Li’s associates will sell to members of the
Group, products including battery cases, parts, models,
charges and electronic products for the manufacturing
of the Group’s battery products or sale as accessories
of the Group’s battery products. The products to be
sold and purchased under the 2018 Master Purchase
Agreement shall be at the prevailing market price,
namely, the price at which the same type of products
is sold to the Group by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business in the PRC. The 2018 Master Purchase
Agreement is for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2019 and ending on 31 December
2021. The annual caps for the transactions under the
2018 Master Purchase Agreement for each of the
three year ending 31 December 2021 have been set at
RMB41.0 million, RMB55.0 million and RMB72.0 million
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2021
the aggregate amount paid by the Group under the
2018 Master Purchase Agreement was approximately
RMB18.1 million.

(i)

BTN 178 B dn

NAB)REEE T —HABPLE TN\
F+A+AHNEHE (ZTE—N\FXHEE
&) > BRI AEBENRERABRKAE
FHETHBALTEE UREFELIHEA
THRAAEEREABHEREER (B1F
BEMBE M mERKETFER UH
WEAEENENERNIEARERNE)

EmMBCH U EHE) B AR 4 o R
T2 )\ FFEEHRLEREENED.
BRERFIRITHEEE BMEILE=HEF
B —REFHEN  REEBEKRAD
AEBEHEREERRMMKENEE - Z2
—N\FEXEEHER T —NF—F—HE
FEZZE—F+ZA=+—HIlb> RHA=
FoHEZT—F+A=+—HIt=E
FEET 22— )\FXHEEHRETRS
HNEE LRDBAAREI.0BET AR
Ees.0BB TR ARE20BET-BEZ
Z_—F+ZA=+—HBIFE FAERIR
BE - N\FEEER RO REINZ
IR A ANRE181B® T

5 - BTEBRKKAERAS 55 —O—



O

Report of the Directors EE Z iR

The 2018 Master Sales Agreement and the 2018
Master Purchase Agreement have been renewed on
22 November 2021 for a further three years up to 31
December 2024.

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions above
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered
into:

(1)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2)  normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transaction on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group above
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
aforementioned connected transaction or continuing
connected transactions.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to the term of a loan facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) dated 7 May 2020 (as supplemented
on 28 January 2021) and entered into, among other
parties, the Company as borrower, six of its subsidiaries as
guarantors, China Citic Bank International Limited, Hang
Seng Bank Limited and The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited as mandated lead arrangers
and bookrunners, and various financial institutions as lenders,
a term loan facility of US$100,000,000 (the “Loan”) is made
available to the Group for (i) refinance the facility agreement
entered into by the Company on 8 May 2017 and (i)
financing the working capital of the Group.

The Loan is repayable in five instalments as to 15%, 15%,
15%, 15% and 40% on the dates falling 12, 18, 24, 30 and
36 months respectively after the utilisation date of the Loan.

If, among other matters: (i) Dr. DONG Li (‘Dr. DONG”) does
not or ceases to own, directly or indirectly, at least 51%
of the beneficial interest in the Company carrying at least
51% of the voting right, free from any security; (i) Dr. DONG
does not or ceases to have management control over the
Company; and (i) Dr. DONG is not or ceases to be the
chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company, it will be
an event of default under the Facility Agreement, in which
event all or any part of the commitments under the Loan may
be cancelled and all amounts outstanding under the Loan
may immediately become due and payable.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

On 21 December 2010, each of the Controlling Shareholders
of the company namely Dr. DONG Li (also being the
executive Director) and Master Alliance Investment Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) with
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/
it procures that his/its associates will not engage, directly or
indirectly, in businesses which will or may compete with the
business carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2021, none of the Directors is considered to have
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is
stipulated by the Directors on the basis of the employees’
relevant experience, responsibility and qualifications.

The emolument policy for the Directors of the Group Is
determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major largest suppliers are as follows:

9.1%
33.4%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

12.1%
19.4%

— the largest customer
— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the directors, their respective close associates
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers and customers.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 25 May 2022, to Monday, 30 May 2022,
(both days inclusive (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the AGM, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attending and vote
at the AGM, Shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration by no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24 May 2022.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

As from 31 December 2021 to the date of this annual report,
save as disclosed herein, the Board is not aware of any
significant events that have occurred which require disclosure
herein.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2021.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s shares.

EQUITY FUND RAISING
ACTIVITIES

There was no equity fund raising by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021, nor were there any proceeds
brought forward from any issue of equity securities made in
previous financial years.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company hasn’t changed in its auditor in any of the
proceeding three years.

On behalf of the Board

DONG Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

The Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The details of the compliance of the CG code are shown
below.

MANDATORY DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board will continue to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that the regulatory
requirements and principles, such as “comply or explain”
regarding the code provisions of the CG Code and
mandatory disclosure requirements set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, are met and the corporate governance
practices of the Company are in line with expectations of
shareholders and investors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with
all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2021.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by its directors
(the “Directors”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The Board comprises two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Executive Directors comprise Dr. DONG Li (chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”)) and Ms. YIN Haiyan (chief executive
officer).

Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors comprise Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit, Mr. LU Zhigiang (appointed
on 21 March 2022) and Dr. NAN Xinsheng (resigned on 1
January 2022).

The name of each Director, as at the date of this report is
set out under the section headed “Corporate Information”
in this annual report and is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.
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Number of Board, Committee and General Meetings Held

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant events or
important issues are required to be discussed and resolved.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, 17
Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 2 Nomination
Committee meetings, 4 Remuneration Committee meetings
and 2 general meetings were held.

Attendance at the Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings
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The attendance of each Director, by name, at the Board JEFLFEETLZ EFTTLETIZAR
meetings, Board committee meetings and general meetings R AGHIIEN (2it5) HHIWT -
are set out below:
Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/
Attendance/ Number of Number of Number of  Attendance/
Number of Audit  Nomination Remuneration Number
Board Committee =~ Committee Committee of General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings!"
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Executive Directors HiTEE
Dr. DONG Li EFEL 1517 - 2/2 4/4 0/2
Ms. YIN Haiyan Mgt 17117 - - - 0/2
Independent Non-executive  HiJERITES
Directors
Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan ENERE 717 2/2 - 4/4 0/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit AEHRESE n7 2/2 2/2 4/4 2/2
Dr. NAN Xinsheng @ ﬁ%ﬁ EfEte 6/17 2/2 2/2 - 0/2
Mr. LU Zhigiang © it a s 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
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Notes:

(1) Being the annual general meeting of the Company held on
28 May 2021 and the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 17 December 2021.

2) Dr. NAN Xinsheng resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 January 2022.

3) Mr. LU Zhigiang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 21 March 2022.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for leadership
and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation
of the Group. In addition, the Board has established three
Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various authority and duties set out in their
respective terms of reference. All Directors have carried out
their duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating and
monitoring the operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control system.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
different business experience, knowledge and professional
background. The Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of its Board members with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
regarding the independence from each independent non-
executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company still considers the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Independent non-executive Directors have been invited to
serve on the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). Through participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees,
all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Directors’ Continuous Training and
Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will receive a formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
business and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other legal and
regulatory requirements.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings
to all Directors to develop and refresh their duties and
responsibilities. All Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses provided by legal advisers and/or
any appropriate institutions and they have been requested to
provide the Company with their training records.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties as a
director of a listed company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all Directors
provided their records of training to the Company. All
Directors, namely Dr. DONG Li, Ms. YIN Haiyan, Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr. NAN Xinsheng
(resigned on 1 January 2022) participated in this continuous
professional development mainly by reading various materials
regarding directors’ duties, compliance with Listing Rules and
disclosure of inside information, etc.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Dr. DONG Li, the Chairman of the Board, is the founder of
the Group and has extensive experience in the lead-acid
battery industry. With effect from 30 July 2018, Ms. YIN
Haiyan has been appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company.

The roles of the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company are separate and performed by different
individuals.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr. NAN Xinsheng
(resigned on 1 January 2022) are engaged for a term of
three years commencing from their respective dates of
appointment and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Mr. LU Zhigiang (appointed on 21 March 2022) is engaged
for a term of two years commencing from the date of
appointment and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with written terms of reference, which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. All Board committees report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Remuneration Committee

The principal role and function of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) assessing the
performance of the executive Directors and approving their
terms of their service contracts; (c) review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior
management of the Company which include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment; (e) make recommendations to the Board of on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Company;
(f) to review and approve the remuneration payable to the
executive directors and senior management of the Company
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with relevant contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; (g) review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and (h) ensure that no director of the Company
or any of his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three members, namely, Dr. DONG Li (the
executive Director), Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan and Mr. LAU Chi
Kit, the latter two being independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. LAU Chi Kit is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Remuneration Committee held four meetings to discuss,
review, analyse and consider any change of the remuneration
policy of the Company and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The records of attendance of committee
members, by name, at the meetings held are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. LAU Chi Kit 4/4
Dr. DONG Li 4/4
Mr. CAOQ Yixiong Alan 4/4

Mr. LU Zhigiang
(appointed on 21 March 2022)
0/0

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model of
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy
and the board diversity policy the “ (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Company’s Board; (b) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assess the
independence of the independent non-executive directors;
and (d) make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the
chief executive. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Nomination policy and process for the independent
nonexecutive Directors

The nomination committee of the Company will consider
the structure, size and diversity (including gender, age,
cultural and educational background, length of service,
skills, knowledge and experience etc.) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. All appointments to the Board are based
on meritocracy and the candidates will be assessed based
on criteria such as education background and relevant
skills and experience for consideration of the operation of
the Board as a whole, with a view to maintaining a sound
balance of the Board’s composition.

As at 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
comprised three members, namely, Dr. DONG Li (executive
Director), Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr. NAN Xinsheng (resigned
on 1 January 2022), the latter two being independent non-
executive Directors. Dr. DONG Li is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The attendance records of each member at
the meetings are set out below:

Attendance/
Name of Director Number of Meetings
Dr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Dr. NAN Xinsheng
(resigned on 1 January 2022)
2/2
Mr. LU Zhigiang
(appointed on 21 March 2022)
0/0
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All Board members’ appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. According to the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Nomination Committee in 2013,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Audit Committee

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee are,
amongst others, to (a) review the financial statements and
reports and consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (b) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor; and (c) review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee comprised
three members, namely, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi
Kit and Dr. NAN Xinsheng (resigned on 1 January 2022) all
of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan is the chairman of the Audit Committee and he
possesses relevant accounting and financial management
expertise.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2021 together with the Company’s
external auditor and the senior management and performed
the following major tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of 2020 annual audit and 2021
interim review work, auditor’s fees and terms of
engagement; and

- Review and discuss the 2020 annual and 2021 interim
financial statements, results announcements and
reports, the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the relevant audit findings.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

The attendance records of each member at the meeting are
set out below:

Attendance/
Name of Director Number of Meetings
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Dr. NAN Xinsheng
(resigned on 1 January 2022)
2/2
Mr. LU Zhigiang
(appointed on 21 March 2022)
0/0

In addition, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and has discussed with the management and the
external auditor of the Company on the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group and the internal controls
and financial reporting matters of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the CG
Code:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

° review of the corporate governance code provisions
under the CG Code; and

° review of the compliance with the CG Code.
Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in

respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.
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Anti-corruption

The Group formulates the “Business Ethics Control
Procedure” which requires both employees and suppliers
to sign the agreement for integrity. In addition, the “Anti-
Corruption Procedure” is also formulated to cover lawful
business, avoidance of conflict of interests, and fair
competition, etc. The Group requests all employees to
abide by the business ethics, employees must not ask for or
receive any improper form or other improper benefits, which
include but not limited to rebates, commissions, improper
gifts or hospitality; avoidance of conflicts of interest at work.
All employees are required to avoid any activities which might
involve potential conflict of interests and they are required to
receive regular training on anti-corruption.

Whistleblowing Policy

Employees are encouraged to report any non-conformity or
violation of the anti-bribery and corruption policy in writing to
management directly or to our dedicated response team. All
cases will be investigated in a timely and confidential manner
and the personnel who are involved in whistleblowing will be
protected.

The Group formulates a policy on the “Regulations for
Management of Whistle-blowing and Appeals” which
stipulates in detail the procedure of whistle-blowing, the
methodology of investigation and the way of appeal by
the person under investigation. Employees can complain
or report in a confidential manner to the Group’s senior
management through the General Manager’s letterbox,
telephone, and face-to-face communication, etc. The Group
protects the personal privacy and the related rights of the
whistle-blower.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements are met and applicable
accounting standards are complied with. The Board has
received from the senior management the management
accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s assets
on an ongoing basis and for reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis. Internal audits were
carried out on all significant operation units of the Group
on an ongoing basis. The senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis and reports to the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget. The
Board is of the opinion that the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group are effective and
adequate. The Board is also reasonably satisfied that there
are sufficient resources of staff with appropriate qualifications
and experience in its accounting and financial reporting team
and that sufficient training and budget have been provided.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
report responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 81 to 89 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration
paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for annual audit services provided to the Group
and for non-audit services which comprise professional tax
services, amounted to RMB2.9 million and RMB0.4 million,
respectively.

Dividend Policy

The Company has a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute dividends to
the Shareholders of the Company by way of (i) cash or (ii)
shares. The profit distribution policy of the Company shall
achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.
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The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.
When considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
the Board will take into account the Group’s financial results,
business conditions and strategies and future operations and
earnings.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the Laws of Hong Kong, the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM’)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out
in the preceding paragraph.
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Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary
of the Company through the following channels with contact
details as set out below:

i) by mail to the Company’s principal place of business at
Unit C, 33/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong; or

i) by email to ir@leoch.com.
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholders’ meetings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ mestings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

There were no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2021, and
the Company’s constitutional documents are published on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, an annual declaration on his/its compliance
with the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-
Competition entered into by each of them in favour of
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/it
and his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly,
in businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group. Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
have satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders had
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.
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The Company maintains a website at www.leoch.com as
a communication platform for shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and
investors may write directly to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairmen and/or other members of the Board
committees have endeavored to be available to answer any
questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. CHOW Kam
Keung Albert, is the chief financial officer and one of the
employees of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. Mr. Chow has
provided his training records to the Company indicating that
he has not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
by means of attending in-house briefings, attending seminars
and reading relevant guideline materials.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
EY:

To the shareholders of
Leoch International Technology Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to
286, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also
include International Accounting Standards (‘lASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

FREZSIR (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FAREZEIR EEZERNARIERRBEZEE
Inventory provision
FEEE

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items. Since technology develops rapidly in the
lead-acid battery industry, the Group’s inventories were
subject to significant risk of obsolescence. Significant
management’s judgements and estimates were involved
in determining the amount of provision of slow-moving
and obsolete inventories. As the inventory balance
amounting to RMB2,019million was significant to the
Group, which represented 21% of the total assets of the
Group, and the provision of inventories was made based
on subjective estimates and assumptions concerning
future consumption or sales of inventories, we identified
this as a key audit matter.

EARETERENE REMBEERRE BN RHEt
HRER HNHEEBNZEMERAR S£E

ZHEEAZREANBRER BEFIHERREFEMN
SHERME Y SR W REEE 2 EAHE KRhs o B
REEEHEARK201958TH SXEEMSHE
BAh BEEEEEREZ21% BEFERERE
ERMAREERNGFEHERZ TBRES RERIFL
FHItE SR # SEREZEE

The disclosures about inventories are included in notes 3
and 20 to the financial statements.

BRFEZ MBSV BREAMFE3R200

We obtained an understanding of management’s
process about how to identify the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and calculate the amount of
provision.
EEETHREEEAMUARE S RREFEG R
STREBEEEZEF

We evaluated the sales forecasts prepared by
management for the purpose of identifying the slow-
moving and obsolete inventories by checking, on a
sampling basis, the sales orders and agreements,
and assessing the estimated sales taking into account
the previous estimations, the historical evidence
supporting underlying assumptions and current
market conditions.
ESEMEEEBRRNZIHERTER ST BB
EZEHEE T B RGEEE RIERREFE L
ZRuREE XFEARRZELERERIRTS
TEHEfEsTEEEER

We also checked on a sampling basis the ageing
reports of inventories and the production records and
sales of inventories made after the year end.
EENEBHEFEEZRERERFEREBZEETHRK
F 2z 7 E i EETHERER -

For the net realisable value of the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories identified, we checked samples
of recent sales invoices for the value.
MFTEE 2 miE REFEZ R EFEFEMS &
EERHTHREHESEREAZBE

“TC—FER — BTEBRTARAS 83 —O—

—=



O

Independent Auditor’s Report &3 %65 S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

MEEZER

FRELSEIR (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
=

EEZERNMFAREMREZSEE

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5B IR

The trade receivable balance was significant to the
Group, which amounted to RMB2,781 million and
represented approximately 29% of the total assets as at
31 December 2021. Assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables involves a high level of management
judgement and estimation. During the year, management
used a provision matrix to calculate expected credit
losses for receivables. The matrix was initially based
on the Group’s historical default rates, and specific
factors that management considered in the estimation
of the rates including the type of customers, ageing of
the balances and recent historical payment patterns.
Management then calibrated the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information, such as forecasted economic conditions.
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The relevant disclosures are contained in notes 3 and 21
to the financial statements.
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We evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls which
govern credit control, debt collection and estimate of
expected credit losses (‘ECLS”).
EEEMEEEBEEEN - BREATEHRESS
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We assessed, on a sampling basis, whether items
in the trade receivable ageing report were classified
with the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with the relevant sales
invoices.
EEREAEEFBLLRRE P ARIEE EERHE
EER ML EZRKRERERSTNERES
FWABENRE RG]

We assessed the adequacy of the ECL provision by
() evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
assumptions used in establishing the ECL provision
matrix; (i) examining the information used by
management to form such estimations, including
testing the accuracy of historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information; and (iii)
examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year.
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We checked the relevant disclosures in the financial
statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED
IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF

THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs which
comprise standards and Interpretations issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 %65 S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF

THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report J& 17 % EEM R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 %65 S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES ZEEMEBZ A EMEHRERZE
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE £ (4

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEAREIIZHMMBEZBZBEEEALER
independent auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee. Ho

Ernst & Young LK sTEMSE ST
Certified Public Accountants HFEEED

Hong Kong 55

31 March 2022 _ETF=H=+—H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

& A= 2L
AOIEImIR
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIHFE

2021 2020
—EZ—F —EETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AREFT AREEFTT
REVENUE K = 5 11,303,125 9,631,362
Cost of sales THEME (9,793,419) (8,443,083)
Gross profit EAF 1,509,706 1,188,279
Other income and gains HAUR A KWz 5 84,221 108,360
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHBAZ (586,076) (481,179)
Administrative expenses TR (306,212) (266,359)
Research and development costs ISR A 6 (239,446) (172,720)
Impairment losses on assets BEEMEBE 6 (23,761) (20,675)
Other expenses HpEsz 7 (102,594) (35,874)
Finance costs A TS AR A 8 (143,874) (158,180)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX T bl 6 191,964 161,652
Income tax expense FTi8MsZ 11 (25,235) (23,688)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EEERF 166,729 137,964
Attributable to: DUF AL
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZE PN 136,126 123,732
Non-controlling interests JEIERR e T 30,603 14,232
166,729 137,964
EARNINGS PER SHARE BARLBEEREFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY (LSRR
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic =N RMBAR#0.100t RMBAR0.097c
Diluted #E RMBAE#0.100t  RVMBAR0.097¢
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEEmWBER

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z - HF+"HA=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
T —F —T_THF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®TT AR®BFTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR TEERH 166,729 137,964
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hith2E Kz
Other comprehensive income that RERABENR2EE
may be reclassified to profit or loss BmiEMEERE
in subsequent periods:
Debt investments at fair value through NABEEE T AHM
other comprehensive income: SEHBANEERE .
Changes in fair value NAEEED 22 1,683 (776)
Income tax effect FRSEE 29 (421) 194
1,262 (582)
Exchange differences on translation of MBI EFF R TE L ERE
foreign operations (1,312) 1,325
Net other comprehensive income that RREEABEERDEE
may be reclassified to profit or loss BEaNHEMEERE
in subsequent periods HEA (50) 743
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 4F & ZE W E =

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z -+ "A=+—HULEFE

2021 2020
-5 T -TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

PysE ARBTRT ARETT

Other comprehensive income that HEEBIABRN G SR
will not be reclassified to profit or loss DEEEEmEM
in subsequent periods: 2HE T
Equity investments designated at IEEERANBEE
fair value through other FFAEMEEWRED
comprehensive income: HmERE
Changes in fair value ’&ftf’ifﬁ”@] 8,736 (541)
Income tax effect TSR s & 29 659 10,328
Net other comprehensive income that PRI AEEMDE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss EEmNEMEE KGR
in subsequent periods FEE 9,395 9,787
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME rEEHMEEWE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX NN IE 9,345 10,530
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TEEREWHEEEE
FOR THE YEAR 176,074 148,494
Attributable to: PUF A LFEAL -
Owners of the parent BREHEE A 145,247 134,569
Non-controlling interests JEPERR M T 30,827 13,925

176,074 148,494
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fRE BN R

31 December 2021
—EC—&#+ZA=+—8

2021 2020
T —F —T_THF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AREFT AR®BFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB R&RE 14 2,291,795 2,371,715
Investment property KEYE 15 345 356
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16(a) 152,860 147,424
Goodwil ok 17 2,213 2213
Other intangible assets HthmfEE 18 771,009 715,537
Equity investments designated at EERANBEEHTA
fair value through other Hih2Emp Dt
comprehensive income KE 19 182,680 143,027
Deposits paid for purchase of items of ~ FLUREEY £ « = K R &
property, plant and equipment BEEZ W& 34,650 36,656
Deferred tax assets IREIRIEE A 29 66,263 61,724
Total non-current assets JERBEERE 3,501,815 3,478,652
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Inventories 75 20 2,019,256 1,776,904
Trade receivables 8B 5 I 21 2,725,702 2,419,676
Debt investments at fair value through NABEEB) T A HM
other comprehensive income 2HKENERRE 22 106,349 197,128
Prepayments, other receivables B FUE ~ HhEWRIE
and other assets K EH e = 23 223,469 276,059
Financial assets at fair value through RABEEHFTAEEN
profit or loss THEE 24 67,798 75,912
Pledged deposits BEIRIRER 25 602,513 461,353
Cash and cash equivalents BENIRSEEY 25 349,229 387,148
Total current assets MENEEEE 6,094,316 5,594,180
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEmaE
Trade and bills payables B EMTIERENERER 26 2,319,251 2,139,389
Other payables and accruals HMERRIBERESE A 27 1,077,303 083,974
Financial liabilities at fair value through RABEEHFTAEEN
profit or loss Gt Y=k 24 851 2,679
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIBITEE 28 2,042,493 1,760,846
Lease liabilities HESRE 16(b) 4,046 6,032
Income tax payable FETFT1SHR 108,576 104,841
Total current liabilities mENEEEE 5,552,520 4,997,761
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 541,796 596,419
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEEERRBARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,043,611 4,075,071
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 43 & BAFS Ak R R
31 December 2021
—®-—F+=B=+—8
2021 2020
—E—F —ZEZFTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARETFT AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEE 28 329,713 542,438
Lease liabilities HEaE 16(b) 16,422 5,099
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEER 29 53,282 55,503
Deferred government grants R T 4 A 65,129 72,095
Total non-current liabilities FEREEMEEE 464,546 675,135
Net assets BEEFE 3,579,065 3,399,936
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of ISYNCTEZ 2= DN ay
the parent
Share capital EZIN 30 116,241 116,224
Reserves G 32 3,271,687 3,123,402
3,387,928 3,239,626
Non-controlling interests JEEERR T 191,137 160,310
Total equity 13418 4E 3,579,065 3,399,936
Dong Li Yin Haiyan
5= ENE 3
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Change§ In Equity
n‘7|_ |:|¢ E..-nﬁ@]%

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—HF+"HA=1+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SN
Share Share Far  Statutoy  Exchange Non-
Share premium Merger option value reserve  fluctuation Retained controling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profts Total interests equity

kA BpaRE ARG BREEE REEE iEEEE  RBEE R8N ast FEkEE  EE4E
RMBO00  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ARETR AREBTR ARETR AR%TR ARETT ARETR ARETR AREBTR ARETR ARETR
Note (note 30) (note 41) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32)
iz (Wst30)  (Mfha1) (M) (REise)  (R&s2)  (WEEs2)  (H3s)

At 1 January 2020 116213 1,148,909 272,534 34,715 58,306 145,619 24519 1316931 3,117,746 156443 3,274,189
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 123,732 123,732 14,232 137,964
Other comprehensive income REEEM2ENE
for the year:
Changes In fair value of equity EERANEEEDHA
investments designated at Ht2ERENRRYE
fair value through other RENAREERE
comprehensive income, net of tax palcsias] - - - - 9,787 - - - 9,787 - 9,787
Changes In fair value of debt AREEEHH AR
investments at fai value through 2ERENERLEE
other comprehensive income, AhEEZS
net of tax palcsias] - - - - (582) - - - (582) - (6582)
Exchange differences on translation ~ BEFNEHHNEREE
of foreign operations - - - - - - 1,632 - 1,632 (307) 1,325
Total comprehensive income for the year A E2EIHEE - - - - 9,005 - 1632 123782 134569 13925 148494
Exercise of the share options friERiE 11 183 - (172) - - - - 2 - 2
Lapse of the share options BREXY - - - (1410) - - - 1410 - - -

Transfer of fair value reserve of equity  BEBAABEEH A
nvestments at fa value through Et2mkmnEm

other comprehensive income RENAREERE 19 - - - - (40,770) - - 40,770 - - -
Appropriations to reserves BEEE - - - - - 25,219 - (25.219) - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangements bliEm & BRI REZ H - - - 2,034 - - - - 2,034 - 2,034
Acquisttion of non-controling interests B SE2BRIES: - - 10,058 - - - - - 10,058 (10,058) -
Final 2019 dividend paid BIZE-nEXRERE - - - - - - - (24803 (24,809 - (04,803)

At 31 December 2020 RIB°EE
+-A=+-H 116224 1,149,092 282,592 35,167 26,741 170,838 26151 1432821 3239626 160,310 3,399,936
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity 4%

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HIHFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATEA N
Share Share Fair  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger option value reserve  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
A% Ef

ke ROEER AHEG BREHE BEHRE ERERE  R9EE  REE At FEkED  REEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABBTR ABBTT ARBTR ABMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR AREBTRT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note (note 30)  (notedl)  (note32)  (note32)  (note32)  (note32)  (note 32)
Mz (M:30)  (Haa1)  (H&s2)  (Matse)  (Maise)  (W&s2)  (Wakse)

At 1 January 2021 RZE--£-F-H 116,224 1,149,092 282,592 35,167 26,741 170,838 26,151 1,432,821 3,239,626 160,310 3,399,936
Proft for the year REERT - - - - - - - 13,126 136126 30603 166,729
Other comprehensive income REEEMRENE

for the year:

Changes in fair value of equity BERANBESS:

investments designated at Hih2 AN ERE
fair value through other RENAREEEE
comprehensive income, net of tax A - - - - 9,395 - - - 9,395 - 9,395
Changes in fair value of debt BAREEEHHA
investments at fair value through Ht2ERENES
other comprehensive income, RENAREELE
net of tax NiiRE - - - - 1,262 - - - 1,262 - 1,262
Exchenge difierences on translation ~ REBINEBHERZE
of foreign operations - - - - - - (1,536) - (1,536) 224 (1,312
Total comprehensive income for the year ZEE2 ARG EER - - - - 10,657 - (1,53) 136,126 145,247 30,827 176,074
Exercise of the share options fEmRE 17 213 - (167) - - - - 123 - 123
Transfer of far value reserve of equity ~ BEBAABEEEH A
Investments at fair value through Hth2EKEmERY
other comprehensive income RENAABERE 19 - - - - (4,369) - - 4,369 - - -
Appropriations to reserves BERE - - - - - 12,682 - (12,682) - - -
Equity-settied share option arrangements LB R & ENBRER H - - - 2,032 - - - - 2,932 - 2,932
At 31 December 2021 RIE--%£
+ZA=+-8 116,241  1,149,365* 282,592* 37,932 33,029* 183,520* 24615*  1,560,634* 3,387,928 191,137 3,579,065
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * HEHBEREEGAVBERIEZEN GRS HE
of RMB3,271,687,000 (2020: RMB3,123,402,000) in the AR ®#3,271,687,000t (ZE_ZFF | AR
consolidated statement of financial position. 3,123,402,0007T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n\7l' = EE @ AL E 15§

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE_ T —F+_BA=1t—HILEE

2021 2020
—E-—F “EIEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING & EMERIBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax AT A] 191,964 161,652
Adjustments for: M BEELAERE
Finance costs RN 8 143,874 158,180
Interest income FEWA 5 (10,567) (11,276)
Fair value loss(gain) from financial NAEBEEEEE ABGR
assets at fair value through HNEMEENAR
profit or loss, net BEBER W= P58 6 8,114 (10,309)
Fair value loss from financial NABEEET AEBR
liabilities at fair value through HNEMBENAR
profit or loss, net BERE FEE 6 860 2,679
Fair value gain from structured EBMEIRITERNA R
bank deposits BEKG 5 - (1,276)
Loss on disposal of items of BEME -BERSKZE
property, plant and equipment BHENEIE 6 5,927 6,762
Loss on lease modifications HEENEE 11 163
Depreciation of property, ME -BEKRKEITE
plant and equipment 14 338,687 260,257
Depreciation of investment property & B4 % E 15 11 11
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BB ETE 16(a) 10,467 11,161
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 18 199,279 183,347
Amortisation of deferred ST U 45 B 4k 2
government grants (11,793) (6,098)
Impairment of trade receivables B2 RWFIERE 21 23,761 12,252
Impairment/(reversal of impairment)  F&EE, " CRl{EE )
of inventories 20 7,331 (1,430)
Impairment of goodwill BERE 17 = 8,423
Dividend income from equity ETERANBEES)
investments designated FFAREMEEWE
at fair value through other TR ERNREWA
comprehensive income 5 - 672)
Equity-settled share option expenses Mz 4% B AV BERRERI 2 6 2,932 2,034
910,858 775,860
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 43 &

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z -+ "A=+—HULEFE

MERER

2021 2020
T —F T _EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT AREF T
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =5 Ggm R (249,683) 41,492
Increase in trade receivables B 5 U E B N (329,787) (125,057)
Decrease/(Increase) in debt BR R EEEEE AEHM
investments at fair value through 2HKBENERKRE
other comprehensive income L (g 92,462 (63,120)
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments,  FE 7R IE ~ ELthFE I3 IE K
other receivables and other assets Hh&E R dEm) 52,590 (114,016)
Decrease in financial liabilities at far ~ 2A A EEE ST AR T
value through profit or loss NEmadER D (2,688) (5,457)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 FE{T R IE K FE (T 45120 179,862 129,688
Increase in other payables and H e RIB M EST & A IEM
accruals 93,093 136,701
Cash generated from operations KEEFATEIRE 746,707 776,091
Income tax paid BEFTER (27,971) (13,044)
Net cash flows from operating KEEEMRRERE
activities JRRE 718,736 763,047
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REIZFFRFHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BUWF 2 10,567 11,276
Purchases of items of property, BEEYE -HENREER
plant and equipment (280,598) (416,452)
Proceeds from disposal of items of ~ BREWXE -ME&KREEEN
property, plant and equipment FTi8FRIE 7,384 9,457
Dividend income from equity SRR AR EEBIE A
investments designated at fair Hih2Emp et
value through other comprehensive B & I B U A
income 5 - 672
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEREER AN EBELEE
investments designated at fair SFAEMEEWED
value through other @R BENMMEMRIE
comprehensive income 19 9,004 53,095
Disposal of right-of-use assets HEFSRAEEE - 30,793
Additions of equity investments BIEE RN A EEED
designated at fair value through SFAHMEZEN RN
other comprehensive income HmEERE (40,500) (33,262)
Additions of intangible assets wmnErEE 18 (255,096) (228,471)
Additions of right-of-use assets BINEREEE 16(a) (7) (230)
Decrease in structured bank deposits 4518 M $R1TERUR - 61,069
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits B R F=x F2h0) #b (141,160) 2,793
Receipt of deferred government grants H&HR?@EEBZH?%@ES 971 18,423
Net cash flows used in investing KREEBFTARERE
activities FEA (689,435) (490,837)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 428 REHRER

Year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_ZT—F+ZA=+—HILEE

2021 2020
—E-—F TECIRF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BT ARBTRT ARETT

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEITHFRERE

ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance D217 BREITHX

expenses 30 123 22
New bank borrowings HMEIRTTEE 5,353,553 5,230,216
Repayment of bank borrowings BIRIRTTEE (5,244,223) (5,152,011)
Interest paid BEFE (143,689) (157,839)
Principal portion of lease payments ~ fEE I A% 289 (6,995) (7,450)
Final dividend paid BENERBARE - (24,803)
Net cash flows used in MEEHFARERE R

financing activities (41,231) (111,865)

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERREEEY (BRL)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IR EE (11,930) 160,345
Cash and cash equivalents at REVNRERIRE

beginning of year ZEEY 387,148 280,903
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEEHNE L FEE

changes, net (25,989) (54,100)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERNRER

AT END OF YEAR REZEEY 349,229 387,148
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERREEEYEERR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS paRiiy
Cash and bank balances IR& MIRTTAEER 25 349,229 387,148
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31 December 2021
—E-—#+ZA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (Act 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the office
of Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture, development and sale of
lead-acid batteries and other related items.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the immediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Master
Alliance Investment Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Dr.
DONG Li.
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

31 December 2021

—®-—f+-A=1—8

1. REIRERER (B

BRMBEARZERN
YNSIE e UNSESE T

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
Bl ave
WEAE ML/ EMAS AR EEE BEORARES  AARRKERENL TELH
Direct Indirect
B ik
% %

IHRETENERAD 11 March 2003 PRC* RMB577,909,382 - 100 Investment holding and
(Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp.) manufacture and sale of
(Jiangsu Leoch’) ) lead-acid batteries

IHEETENERAR CIH&EL) () —ZZ=F=A+-H e NE577,909,3827 RERR RENHERREEY

EEETERRIARAR 9 May 2005 PRC* US$103,780,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Zhaoqing Leoch Battery manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd.) lead-acid batteries
(“Zhaoging Leoch’) (i)

ERETERREARAT “ZZRERANA e 103,780,000% 7T REZRR RENHERREEH
(EEEL)) ()

ZUNEHHERENERAR 26 July 2006 PRC* UUS$10,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Anhui Uplus Energy Technology lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd.) (‘Anhui Uplus’) (i)

ZHNBURERRMGERAR ZZERELAIHAE HE 10,000,000% 7% RENHEARERT
(ZBAEHE) ()

AR RERERAT 26 April 1999 PRC* RMB846,456,523 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(Leoch Shenzhen Renewable Energy lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd) (‘Leoch New Energy’) ()

RAITELHEREEERAR “AANERAZ+AE  HE N 846,456,5237C REZRAHBENRESH
(TERLHAER) ()

RETETRERERREMERAR 27 November 2002 PRC* RMB3,500,000 - 100 Leasing of properties
(Dongguan Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd.) (i

RETELZERERRIERA) “ZRECE+-RIHEH HE AR 3,500,007 REME

ENETRERRMERAT 23 July 2013 PRC* RMB100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Guangzhou Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd.) (i

EMNETRERREERAF) “E-CEtAT+=R & AR 100,007 HENRETH
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31 December 2021
—E-—#+ZA=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. REIRERER (&)

ERMBATZER (&

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ELiave
HEAR ML/ HmEN R EE S BETREEEEX  FAAEEEEESL TEEE
Direct Indirect
BE itk
% %
Leoch International Sales Ltd 31 December 2010 Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch International Sales’)
BrERHEERAR (BLERHEE) —T-ZF+°B=+-H &% BT HERMBEEH
Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Power Supply’) lead-acid batteries
E+ER (EH) sRAT (B1EE) “ZEOENATAR & 12,000,00077¢ RERRABENRESH
Leoch Battery Corporation 17 June 2003 USA™ 1S$3,256,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Corp.’)
Leoch Battery Corporation “EE-F5RA+tH E i 3,256,000%7¢ HESBEEHY
(TLeoch Battery Corp. )
Honour Label Investments Limited 28 February 2005 BV US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Honour Label’)
Honour Label Investments Limited ZZERFCACHN\E EREUHEE™ ET RERR
("Honour Label })
Peak Year Investments Limited 25 January 2007 BVI™ USS1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Peak Year")
Peak Year Investments Limited “TEHE-AC+RA RERTEE™ 1E7 REERK
("Peak Year )
Shieldon International Limited 19 January 2007 BvI™ US$1 = 100 Investment holding
(‘Shieldon”)
Shieldon International Limited ZZZtE-RTAA HERLHE™ ES REERK
("Shieldon )
Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Company Limited “EZtEMAC+RA B 1,000,000 7 REZRIMHENBRESH

(TLeoch Battery Company 1)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

31 December 2021

e R

1. REIMRERER (B

ERMBARZERN (&

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
Bl ave
WEAE ML/ EMAS HRREEE BEORARES  AARRKEZAAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B# itk
% %
BRETRERRERAT 15 March 2006 PRC* RMB300,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Nanjing Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd.) (i
ARETRERRITERAH) “ZERE=RATRA e AR 300,007 HERREEH
FrETRERRMGERAG 14 December 2004 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Beiing Leoch Engineering
Technology Co., Ltd.) (i
PRELRERKIMERAH) “ZEMESZATEE  HE AR 1,000,007 HERMBESH
FIELENBEMERAD 27 September 2007 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp.) (i)
B EMEIERAE) “EREENRCHER E AR 1,000,007 HERBESH
Catherine Holdings International 3 May 2010 BV~ US$4 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited
(‘Catherine Holdings’)
Catherine Holdings International ZZ-ZFRF=H HRRLHE™ 4E7 Rark
Company Limited
(" Catherine Holdings ))
Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 Apri 2010 Singapore 8G$2,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Pte.’)
Leach Battery Pte. Ltd. “2-ZE£NAEA G 2,000,000 M3 7T HENMEEH
(TLeoch Battery Pte. ])
Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. 21 April 2011 Singapore SG$1 = 100 Investment holding
(‘Leoch International Holding’)
Leoch Intenational Holding Pte. Ltd. “Z—FMAZ+-H  HME 1T RERR
(TLeoch International Holding 1)
ZHETERREMERAR 26 October 2010 PRC* RMB625,817,381 = 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(Anhui Leoch Power Supply Corp.) batteries
(‘Anhui Leoch Power) ()
ZHETERREERAT “Z-BE+A+AR HE AR H625,817,3817T RENHERRERH

(B2 ER) ()
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31 December 2021
—E-—#+ZA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ANAKREBER #&)

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

ERMBABZEN (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ELiave
HEAE ML/ EMAS R REE BEORARES  AARRKEZAAL TEEE
Direct Indirect
BE itk
% %
Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 26 January 2012 Sri Lanka LKR337,712,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
batteries
Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. ZZ-ZF-AZHRE  REEF 337,712,000 BENBENRESH
HERREL
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited 31 October 2012 India INR305,988,330 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited “2-_&#+f=+-8 OE 305,988, 330N E &L HENRETH
Big Help Group Limited (‘Big Help”) 19 May 2011 Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Investment holding
Big Help Group Limited (T Big Help 1) ZZ—ERRTAR &5 187 REsk
BIREERE (R BRAR 23 June 2014 PRC* RMB1,607,458,555 - 100 Investment holding
(Leach Investment Development
(Shenzhen) Limited) i
BrRERE (RY) BRAE) “E-mERAZT=A HE AR 16074585557 RE2k
LM ERRIERAR 29 November 2012 PRC* HK$10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Shenzhen Lihang Battery Technology
Co., Ltd) (i)
RN EFRITBRAH) “Z-ZE+-AZtNH HE 10,000,000%7c wErk
Leoch Super Power India Pvt 7 August 2015 India INR259,110,200 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
batteries
Leoch Super Power India Pt “Z-RE\AtH 0E 259,110,200 E &Lt HEHERRESY
Energymax Power (M) Sdn Bhd 10 July 2016 Malaysia MYR40,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(‘Energymax’) batteries
Energymax Power (M) Sdn Bhd S EtAtH BERAT 40,000,000 NETNHEHRETH
(TEnergymax ) EXADSE
ZUNBHHAREFMERRERRE 9 September 2016 PRC* RMB5,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Anhui Uplus New Energy
Material Technology Co., Ltd.)
(‘Anhui Uplus New Energy’) ()
ZHNEASTERMERRAERRE  ZE-EAAAR HE B 5,000,007 REER

(TRBNE IR
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
(continued)

31 December 2021
—E—F+ZA=t+—H

1. REIMRERER (B

ERMBARZERN (&

Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
Bl ave
HEAR SR/ MmN R EEHE BETREEEEX  FAAEEEEEAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B# itk
% %

AMBAEEFRRERAT 9 January 2017 PRC* RMB110,000,000 - 60  Recycling and remanufacture of
(Taihe Dahua Energy Technology lead from batteries disposed of
Co., Ltd) (‘Taihe Dahua’) ()

AMBAEEFHRERAR “E2—t&-FhH HE AE#110,000,0007 BEETHEUMRBLESR
(TRHBAE) ()

Tele Power Sdn. Bhd. (‘Tele Power’) 23 January 2017 Malaysia MYR1,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Tele Power Sdn. Bnd. (I Tele Power 1) “T—tE-FZt=H EXAEZ 1,0000006RBEELE BEMHENRESH

Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vigtnam 1S$3,750,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited “ZtEAAZTAE HE 3,750,000%7¢ HENHERRESY

Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vigtnam 1S$2,100,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited ZE—tFEARZTAR R 2,100,000£7¢ RENHENREEH

Leoch France SAS 23 November 2017 France EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries

Leach France SAS “E—tE+-AZ+=H #E 100,0008%7¢ HESRERM

Leoch Nordeuropa GmbH 22 February 2018 Germany EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries

Leoch Nordeuropa GmbH “Z-\fZAZ+ZR %£H 100,007 HERRERH

Leoch ltalia s.rl 11 October 2018 Italy EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries

Leach Italia s.r “Z-\E+A+-A BEAH 100,0008%7¢ HENBEEN

Leoch DBS Limited (‘LDBS") 28 June 2017 United Kingdom (GBP3,516,723 - 100 Investment holding

Leoch DBS Limited (TLDBS ) ZZ-tERAZTNR EE 3,516,238 REZR
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31 December 2021
2 -F+ZA=+—8H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continueqd)

Information about subsidiaries

1. REREEEN (&

ERMBARZER (&

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
B Ay
HEAR ML/ HmEN R EE S BETREEEEX  FAAEEEEESL TEEE
Direct Indirect
BE it
% %
Leoch Battery UK Ltd. (‘LBUK’) 20 October 2015 United Kingdom GBP1 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery UK Ltd. (TLBUK 1) “Z-REtAZTE #E 152 HERREEY
AIELERERERAT 21 September 2020 PRC* RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Shenzhen Leoch Power
Development Co., Ltd.) {j
FIETERERERAR) “ECZEARCH-A BEr AE#10,000,00070 HERMETH
ZHETHEREEERAR 3 September 2018 PRC* RMB37,030,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lithium
(Anhui Leoch New Energy battery
Development Ltd.)
(‘Anhui Leoch New Energy’) ()
R HERERERAR “Z-\ENA=H R AR #37,030,0007 RERHEREH
(MZEEBLHAER) ()
ZHEEBRERAF) 11 August 2021 PRC* USD35,000,254 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
ZHEEESERAH() ZZ-F)\At-H HE 35,000,254 7T HEAREEH
IHELMERNEERAF) 9 December 2021 PRC* RMB200,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
THEHHERREERA) “2”-E+ZRAR hE AR 200,000,007 HERMEEH
Leoch Battery Australia Pty. Ltd. 20 September 2019 Australia AUD200,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Australia Pty. Lid. ZZ-NAFARZTR M 200,000 7 HERREEN
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—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AEAIRERER (&

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries BERMBABRZER (&

(continued)

* PRC represents the People’s Republic of China which * FREEFREAREME SLARSEMS > A
excludes, for the purpose of this report, the Hong Kong BEFPESERITHE - PEURFPIFERITT
Special Administrative Region of the PRC, the Macau HekaE-e

Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan.

**  USA represents the United States of America. > EEEEFRESRE-

=* BV represents the British Virgin Islands. o RBEUHBIEEBREIEE-

()  Limited companies under PRC law. ()  REBEPEUEEMRILZBRAFC

(i) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law. (i) REBEPEUEEMRIULZINEEERZE-

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company ERINHEEZERAHAEEAFEES
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally BAFEYLAEREEFECEAIT D2
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial KRB ZMB AT - EEEBAMYHEM
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of B AR ZERD RERRBNR TR

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION RS ELAE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs, which comprise standards and
interpretations issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investeg).
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2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangement;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H
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2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 RBUEEE (45

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
IFRS 9, IAS 39, Reform-Phase 2
IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2027 (early adopted)

—O——— 110 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2021

AHEE (&

HEARERREH—BNBAS 2 EH#
AIHKRILHER()ZNB AR ZEE (BEB
B) &R (R HERE 2 MR E (i)
REmAE Rz RHABEER ; RHESS(FT
WRBZAREE (PIREERKEZA
AEERE @R E R EE Z EiREL
Bt o et Bt 2 E U e ST R AN S
Ringly  HIRAEEERLEAREEN
BRNEREEENDEERENIREBEH
wEE) -

22 B BERRIREFIE 2

)

FEBERFEMBREETFRAT TIE
ETBIIRR B S %R

BRI S 2R FIFEENE—
EIFR & 5+ RI%H395% F Bk
B BREA B 5 2E RSB 750E
R T ER S 2 R 55457
KBRS %R

F16SRAIEST A
Eillup s eaap 2t —E—#F
FI6ERIERT A NE=+H
Z BTN
YR B
R4



A N

A\

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR HisE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continueqd)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are
described below:

(@ Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16 address issues not dealt with
in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free
rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount
of financial assets and liabilities when accounting
for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of
the interest rate benchmark reform and the new
basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise
on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the
hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable
requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably
expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable users
of financial statements to understand the effect
of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management
strategy.

31 December 2021
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(@)

(continueq)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank
borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars
based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(‘HIBOR”) and United States dollars based on
the London Interbank Offered Rate (“‘LIBOR”)
as at 31 December 2021. The Group expects
that HIBOR will continue to exist and the interest
rate benchmark reform has not had an impact
on the Group’s HIBOR-based borrowings. For
the LIBOR-based borrowings, since the interest
rates of these instruments were not replaced by
RFRs during the year, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group. If the interest rates of
these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future
period, the Group will apply the above-mentioned
practical expedient upon the modification of
these instruments provided that the “economically
equivalent” criterion is met. Additional information
about the transition and the associated risks is
disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continueqd)

(b)

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March
2021 extends the availability of the practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions
for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30
June 2022, provided the other conditions for
applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier
application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment
on 1 January 2021. However, the Group has not
received covid-19-related rent concessions and
plans to apply the practical expedient when it
becomes applicable within the allowed period of
application.
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2.3 E AR E XN AYE R R
kS 2R

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements
{o IFRSs Standards
2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts®*

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 - Comparative Information?

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling
a Contract'!

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
llustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17

issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39
rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add
to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for
an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET 2.3 B nE MR E BV PR EF

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 was removed by the IASB in January 2016 and
a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-
mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is
not necessary. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply
to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start
of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET 2.3 B nE MR E BV PR EF

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate
at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET 2.3 B nE MR E BV PR EF

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfiling the contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfiling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date
of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
sets out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details
of the amendments that are expected to be applicable
to the Group are as follows:

° IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

o IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in lllustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TETEEHERME

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

—O——— 124 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2021

EHEHEEE (&

RIS 1R BB REHRE
BESE-BERASFETAEANR 55
EHEENE R EETIREENERE
Al BRTHET AR - A EBR I+ A
=+—BETHENFEREAS - HET
BELNS ERfEREMEENERES
BNk EResELBUNREELEMUME
Al RS HME AR EE B UE B HE
DECERPARI R EHEEN BRI @mPE
WAEESRESEEBUNIRSELBAE
Alle

BETY BB B AR IR AL B AL
REEEEBMUMER) IR REIEERETE
ERFELEN CREEEEMUAER) B
O 2R AREER > ARSI REBE B
SSEERERENENER AR -



A N

A\

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR HisE

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, structured bank deposits and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

24 FEEHHREMRE &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques

for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated
as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit
for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating
units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
@iy is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

M

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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31 December 2021
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8 — 10 years
Office equipment 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Tooling and equipment 3 -5 years
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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31 December 2021
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-
use asset which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of 48 years.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition as cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Computer software

Computer software of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Trademark

Trademark of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 8 years.

Licence

Licence of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.
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31 December 2021
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Properties
Plant and machinery

46 to 50 years
2 to 5 years
3 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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31 December 2021
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

ease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continueq)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in other
payables and accruals and other liabilities.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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31 December 2021
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR HisE

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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31 December 2021
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2021
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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31 December 2021
—E--—#+-H=+-0H

2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Derecognition of financial assets
(continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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31 December 2021
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are one year past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
bills payables, other payables and accruals, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as commodity future contracts to hedge its price
fluctuation risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2021
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions (continued)

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of certain industrial products for general repairs of
defects occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued) FRig# (&

e in respect of deductible temporary differences o  TEFRHBRARMRBEATNKE
associated with investments in subsidiaries BRI = 2R IR IEE AN
and associates, deferred tax assets are only MEMERP E R ERE 0 BERN A B8
recognised to the extent that it is probable SRFEE O B2k B R A A AR
that the temporary differences will reverse in THRI BRI ERE o

the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed NRERGHRTERELERIBEE ERVERE
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to B WWREETEE EMEFHREF B
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 2 EPSER IR AT IR IE AR IR B A A3 Lk o
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the RESBHRIERIEE ER N S R EHARER
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred P W AEH B S IE SRR m A IR EE 2 2P 3 &6
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting DA RIREIRIEE E R R ST o

period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the FERIEEEMEREIRESREIARERE
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when I AT EE MBI E ()S’zﬂ%/i) B E
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based IR B EEEIPENTERERREE

on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
government grant account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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31 December 2021
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TETHHEME (&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued) W iR (48)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) EER&#Wam (#B)

(@  Sale of industrial products (@ HEIXEMm
Revenue from the sale of industrial products is HETXERPWENEEZTT
recognised at the point in time when control of the BERRRERS —RARXNIEE
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on b o

delivery of the industrial products.

(b)  Sale of properties b) HEWE
Revenue from the sales of properties is HEYENKRERFIERERES R
recognised at the point in time when control of the REEREST o

ownership is transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from other sources B R an

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis WG RRRELLXREETHAOFHERRE
over the lease terms. o

Other income E i A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using B T B EUBEN T A /M T
the effective interest method by applying the rate that B StRZRETAS 0l fff A HA AR s B AT HA
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts E (HER) W IR EEITIRE RS E
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a IREREIIF RS o

shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial lattice model.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of the reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been maodified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continueqd)

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. In prior
years, the Company’s functional currency was RMB.
As at 1 July 2018, the Directors had re-evaluated
the economic environment of the Company and
determined that the functional currency of the Company
has been changed from RMB to USD given its major
funding and financing activities were raised increasingly
in USD. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

24 TEGETHRME (&

I

MHBREUARBES - NBREEFE > AR
BINHEEE B R ARE - RTZE—\FtA
—B > EFEEMNEETRBNEKIRE
MR UETTHEN T 2R EMBERHTE
R BORERFARATNEEBHAARE
BoRET - FEERZBERBITRERY
FEER AR BRENMBREREBUZIES
Bt B -AERERNSBRESHINER SR
MURZ EBHE BBRANEEREERCER
AERLUNESI BN ERMEEERER R
BRREHARNINEEREXME - BIEEE
EHE I E TR ETRIN AR PR

BRINBESE A ERIFERIRERE R
7 AN ERIRE INER R BESEN
FERBEERAEEAANBEE BVEXR
B -MBERAANBESENIFEREEESE
ZWmBENEES BAFEE AR
BEZ8) 2 W N EBENER S UATT (B
ARBERGBEENEEE @B
il 2 IRENIREERR e DRI E M
EEW IR PR

5 - BTEBREKAERAT 163 ——O—



O

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR HisE

31 December 2021
—E--—#+-H=+-0H

2 .4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEFHHEME &

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR HisE

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

31 December 2021
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXRGHHEREHET (&

JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic
life of the commercial property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial
property, that it retains substantially all the significant
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.

Tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Group
to make judgements on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and practices and makes tax
provisions accordingly.

The Group’s determination as to whether to recognise
deferred tax liability for withholding taxes from the
distribution of dividends from the subsidiaries in the
PRC according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is
subject to judgement on the timing of distribution of
dividends. The Directors had assessed whether it is
probable for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to distribute
dividends out of their profits earned after 1 January
2008. For details, refer to note 29 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2021
was RMB2,213,000 (2020: RMB2,213,000). Further
details are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(continueq)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 21 to
the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwil))

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles or unforeseeable change in legal
enforcement rights in future. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Usetul lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation charges for its intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of intangible assets of similar
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations. Management reassesses the
useful lives at each reporting date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of an inventory is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of a similar nature which could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the amount of recognition of inventory provision
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss was
RMB7,331,000 (2020: reversed RMB1,430,000) (note
6).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EATGEHHIEI KL 7B

JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax losses as
at 31 December 2021 was RMB386,479,000 (2020:
RMB177,586,000). Further details are included in note
29 to the financial statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2021, the best estimate
of the carrying amount of capitalised development
costs was RMB690,888,000 (2020: RMB622,325,000).
Further details are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance. The
information reported to the executive directors of
the Company, who are the Group’s CODM for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
performance, does not contain profit or loss information
of each product line and the executive directors review
the gross profit of the Group as a whole reported
under IFRSs. Therefore, the operation of the Group
constitutes one reportable segment. Accordingly, no
segment information is presented.

No segment assets and liabilities and related other
segment information were presented as no such
discrete financial information is provided to the CODM.

Information about products

An analysis of revenue by product is as follows:
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—E-—F TETEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT

Lead-acid batteries WEEEEM 9,249,219 8,324,213
Recycled lead products o] U 22 2,053,906 1,307,149
11,303,125 9,631,362
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

4. EDEER B

INFORMATION (continueqd)

Geographical information

(@)  Revenue from external customers

e &l

@ KEINEBEF I a

2021 2020
—E-—F TETERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

PRC e 7,094,708 6,325,994
Europe, the Middle East and Africa BN ~ R B8 K2 JEM 1,893,018 1,390,185
Americas EM 1,534,927 1,022,021
Asia-Pacific (other than the PRC) DAME (FEEFE) 780,472 893,162
11,303,125 9,631,362

Lt E R RN E R FIEM DT

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b)  Non-current assets b) FERBEE
2021 2020
—E—F TETERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
PRC == 2,715,069 2,750,088
Other countries/areas HMER e 537,803 523,813
3,252,872 3,273,901

FHIFRBEEEMNDERZSTEE
PRIEMI DT B BEER T ARIEIE
MIREE

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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—E—F+ZA=t+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. KEDHER (B
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about major customers ERTEEZRHNER
During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue REE_Z-_—F+ZHA=+—H1t
from continuing operations of approximately FE - FEKLEEBRRNZPIHNNOAR
RMB1,366,728,000 was derived from sales of recycled 1,366,728,0007c R Bo— % E—X A IHED
lead products to a single customer which contributed WitEmR (BiEn—HENEZE BN
to over 10% of the total revenue of the Group, including EHES| 2 THERHERE) »(fAEFA
sales to a group of entities which are known to be WARI0%U L REBEEZS-Z2FE+"A
under common control with that customer. During the =t+—HULEFE UEXREHE—FHAIH
year ended 31 December 2020, no revenue from sales SRR E BN ERAI10% A Lo

to a single customer amounted to 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME 5. Uik« Uk A Ut
AND GAINS
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WD -
2021 2020
T —F T
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Revenue from contracts with customers B R &#kE 11,303,125 9,631,362
Revenue from contracts with customers BRS8N
() Disaggregated revenue information €=

2021 2020

—E—F TETEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Types of goods aYER

Sale of industrial products HETHER 11,303,125 9,631,362
Timing of revenue recognition Uy 25 Tl R A P

Goods transferred at a point in time I EE R ELEE:E 2 59 11,303,125 9,631,362

5 - BTEBRKMAERAS 175 ——O—



O

Notes to Financial Statements BAFSER =R M1zt

31 December 2021
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME 5. Weam ~ MU R U &
AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers BEREHKE (&)
(continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) () WMmBEHAS (&)
The following table shows the amount of revenue TRINTRBEHVASHNEEAN
recognised in the current reporting period that M ER RS AEmRE 2 WmEEE

was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:

2021 2020
B —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Revenue recognised that was ARSI HNER
included in contract liabilities at the BB REIURE !
beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of industrial products HETHEERD 189,666 143,635

(i) Performance obligations (i) JBRIEL

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation for the sale of
industrial products is satisfied upon delivery of the
industrial products and payment is generally due
within 60 to 90 days from delivery, except for new
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required.

—O——— 176 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2021

ERAERERNSEZERBENT

HE T AR

HEITRERMNBOEENRIRE
Al (B B A HHEST60H Z=90H M
A R E P BT BERAAEER
Spe



ra¥h  \

A\

Notes to Financial Statements BAF83R =R MizE

31 December 2021
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME 5. Wz~ Eth A Rz
AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(i)

Perforrmance obligations (continued) (i)

Sale of industrial products (continued)

EREHNWE (&)

IBRIE T (&)

HEIXER &

2021 2020
—E-—F TECEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Other income and gains Hhg A K &=
Bank interest income HRITH]EUA 10,567 11,276
Government grants* B f 37,767 60,161
Dividend income from equity IEEABRANEBEEEE
investments designated at SFAHEMEEW R
fair value through other REmMRERBWA
comprehensive income - 672
Sale of scrap materials THE RN 7,594 4,016
Foreign exchange gains, net SMEEFE U 3 0 SR ER - 7,221
Gross rental income from investment BB LS E Y
property operating leases: T U ALERE -
Other lease payments, HMBEEN
including fixed payments BIEE TR 3,282 4,120
Fair value gains, net: RaBEWTE FEE -
Financial assets at fair value NABEEHTA
through profit or loss Bz EMEE - 10,309
Structured bank deposits ERBMIRITER - 1,276
Others Eh 25,011 9,309
84,221 108,360

The government grants represent various
cash payments and subsidies provided by the
local government authorities to the Group as
encouragement for its investment and technological
innovation. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these subsidies

B RAL T IE M S BN B PIsa T A &
BRI S RUE K AL DU R i
BRERAMAR - B EA M ZEH
REERIFHRHAEE-
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31 December 2021
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AW
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. MA@
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after ANEBWRANEF TN GEA) UUTFE
charging/(crediting): HE&EW !
2021 2020
—E-—F TETERE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT AREF T
Cost of inventories sold FREFEMA 8,355,437 7,132,172
Employee benefit expense EERAMY (BIEES
(including directors’ B (M4539)) :
remuneration (note 9)):
Wages and salaries TERHE 941,935 804,177
Equity-settled share option MHEREE R
expenses s 2,932 2,034
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET B 75,340 43,029
1,020,207 849,240
Amortisation of other intangible HittmpEE#H
assets except for deferred (IR 32 B ASBRSIM
development costs 18 17,501 17,843
Research and development costs:  FFEEALZS :
Deferred development costs 4RI R 2% Y A A
amortised* 18 181,778 165,504
Current year expenditure FRREX 239,446 172,720
421,224 338,224
Auditor’s remuneration RS 2,900 2,800
Financial liabilities at fair value N BEEEEE AIBE Y
through profit or loss: SEEE
Unrealised loss R 860 2,679
Realised loss BEIREE 72,273 23,265
Fair value loss from financial liabilities /\ @& &8+ A8z 2
at fair value through profit or loss, SREBEAR
net EEsE P 7 73,133 25,944
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31 December 2021
B2 —4%+Z“R=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. MRalaEA (&)
(continued)
2021 2020
—EZ—F —ECEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT ARBET T
Financial assets at fair value NABEEEFTAEBRLZ
through profit or loss: ETREE
Unrealised loss/(gain) FEREE (W) 8,114 (10,309
Structured bank deposits: ERMIRITER
Realised gain BRI R 5 - (1,276)
Depreciation of property, ME-BERREITE
plant and equipment 14 338,687 260,257
Depreciation of investment property & B2 E 15 11 11
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EFREEEITE 16(a) 10,467 11,161
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 W R E 21 23,761 12,252
Impairment/(reversal of impairment)  F& &~ G {E#[]) *
of inventories* 20 7,331 (1,430)
Impairment of goodwill EERIE 17 = 8,423
Loss on disposal of items of property, B &Y% HE K5 E
plant and equipment, net IEE KR PR 7 5,927 6,762
Foreign exchange differences, net ~ 4MNEMERZEXE > 558 11,532 (7,221)
Lease payment not included inthe ~ st ATRE&EFtEZ
measurement of lease liabilities HEN™ 16(0) 5,108 5,706

*

The amortisation of deferred development costs and
impairment of inventories are included in “Cost of sales” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

* EERER BB RFERES AL

mRMEER AR
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7. OTHER EXPENSES 7. HMBIX
An analysis of other expenses is as follows: HMFEZ 2T -
2021 2020
T —F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Foreign exchange differences, net HNPEDE R ERE ) FRE 11,532 -
Loss on disposal of items of property, EEYE BERRKREER
plant and equipment, net B518 > B RE 5,927 6,762
Fair value loss from financial liabilities at NABEEHTABGRN
fair value through profit or loss, net THEBENQNEEEE
RER 73,133 25,944
Fair value loss from financial assets at NABEEHTAEBGN
fair value through profit or loss, net TMEBEENRAEEEE
THEE 8,114 -
Others Hih 3,888 3,168
102,594 35,874
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BAFEALZN
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: SRR T -
2021 2020
—E—F “E2TEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEENE 103,058 120,692
Interest arising from discounted bills AIREREENFE 38,836 36,630
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEd B 1,980 958
143,874 158,180
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—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EX5fl&

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant R¥E EmHRA~ FERQBEHZE383(1)(@)
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of L)~ OFER AT BEEEFN@ERD R
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the FoEPIRB . FRNESMEANT ¢

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2021 2020
s
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRE ARBTT

Fees BE 597 639
Other emoluments: HAup =

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 2L R EYIEF] 1,562 1,630

Equity-settled share option expenses D A BRI R = 147 175

Pension scheme contributions BB HERR 76 66

1,785 1,871

2,382 2,510
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEM<$ (&)

(continued)
(a) Independent non-executive (@) BIEWITES
directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive PEIEMITES M2 HEWT

directors were as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
Mg
He 2 L) BhE
i REWEN SRENTL  BRER HEEEA g

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR

2021 ZE-F
Mr. Lau Chi Kit i 199 - - 17 - 216
Dr. Nan XinSheng Lk 199 - - - - 199
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan EMERE 199 - - 17 - 216
597 - - 34 - 631
2020 “ECEE
Mr. Lau Chi Kit Anpmrs 213 - - 29 - 242
Dr. Nan XinSheng BERELT 62 - - - - 62
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan EMELE 213 - - 29 - 242
Dr. Zhu Ping ReEL 151 - - 24 - 175
639 - - 82 - 721
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRTEEBIIERITES T EM
independent non-executive directors during the e (C2T2F 8o

year (2020: Nil).
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEfM% (&) \
(continueqd) \
\
(b) Executive directors (b) MITES
Salaries,
allowances Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
Mt
A 4 &EN ’fkE
g REWEY BREHTL  BRER HENHEA kS

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETR  AREBTR  ARETT ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR

2021 ZEC-%

Executive directors: yEs:

Dr. DONG Li EXfit - 762 - - 62 824

Ms. Yin Halyan IERL L - 800 - 113 14 927
- 1,562 - 113 76 1,751

2020 ZRIZE

Executive directors: BiIES:

Dr. DONG Li EE - 830 - - 61 891

Ms. Yin Haiyan skt - 800 - 93 5 898
- 1,630 - 93 66 1,789

There was no arrangement under which a director FRBREAEMESHENRRN

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration BEAMENDH CE2ZSF (8| o

during the year (2020: Nil).
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10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID 10.
EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included one (2020: two) director, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2020:
three) non-director, highest paid employees are as

hueE#HMNES

FRLLEeFNEES BF—8 (CF
T2 L ) B HERBNEE BRSO
O FM HEfls CZZF 1 =R) F
EFRzEREHMNESFHEFBENT -

follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F TETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR¥TF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ 2B R EYIEF] 4,735 3,415
Equity-settled share option expenses D m i E R ER 417 278
Pension scheme contributions RBAE B 67 16
5,219 3,709
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10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID

11

EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

10. B EEHMES (B

#HNB TR IFEENRSHMEEA

QI

Number of employees

EE A
2021 2020
—E-—F T TEFE
Nil to RMB1,000,000 AREBZTEAN

E2#£1,000,0007T 2 1

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR #1,000,001F
AR #1,500,0007¢ 1 1

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,001F
AR #2,000,0007¢ - 1

RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR #2,000,001F
A E#2,500,0007T 1 -
4 3

.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in this jurisdiction.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon,
and Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, are not subject to income tax
as these subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry out any
business in the British Virgin Islands.

1. FR15%

FEBBRAEERE NN EFMAAEE
PRERNEN A EEEFTEL BRI ENRE
REEHPRER-

RIEFR 28 SRR KRRE) » RATBAR
ZrRlEEEEBMMERFTSK

HRERBRERESEMRIINM B AT

(BMHonour Label~Peak Year » Shieldon
Catherine Holdings) IR & @R X B L R
S GE SRR PRI S E(E I
% At ZE W B A BB ERMPT S
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11.INCOME TAX (continued) 1. Frigi (&

Leoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is
21% (2020: 21%) on taxable income.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is based
on the statutory rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the
assessable profits of subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong.

The Singapore authority approved the application of
Leoch Battery Pte. for the Global Trader Programme on
24 May 2014 and it was renewed on 30 August 2019,
the effective period of which is from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2023. The provision for the current
income tax of Leoch Battery Pte. is based on the tax
rate of 10% (2020: 10%).

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC as determined
in accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law which was approved and became effective on 1
January 2008, except for certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the PRC which are taxed at preferential rates.
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31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

Jiangsu Leoch, Anhui Leoch Power, Anhui Uplus and
Anhui Leoch New Energy were designated as high-tech
enterprises by the PRC tax authorities and were entitled
to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the year 2021.

Taihe Dahua, which engages in qualified recycling
businesses, is entitled to a 10% deduction of revenue
from manufacturing qualified products with main

qualified raw materials.

The major components of income tax charge for the

year are as follows:

1. FRISH (&)

KRB TREE RRIE LR 2
D B I R B AR RS R
BRIABFRECE TEBERERE

A15% 0

AMBARELFTEEREINER IZ A
BRERTECERRMNEECERERF

1FUEEAT10% ©

FRPMSMAXNEZEME DU :

2021 2020

T —F “EZTTHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT ARBT T

Current — PRC BPHRRR TE— & 11,080 22,951
Current — Hong Kong B IE—& 8 (8,010) (10,300)
Current — Singapore BRER R 1B —FT 103 28,414 14,180
Current — USA BIHAIRIE — = 3,796 1,517
Current — Vietnam BN IE — it (3,574) 3,909
Deferred tax IRIETRIE (6,471) (8,569)
Total tax charge for the year FERRIEST H4EEE 25,235 23,688
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11.INCOME TAX (continued) 1. FriS (88)
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable BAREBARE D ABEAMATERZEERDN
to profit before tax at the statutory rates for the EEMRESENBERNRAN AR PTEIRE
jurisdictions in which the majority of the companies of SRR ERMRERGTENRIERZAEHERN
the Group are domiciled to the tax expense at effective e

tax rate is as follows:

2021 2020
& TETRE
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREBFT % ARETT %
Profit before tax MANEN] 191,964 161,652
Tax at the applicable tax G FERMEXTE
rates I8 43,775 22.7 42,243 26.1
Tax concession for certain &= T M /B AT HY
subsidiaries nsEE (29,407) (15.3) (29,309) (18.1)
Additional deductible KBS AT A0 R B 22
research and (53
development expenses (28,667) (14.9) (14,801) 9.2
Expenses not deductible A~ aJH1f3 B
for tax 1,983 1.0 450 0.3
Tax losses not recognised  REFEERHIRIEE 18 37,995 19.8 29,028 18.0
Tax losses utilised from BN ARIHA 2RI
previous periods &518 (444) (0.2) (3,923) 2.4)
Tax charge at the Group’s AR EBE R
effective rate MEAEN
M AR 2 25,235 13.1 23,688 14.7
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DIVIDENDS 12.18 2
2021 2020
bt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRE ARBTT
Final — Nil (2020: Nil) per share K-\ (CETEF | H) - -

The Company does not intend to declare the payment
of any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2021.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,357,821,402
(2020: 1,357,594,679) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

KA ERRBE_ S _—F+_A=+—
HIEFEEIKERFRARE

BRATEBEDIE AR

LEREF

SRERBNEENEG AR BEERD
BABGEEHENRFAREETEBERN
BT81,357,821,402 (ZZ -2 ¢
1,357,504,6791%) B2t E o

EREERNTEAND KGR EER
BN GEAREE RN EESE St BFTEN
EERNEFEEIEFAB B TEEREE

B EERERBNFAAERR) » UKk
BEREHEETE IS BRAIFERITESR
BAEEREEERITHEBRIMNETS
2o
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13.EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. B AR EBEmFFA AIE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY HEREN &)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERANTIRE TIBIRTH

are based on:

2021 2020
-
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTFR ARBTT

Earnings el

Profit attributable to ordinary equity ﬁHE’S%Jr%%H“ﬁZIKEzﬁﬁ%
holders of the parent, used in BRNZBABEBEER
the basic and diluted earnings FEAEBEEF

per share calculations

136,126 123,732

Number of shares
R &R
2021 2020
T —F “BIBF

Shares &1

Weighted average number of BRstBESREARF 2
ordinary shares in issue during FABETEERME
the year used in the basic earnings EHE

per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average e E - ZERMmE
number of ordinary shares: T8
Share options PR

1,357,821,402 1,357,594,679

2,400,353 92,127

1,360,221,755 1,357,686,806
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y3~ R E B8 1B
EQUIPMENT

Plant and Office Motor Toolingand  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
i £ BERKHE HAZRME HE IAK®ME ERIRE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AERFT ARBTR AR®TR AEBTR N S ARBTR AERFR

31 December 2021 —E--%+-A=1+-H
Cost: A
At 31 December 2020 and RIBZEE+°A=+—Hk

1 January 2021 “Z--F-F-H 1,151,754 2,638,918 48,179 52,190 217,014 115,377 4,283,432
Additions FE 11,393 144,725 5814 6,552 12,833 101,267 282,604
Transfers &g 4672 175,389 %2 568 2535 (183,906) .
Disposals RE (3,614) (27,240) (461) (5,823) (3,753) - (40,891)
Exchange realignment ERHE (6,446) (7,882) (225) (174) (324) (188) (15,239)
At 31 December 2021 RIE-—#+-B=+-R 1,157,759 2923910 54,049 53,313 288,305 32570 4,500,906
Acoumulated depreciation REHTERAE

and impairment:
At 31 December 2020 and RIBZZE+ZA=+-BkK

1 January 2021 Z2”-f5-B-H (313,524) (1,283,152) (34,593) (39,259) (239,620) (1,569) (1,911,717)
Depreciation provided FRITERE

during the year (55,071) (250,706) (5,684) (6,031) (21,195) - (338,687)
Disposals RE 517 21,113 449 3,810 1,001 - 21,580
Exchange realignment ERAZ 1,578 2,754 45 136 200 - 4,713
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-5+ZB=1+-H (366,500) (1,509,391) (39,783) (41,344) (259,524) (1,569) (2,218,111)
Net carrying amount: RE*E:
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-F+ZA=+-H 791,259 1,414,519 14,266 11,969 28,781 31,001 2,291,795
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. %R E R %E (&
EQUIPMENT (continued)

Plant and Office Motor Tooling and Construction
Buidings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
-t BER#HE HAZR AE IER®E TREIE &35t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR

31 December 2020 ZE-FE+ZA=+-H
Cost: A
At 31 December 2019 and RIB-NETZA=+-K

1 January 2020 “Z-EE-A-H 961,774 2,305,303 47,361 48,056 266,647 209,509 3,838,650
Additions HE 123,580 210,472 2,176 5,980 16,592 161,200 520,000
Transfers i 80,292 166,456 407 57 935 (248 147) -
Disposals RE (440) (30,085) (583) (1,567) (6,654) (6992) (46,301)
Exchange realignment ERER (13452) (13,248) (1,182) (336) (506) (193) (28917)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZE+°A=1+-H 1,151,754 2,638,918 48,179 52,190 277,014 115,377 4,283,432

Accumulated depreciationand ~ REFTERAE

impairment:
At 31 December 2019 and RIB-HE+ZR=+-k

1 January 2020 -E-z5-f-§ 015 (1121539 (32501) (35:326) (226,317) (1569 (1,687.399)
Depreciation provided ERIERE

during the year 46,153) (187,059) @67 5.491) (18883) - (260,257)
Disposals BE 184 2670 511 13% 5362 - 30,082
Exchange realignment EREE 2,597 2,770 68 223 198 - 5,856
At 31 December 2020 WoE-EE+-A=+-8 B35 (1283,152) (34,593) (39259 (239,620) (1569 (1911717)
Net carrying amount: RESE
At 31 December 2020 W-E-EE+-AZ+-8 838,230 1,355,766 13586 12,931 37,304 113808 2371715
At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s N2 —F+ZA=+—H > &x&EERE
buildings and machinery with a net carrying BEL AR 800,281,000 (CEZHE . A
amount of approximately RMB800,281,000 (2020: R 15628,945,0007T) & T1E&F Mi%2s BEIK
RMB628,945,000) were pledged to secure general HIEAAERER —RIBITREZIER B
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details KRB EF FR2 R BIRERWEE34 0

of the pledged assets, please refer to note 34 to the
financial statements.
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

15. 1B

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREF T
Cost: A
At 1 January and 31 December R—B—HBKk+=ZBE=1+—H 561 561
Accumulated depreciation: RETITE -
At 1 January »—A—H (205) (194)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ ERITEEHE (11) (1)
At 31 December R+ZHRE=+—H (216) (205)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HHEEE 345 356

The Group’s investment property represents one
(2020: one) industrial property in Mainland China which
was subsequently measured using the cost model.
The Directors have determined that the investment
property consists of one class of assets, i.e., industrial
property, based on the nature, characteristics and risk
of the property. The Group’s investment property was
revalued on 31 December 2021 based on the valuation
by management. Management has reviewed the
valuation assumptions and valuation results once a year
when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

FEENKREYEETEAMN—E (C=Z
T —E) TEYE ZFYEARER
PRAIEEET B - EREIRBEZERMEE
BRI ER BRREYFEH—BEE B
ITEYFR E-c~EEEREEERFR
WitE RTE-—F+-A=+—HH%K
BYRETEG -HEENAEEMBRS
et RIEEEBSF el AERRKREE
MR
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15. 18 EY= (&)
(continued)
The investment property is leased to a third party under ZEREYERBLESHERAL—RE=
operating leases. ak
Fair value hierarchy NREERER
The following table illustrates the fair value TREFFEBREMEN L AEBEFEE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment i
property:

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2021 using
RIEZ—F+ZB=+—HWAAEEHFEFER
Quoted

prices Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EiEmE BEAUHRR EAFTHER

wE AR BARE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(1) (258) (53@) st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETR ARETRT ARETR

Industrial property T - - 14,680 14,680

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2020 using
A TEEFEA+ A=+ —HHNLAEEFEFER

Quoted

prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs

mENE EAUER EATHEER
wME AR AR

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(FE1E) (%B2E) (%3E) 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEBTRT AR®BTT ARETRT AREBTR

Industrial property T - - 13,255 13,255
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

The fair value of the investment property is determined
using the comparison method with reference to
comparable sale evidence as available in the relevant
market. Comparable properties of similar size,
character and location are analysed and selected
for the investment property in order to arrive at a fair
comparison of its fair value. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the market unit sale rate.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
property, plant and machinery and other equipment
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 46 to 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of properties generally have
lease terms between 2 and 5 years, while plant and
machinery generally have lease terms between 3 and
5 years. Other equipment generally has lease terms of
12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

15.

16.

31 December 2021
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16.LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

16. 18

(#)

FEEEREEAN (B)

(@  Right-of-use assets (@ 1EHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use AEBEFEAEEENREERNERN
assets and the movements during the year are as BUEENUT -
follows:
Leasehold Plant and
land Properties machinery Total
HELH ME BREXRKES st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTR ARETRT ARETxT
As at 1 January 2020 AN _E_FE—-F—H 171,864 19,000 109 190,973
Additions "B 230 386 161 77
Disposal = (30,793) (1,053) - (31,846)
Depreciation charge NEER (3,760) (7,280) (121) (11,161)
Exchange realignment ERAR (453) (921) 55 (1,319)
As at 31 December 2020 and AZZIEE
1 January 2021 +_ﬁ_+ B&
£ —-%—HF—H 137,088 10,132 204 147,424
Additions B 7 16,886 203 17,096
Disposal HE - (43) - (43)
Depreciation charge NEER (3,049) (7,218) (200) (10,467)
Exchange realignment fE R R (501) (633) (16) (1,150)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—&
+-B=+-H 133,545 19,124 191 152,860

At 31 December 2021,

certain of the Group’s

prepaid land lease payments with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB38,998,000 (2020:
RMB49,168,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details
of the pledged assets, please refer to note 34 to

the financial statements.
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16.LEASES (continued) 16.10E& (&
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEREEAN (B)
(b)  Lease liabilities b)) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the HESENREERPNERNESHN
movements during the year are as follows: R
2021 2020
BT —F —EIE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—HNREE 11,131 19,426
New leases MHEE 17,089 547
Accretion of interest recognised FERERIN EILE

during the year 1,980 958
Payments N (8,975) (8,408)
Revision of a lease term arising from 8 & A~ 5] i §4 HA 75 g9

a change in the non-cancellable P& R IR BRIE 5T

period of a lease (32) (890)
Exchange realignment b 2 FR EE (725) (502)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZHA=+—H81

EREE 20,468 11,131
Analysed into: DWW
Current portion TRENES 4,046 6,032
Non-current portion IERBNZL 16,422 5,099
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEaBENEEH DT BRI ER
disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements. FMI5E39
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16.LEASES (continued) 16. 10 E& (&

The Group as a lessee (continued)

TEEFAEEAN (B

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (©) FEmAEEIFEIFRF BT .
to leases are as follows:
2021 2020
T —F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Interest on lease liabilities HEadd s 1,980 958
Depreciation charge of FRESENEER
right-of-use assets 10,467 11,161
Expense relating to short-term SIS E BRI
leases (included in cost of sales, Gt ASHER A IHE
selling and distribution expenses) K i8RasE) 5,108 5,706
Total amount recognised in P8 m A FE S B RIE 4B RE
profit or loss 17,555 17,825
(@) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in (@) MEMNREMELRERBENRHERE
note 33(c) to the financial statements. Ff5E33(c)
The Group as a lessor TEEESHEA

The Group leases its production and office premises
consisting of three production premises and nine office
premises under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was RMB3,282,000 (2020:
RMB4,120,000), details of which are included in note 5
to the financial statements.
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16.LEASES (continued) 16. 108 (&
The Group as a lessor (continued) TEBEERBEAN B)
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease N ZEC—FF+ZA=+—H BHEXER
payments receivable by the Group in future periods R E B 2~ Aol SR E R R
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants BRI ST -

are as follows:

2021 2020
—EZ—F “ETEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Within one year —FRN 3,503 3,485
After one year but within two years —F U EERFEUA 1,051 3,469
After two years but within three years ~ WS EB=F LR 1,035 1,028
After three years but within four years =& _FBIOELRA 1,002 1,021
After four years but within five years MEM FEBREUR 999 997
After five years AEM E 7,537 8,535
15,127 18,535

17.GOODWILL 17. 752
2021 2020
B % —EIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRT ARBTT

Cost and net carrying amount: A R AR TE A

1 January —HA—H 2,213 10,636
Impairment during the year FRHE - (8,423)
At 31 December ®»+=ZBE=+—H 2,213 2,213
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17.GOODWILL (continued) 17.
Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations
is allocated to the respective cash-generating units

(“CGUs”) for impairment testing.

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to
CGUs as follows:

‘e (&)
7B

BREZATWBNHECHEESERE
ELEEN (REEEEM) FRER-

NEEERSEFTEMZHEREENT :

2021 2020

—E—F “ETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF T ARBT T

Energymax Energymax 237 237
Taihe Dahua RMFHAZE 39 39
LBUK LBUK 1,937 1,937
Total st 2,213 2,213

The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management.

The key assumptions adopted on the growth rate and
discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are
based on management’s best estimates. The growth
rate of 3% (2020: 3%) is determined by considering
both internal and external factors relating to the CGUSs.
The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
are 15% (2020: 15%) for Energymax, 16% (2020: 20%)
for Taihe Dahua and 11% (2020: 11%) for LBUK.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of goodwill is based would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.
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31 December 2021 \

2 —F+"A=+—H

18. HithER & &

\
Deferred \\
Computer  development Customer
software costs relationship Licence Trademark Total
iR
B e AR ERMG faE [l b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETE  AREFr ARETR ARETT ARETn  ARET:
31 December 2021 2%
+-B=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2021, RIE_-&
net of accumulated amortisation —B—BNmME
MR 2,545 622,325 15,937 64,874 9,856 715,537
Additions RE 4,755 250,341 - - - 255,096
Amortisation provided during the year PS5t (2,141) (181,778) (1,467) (10,813) (3,080) (199,279)
Exchange realignment ERBEE (6) - (339) - - (345)
At 31 December 2021 RIE_-&
+-A=+-H 5,153 690,888 14,131 54,061 6,776 771,009
At 31 December 2021: RIZZ-F
+-B=1+-8
Cost A 23,998 1,446,872 21,053 108,126 26,148 1,626,197
Accumulated amortisation RitE (18,845) (755,984) (6,922) (54,065) (19,372) (855,188)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,153 690,888 14,131 54,061 6,776 771,009
31 December 2020 “ECEE
+-B=1+-8
Cost at 1 January 2020, RIZ-EE
net of accumulated amortisation —B—B8mME
NBRE5 1,499 562,002 18,226 75,687 13,569 670,983
Additions RE 2,575 225,827 - - 69 228,471
Amortisation provided during the year & i 5 & (1531) (165,504) (1,717 (10,813) (3,782) (183,347)
Exchange realignment ERER 2 - (672) - - (570)
At 31 December 2020 RIZ-ZE
+-B=1+-H 2,545 622,325 15,937 64,874 9,856 715,637
At 31 December 2020: RIBZEE
+ZA=+-H
Cost %N 19,261 1,196,531 21,637 108,126 26,148 1,371,603
Accumulated amortisation Koty (16,716) (574,206) (5,600) (43,252) (16,292) (656,066)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,545 622,325 15,937 64,874 9,856 715,537
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O

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR HisE

31 December 2021
—E--—#+-H=+-0H

19.EQUITY INVESTMENTS 19. 15 ERAABEEZEFHT A
DESIGNATED AT FAIR Hitn2ERmAEm K
VALUE THROUGH OTHER B
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2021 2020
—E-—F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBET T
Equity investments designated at EERANBEEHTA
fair value through other ET&EEH& i 1Y
comprehensive income: %
Unlisted equity investments, 3FJ:FE7F¢*’|“£&§ )
at fair value BAnEE 182,680 143,027

The above equity investments were irrevocably
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as the Group considers these investments to
be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed of part of its unlisted equity investments. The
fair value on the date of sale was RMB9,004,000 (2020:
RMB53,095,000) and the accumulated gain recognised
in other comprehensive income of RMB4,369,000
(2020: RMB40,770,000) was transferred to retained
earnings. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group did not receive any dividends from the
investments (2020: the Group received dividends of
RMB672,000).
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20.INVENTORIES

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

2021 2020
—E—F —E°F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRE ARBTT

Raw materials Rt 533,335 559,451
Work in progress TG 705,902 713,311
Finished goods B Al 780,019 504,142

2,019,256 1,776,904

As at 31 December 2021, inventories with the amount
of RMB7,331,000 were written down to their net
realisable value, while the amount of RMB1,430,000
of impairment of inventories was reversed at 31
December 2020 as disclosed in note 6.

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s
inventories with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB100,000,000 (2020: RMB100,000,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group. For details of the pledged inventories,
please refer to note 34 to the financial statements.

UM IE NS - —F+_H
=+—H £FEAARK7,331,0002EFE
WREHTEIRFE MR _E_SF+_
B=4+—8> &%~ AR1,430,0007c2F
B Ew D]

A BT —F+_A=+—H > AEEKRE
TREL AR 100,000,000 (CE-ZE: A
E #100,000,0007T) 2 & TFEEEEFIES
AEEER—RIBTRENEFR -AAEE
HEENHE AR EIRRMNE34

5 - BTEBREMARAT 203 ——O—



O

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR HisE

31 December 2021
—E--—#+-H=+-0H

21.TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. B R EWF1E

2021 2020

—E—F —E°F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Trade receivables B 5 IR 2,781,405 2,463,962
Less: Impairment provision B ORE RS (55,703) (44,286)
2,725,702 2,419,676

The Group grants different credit periods to its
customers. Credit periods for individual customers are
considered on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers
are required to make partial payments before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and closely monitors them
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
of RMB405,033,000 (2020: RMB244,949,000) were
under short term credit insurance and RMB69,434,000
(2020: RMB53,332,000) were under letters of credit.
In addition, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group pledged certain
trade receivables amounting to RMB365,908,000
(2020: RMB178,744,000) to banks with recourse
in exchange for cash (note 34). The proceeds from
pledging the trade receivables of RMB303,376,000
(2020: RMB152,010,000) were accounted for as
collateralised bank advances until the trade receivables
were collected or the Group made good of any losses
incurred by the banks. The details of the transfer of
factored trade receivables are included in note 40 to the
financial statements.
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—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

21.TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. B R EWETIE (&)

(continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 based on the invoice date,

A — 5
R —=—

T ERTECEF+"H=+—H

AYE 5 FEIGRRIEZEE SR B (GORRES1R M) 7Y

net of loss allowance, is as follows: BRES AT ¢

2021 2020

—E-—HF —ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR¥TF T
Within 3 months BB R 1,966,971 1,762,602
3 to 6 months RENENS 380,395 354,538
6 to 12 months 6E121EH 187,106 154,416
1 to 2 years 15826 111,608 110,550
Over 2 years 2FEL E 79,622 37,570
2,725,702 2,419,676

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

7

85 RIRIRER BB R HRNEEE I

2021 2020

—FT—F “ETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT AREFTT

At beginning of year REH] 44,286 32,034
Impairment losses (note 6) AERE (5E6) 23,761 12,252
Amount written off as uncollectible MEE AT Uk o] & 28 (12,344) -
At end of year RER 55,703 44,286

—=
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21.TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. B R WA (&

(continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).

REHRS BPRORARFEEREETRED
o LGt EFREEBIR - BERTILERE
MEARLIBEEANZERT R D EETD
#H (BIIE@IE ~ E iR R~ &P 8RR K st AR
KiERENEMEE R N RESLE)
AR B 8T - 2T 8 R R MRS
R EBRERNRS AP ENERBE

FI8 BRR M R AR RIS E R FRAN G2
KEISFEER - —fRME > B 5 BWEIAINE
HRiBE —F Bt B 51T ER) T LUMES -

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement
activity.

TREFIFEREABFEERESENESE
WA EERRER

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021 W_&E_—&F+_-_A=+—H

Current Past due Total
Ep&A bl st
Customers Customers
with credit Ordinary with credit Ordinary
enhancement customers enhancement customers
EERAN EERAN
xR LBER EF LBER
Expected credit loss rate FHEEBEX 0.15% 0.94% 0.70% 100.00% 2.00%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB’000) (NEETT) 2,093,745 448,003 192,586 47,071 2,781,405
Expected credit losses FHEEHE
(RMB'000) (NRETT) 3,044 4,232 1,356 47,071 55,703
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21.TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. B ZRIRFRIE (&)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2020 N ZECBF+_HB=+—H
Current Past due Total
BNER A 4Bt
Customers Customers
with credit Ordinary with credit Ordinary
enhancement customers  enhancement customers
EERAN EERAN
®R EEER ES BEER
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEE 0.04% 0.85% 0.55% 100.00% 1.80%
Gross carrying amount AREAE
(RMB’000) (NEETT) 1,892,031 383,461 148,936 39,634 2,463,962
Expected credit losses BHEEHE
(RMB’000) (NEEF ) 678 3,258 816 39,534 44,286

22 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT FAIR 22.’&%&1?@%@3?]\ Hiih%
VALUE THROUGH OTHER HWNENEFRKE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The balances as at 31 December 2021 and 31 N ZE I —F+ZA=t+—HRZZEIEF
December 2020 represent bills receivable held by the +2 B =1+—HHE&GIEAERFBENA
Group which were measured at fair value through other nEEESH T AEMEERENEREE
comprehensive income, since the bills receivable were FERARNEREZRFEBNEEGHIRE
held within the business model whose objective was MERHETHEESBNEXEEN TR
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and B MeaReEneEaZNrERER
selling the financial assets, and the contractual cash KEHIF S o

flows were solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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22.DEBT INVESTMENTS AT FAIR 22.
VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(continued)

The ageing analysis of bills receivable presented
based on the issue date at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 is as follows:

KABEET AR ME
HER@mNERHRE (&)

T ==
A= BRERAREIERE
SRE DT -

2021 2020
—E_—F —ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Within 3 months 3MEA N 7,017 34,805
3 to 6 months REE)=! 74,955 134,947
6 to 12 months 6ZE12{EH 24,377 27,376

106,349 197,128

The net gain on changes in the fair value of the debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income amounting to RMB1,683,000 (2020: loss
RMB776,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income during the
year.
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23.PREPAYMENTS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER

23. JRISTRIE « Efth FEULRRIE
HthWEE

ASSETS

2021 2020
—E—F —ECSF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Prepayments A RRIE 187,952 211,905
Deposits and other receivables Sl REMERRIE 30,515 56,555
Loans to employees AREEFEHNER 2,888 5,508
Interest receivables FEUF) B 2,114 2,091
223,469 276,059
The financial assets included in the above balances A4S BRFT B R Y RS E B T BB 4D
relate to receivables for which there was no recent LR Ra AT IER N B —FE R _E
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 ZFEF+ZHA=+—H F~EBEGHFEIERE

December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was KEAKo

assessed to be minimal.
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31 December 2021
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24.FINANCIAL ASSETS/ 24. N BEEEFFT ABGEN
LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THEE &8&
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2021
—E-—HF
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETR

Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ _EH#EHEMERE  RAMEE 134 -
Commodity future and option EmiiE RIS A
contracts, at fair value BARBE - 851
Other unlisted investment, at fair value ~ EMhIE EHRE A BE 67,664 -
67,798 851
2020

—EIEF
Assets Liabilities
BE =N
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETRT

Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ _EHEREMRE A REE 265 -
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value JF E R R E B ARERE 8,563 -

Commodity future and option EmiiE RIS A
contracts, at fair value BAnEE - 2,679
Other unlisted investment, at fair value ~HMIF EHIRE W AREBE 67,084 -
75,912 2,679
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24.FINANCIAL ASSETS/

LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

The above equity investments were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
they were held for trading.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as commodity future and option contracts, to manage
the lead price fluctuation risk, which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting and are measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

The above other unlisted investment was the right to
receive the proceeds from future sales of the properties.
It was mandatorily classified as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

24. R EEZHET ABmAY

ﬁnﬁ:bf)z/%f /nﬁ)

i D LS IR ATy S 55 B E
REHIERAR AR AN BERDH AR
NEMEE

AEEGBTESRT R flEmE
SN EIEENE &@]ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬂi%
MTARREHPEF 2% HEt 8%
AIEANMEBEEE I AIBmETEe

DA B b A T MR SR 8 e
ISEIAIER] - R R EWRBRHI DA —E

ARBEEFHFABDNESMEE ILTHH
REGHREMBIIFBRAET KF SN
o
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31 December 2021
2 —4%+°"H=+—H

25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

25. IR F KR 1T 45 BR AR B B

=+,
AND TIME DEPOSITS EZA
2021 2020
—E—F —ETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Cash and bank balances B KIRIT4 R 349,229 387,148
Time deposits EHTERR 602,513 461,353
951,742 848,501
Less: Pledged for interest-bearing bank 78 : Eftst BIR1TEEIKIF
borrowings (4,269) (4,394)
Pledged for bills payable Tt e (R IR 4 (440,448) (387,308)
Pledged for letters of credit ERLE BEIRE (157,796) (69,656)
(602,513) (461,353)
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 349,229 387,148
Denominated in RMB UAER®E 794,299 609,215
Denominated in US$ KETEHE 63,627 150,838
Denominated in HK$ MUABTEHE 48,508 30,445
Denominated in Indian Rupee HENEELLEHE 9,582 30,231
Denominated in Malaysian Dollar (‘MYR”) LUEZRFALE S H
(TERAEELH) 5HE 3,002 3,628
Denominated in Singapore Dollar (‘SG$”) LUFTNNK T (M) sHE 2,919 1,593
Denominated in Euro (‘EUR”) LBt T (TBR7Tl) 5HE 16,252 13,406
Denominated in Australian Dollar (‘AU$") LUR T (BR7T)) 5HE 7,526 6,389
Denominated in Viethamese Dong (‘VND”) Wi /& (T#RE)) st1E 4,074 2,622
Denominated in Sri Lankan Rupee T BB FELSHE 1,953 134
951,742 848,501
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25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

26.

AND TIME DEPOSITS
(continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

25. IR KR 1T4EBR A B B B

7™ (48)

ARBRGEBRRRIEING > 28T > Rz
B SN S HIR G S A4S EE ~ EE R AT EEEER
B AEREAEBZBRERTRARER
BRIEINBLUEITINE RS

FRIRTRIR SR E B IRTERAIRATE)
BRBIF S - EEERTERZ FRAE—
BE=ZERA % RYEERZERREE
RME & BIREHFEMARERA B iR
TSR R E R T R i B 15
BRFAVIRTT -

26. B 5 R RIA R BT R 15

2021 2020

—E—F —E°F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT ARBET T
Trade payables B ENRIE 962,108 958,829
Bills payable FEAT =4 1,357,143 1,180,560
2,319,251 2,139,389

— = —
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—EFR — BIEBRRHERAR 213 —O—



O

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR HisE

31 December 2021
—E--—#+-H=+-0H

26.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26. B S E(IHIENRENERE
(continued) (#&)

RIREIR > B R AIRBRE RIERE
FHHARERRE DTN -

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Within 3 months 3MEB N 940,531 1,045,250
3 to 6 months 3ZE6E A 396,338 529,456
6 to 12 months 62124 966,295 544,995
110 2 years 1224 10,052 15,224
2 to 3 years 2E3F 1,815 3,779
Over 3 years B3 E 4,220 685
2,319,251 2,139,389

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 90-day terms. All the bills
payable have maturity dates within 365 days. As
at 31 December 2021, bills payable amounting to
RMB637,180,000 (2020: RMB496,420,000) were
issued on intercompany sales transactions within the
Group and these bills were discounted to banks for
short term financing.

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s bills
payable were secured by the pledge of certain of the
Group’s time deposits amounting to RMB440,448,000
(2020: RMB387,303,000) (note 34).
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BEENAHRIBATRE  B—RAEROH
NZT B RN RIEHEIN3658 N EIff -
N_E-_—F+"_A=+—H0 ' &~&£@5
EERARBETHHERZETEEES
ANER1637,180,0007t (ZEZZF | AR
496,420,0007T) IFET > B2 S ZHAL
IRFIRITIEITHARE o

R TEC—F+"RA=+—R ' &xEEET
RN SRR A EE TR AR 15440,448,000
7T (2 TEF 1 ARHE387,303,0007T) BYE
TEMEROEIRERR (5E34)



ra¥h  \

A\

Notes to Financial Statements BAF83R =R MizE

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

27.0THER PAYABLES AND 27. HEN R IBE R FEst & H
ACCRUALS
2021 2020
Notes _;M—B’OOO _;IfM_B?zOO

Py EE ARBFRE ARBTT

Provision for social insurance and #+ & 1R K2 3B RAE R 1

retirement benefits 168,652 155,587
Contract liabilities BREE @) 194,424 189,666
Accrued expenses FEstRE X 162,381 140,548
Accrued payroll fEst T & 50,344 49,643
Payables for purchase of items of BBE Y\ BE KR HE

property, plant and equipment BB BIFE =18 128,324 132,379
Provision for product warranties SR iRIE S 18,968 17,057
Tax payables other than current  FE{FFRIE (BNHBFF1EHR

income tax liabilities I=EEEU) 174,358 189,321
Payables to ANEIZ 2Lk e

non-controlling shareholders 36 94,835 46,898
Others Hith (b) 85,017 62,875

1,077,303 983,974
Notes: Mk -
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @ FEHESHNEGEHFEUT!
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—f& —mo=mg
+=B=+—-B +=A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBETIT
Short-term advances received from customers BEINE F iR
Sale of goods HEEY 194,424 189,666
Contract liabilities are short-term advances received to BHEEANRN IEERBKRZIGHR
deliver industrial products. o
(o)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed (o) HEMRIBEARFE B EEEERER

terms of repayment.
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31 December 2021
2 -F+ZA=+—8H

28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK

BORROWINGS

28.:tBIR1TEE

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Z5--%+ZB=1+-H ZEZEE+IA=1-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BIRAIE(%) 58 AEBTR BRAIZE%) il ARBTR
Current ik |
Interest-bearing bank HERTEE FER 1.88 to 7.09, 2022 1,001,485 3.24107.09, 2021 1,083,530
borrowings, secured HIBOR+2.76% to kS HIBOR+2.76 to ZEC-E
HIBOR+3.25% HIBOR+3.25
1.88%7.09+ 324F7,09°
HIBOR+2.76%% HIBOR+2.76%
HIBOR+3.25% HIBOR+3.25
Collateralised bank advances, RPN BHE 20010 4.79 2022 303,376 22910 4.79 2021 152,010
secured 200%4.79 ZEIZE 2.09%4.79 “EI-F
Interest-bearing bank FEROBE FER 1.80 t0 6.00 222 549,003 3.00105.00, 2021 339,105
borrowings, guaranteed HIBOR+2.5% b ot HBOR+2.5 “ET-F
1.80£6.00 3.00%5.00,
HIBOR+2.5% HIBOR+2.5
Current portion of long term RERTHEETEND BER LIBOR+2.70 2022 188,539 LIBOR+2.70 2021 192,321
bank borrowings, guaranteed b S 3 _ET-F
Interest-bearing bank FEREE BHE - - - 10010720 2021 13,880
borrowings, unsecured 1.00%7.20 FT-F
2,042,493 1,760,846
Non-current [k
Interest-bearing bank SERTES BiEE 1.88 10 6.10 2023-2028 65,883 1.88107.90 2022-2028 75,645
borrowings, secured 1.88%6.10 ZECCEE 1.8827.90 “EICEE
“Bo)\E ZEI0\fF
Interest-bearing bank HERTES FER 3.00 2023-2025 12,445 3.00 2022-2025 18,043
borrowings, guaranteed ZRIZEE S 3
k- k-2 _B21f
Interest-bearing bank SFERTEE FER LIBOR+2.70 2023 251,385 LIBOR+2.70 2022-2023 448,750
borrowings, guaranteed b St “ETTEE
“E°CE
329,713 542,438
2,372,206 2,303,284
Denominated in RMB MARB:E 1,109,735 1,036,869
Denominated in US$ WETsHE 806,231 806,436
Denominated in HK$ WATEE 397,739 403,098
Denominated in SG$ bEhcatE 35,054 35,064
Denominated in MYR NERATLENE 17,070 13,029
Denominated in YND MidEEsHE 6,377 8,798
2,372,206 2,303,284
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31 December 2021

—®-—f+-A=1—8

28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK 28. 5t RIR1TEE (&
BORROWINGS (continued)
Analysed into: DT
2021 2020
—E—F —ETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
Bank loans and advances repayable: B LU T HAEEER
ﬁE?‘Igm}\&ﬂm
Within one year —FRN 2,042,493 1,760,846
In the second year = 297,719 229,312
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BE-FEFHE
BEEEME 29,971 309,124
Beyond five years AFE 2,023 4,002
2,372,206 2,303,284

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the AEENIRTEEU TSR NIZRER
following pledge or guarantees: N

MIBTEEUANEREEBEARKE
1,309,456,0007C (ZZ2ZZF | AR
961,251,00070) MEEEHVERR (1?
PFIEE344 ) ; IR

()  pledge of the Group’s assets with a total value of 0]
RMB1,309,456,000 (2020: RMB961,251,000) for
the bank borrowings as disclosed in note 34; and

FEBRNATRIBIEERER

(i)  cross guarantees executed by companies within (i
the Group.
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31 December 2021
—E--—#+-H=+-0H

28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK 28. 5t RIR1TEE (&

BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group entered into a three-year term loan facility
agreement amounting to US$100,000,000 on 7 May
2020, as supplemented on 28 January 2021 (the
“Facility Agreement”) with certain financial institutions
(the “Lenders”).

Under the Facility Agreement, there are specific
performance obligations on Dr. DONG Li, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, not to cease to own,
directly or indirectly, at least 51% of the beneficial
interest in the Company, carrying at least 51% of the
voting right, free from any security. Further, Dr. DONG
Li shall not cease to have management control over the
Company or cease to be the Chairman of the board of
directors of the Company. At the date of approval of
these audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021, such obligations have
been complied with.

Several of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries
were parties who act as guarantors, and the entire
equity interests in two wholly-owned subsidiaries were
pledged, to guarantee punctual performance of the
Group’s obligations under the Facility Agreement.

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding term loan
balance under the Facility Agreement amounting to
US$70,000,000 (equivalent to RMB439,924,000), of
which RMB188,539,000 and RMB251,385,000 are
repayable within one year and second year respectively.
The term loan bears interest at LIBOR+2.7% per
annum.
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TERR _ S _SERATHAE TSR
18 (TRERA) 57373 %84%100,000,000% 75HY
—FHEFMERSE YN _E_—%F—8H
THN\BEmEER IR (RERED)

RERE R BREBNED FEFEL
(FRBERIRER) NMERIEHE (BN
B AABEDS1 % EmiEm (HELD51%
AURRNE) (RHMEMHES) o ttoh EF B+
MR IR AR EREF A HIE
FABNEFEEIRE -NMEZFBE"T
Tt R=1T—HLFELEZEEY
BB BEEEERFEET-

FARETEENBAGIERERA—T
W WEEENBARNEHREFRE
R AEEERBETHREWRE TS
f£o

N2 —F+ZRB=+—H MERZEE
TERERTEHEMRAERR470,000,000% 7T

(FRE N AR #439,924,0007T) > EH AR
#&188,539,0007T K A K #5251,385,00075 53 5!
BER—FRE_FNEE THERSER
LIBOR+2.7%5T & °
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31 December 2021
%+ ”"HA=+—H

29.DEFERRED TAX 29. IRIETRIA

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities FRNIRIERIBEE K S ENEFBEROT :
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets RIETRIAE &=

Change in fair Change in

Depreciation value of debt fair value of

and Equipment investments financial

Provision for impairment invested in at fair value liabilities

impairment of property, subsidiaries  through other Unpaid Provision for Deferred at fair value

of trade plant and with revalued  comprehensive payrolland  impairment of Unrealised government through
receivables equipment Tax losses amounts income accruals inventories profit grants profit or loss Total

AEESE AAEESS

% BER SEAEGYN  HARMRE HARER

ERENTE RENER RENKERR WEHERRE FHTER £RAMAN
AEsE A i ] Hafk  NOAGEEEE WHER  GRAESR AERER  OEBREE  DABEES &5t

RVB00 RVBO0O RVB00 RMB00 RMBIO0D RMBI00D RMBI00D RMBIO0D RMBIO0D RMBIO0D RMBO00
ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTm  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETm  ARBTm  ARETm  \RETm

(Gross defored tax assefs RIZ-PE+ZAZ1-8

t 31 December 2019 end kZE_%F-A-HH

1 January 2020 EEREEESE 5610 1949 16,59 2,091 353 6471 3818 8,794 501 546 51,293
Defered ta credited/(charged) ERGA/ (IRE) BEEN

tothe statement of proft or iz

loss during the year 3,063 808 1,701 (712 - 4634 (259 1,569 2849 (2r8) 10,287
Defered tax credited fo ERAR BN

other comprehensive inoome EERE

during the year - - - - 194 - - - - - 104
(oss Cefered tax assefs RIBZBETZAZH-A

81 Decenber 2020 and kB -£-A-AH

1 January 2021 EEHEEESE 8673 2,751 1829 1379 547 11,105 3,554 722 7920 268 61,724
Defered tax redited{charged) ERGA/ (ORE) BRRN

tothe statement of proft or iz

loss during the year 2,854 (1.459) 2,983 (12 - (682) 1,674 2176 (1,691) (183) 4,960
Deferred tax charged to ERfIRaRM2ENEN

other comprehensive income e

during the year - - - - (421) - - - - - {#21)
(Gross Cefered tax assefs [ o

at 31 December 2021 WERHEEREE 11,527 1298 2219 667 126 10423 528 9401 6,229 8 66,263

5 - BTEBREKAERAT 219 ——O—



O

Notes to Financial Statements BAFSER =R M1zt

31 December 2021
E—H+°"HA=+—H

I AY ——
29.DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. IRIETRIA (B)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAEE

Change in fair

value of equity Change in fair

investments value of

designated Fair value financial

atfairvalue  Changeinfair  adjustments assets

Capitalised  through other value of arising from at fair value

interest  comprehensive structured  acquisition of through

expense income  bank deposits subsidiaries profit or loss Others Total

eyt
MBEEES
HAHM

2EREH Wi AREEER

BultRE GRlt  WEQAEE  HAREM

BEMLY  WAARE  ROERN 2DABE SREEM
HERX £5 2aRELH 2% 01EEZS Hft it
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

(Gross defered tax liabifties RIE-NE+ZR=1-A

at 31 December 2019 and RZZZEE-F-HN

1 January 2020 BEREAALE 5143 19,768 119 24,650 14,034 1% 64,238
Deferred tax charged/[credited) ERNBE/ GHA) BERN

to the statement of proft or ERERE

loss during the year (1,299 - (19 (3642 2,187 3,991 1,668
Deferred tax credited to ERFALMRENEN

other comprehengive income EEiRE

during the year - (10,328 - - - - (10,328)
Exchange realignment EREE - - - ) - - (79
(Gross deferred tax liablties RIZZERE+IE=+-H

at 31 December 2020 and RZZT-E-B-HH

1 January 2021 BEREARLE 3844 9460 - 20942 16771 4486 55,503
Deferred tax charged/[credited) ERIIRE/ GHA) BREN

to the statement of proftt or ERERE

loss during the year (1,299 - - (3,695) 144 3338 (1,61
Deferred tax credited to ERALM2ENEN

other comprehenive income EiERE

during the year - (659 - - - - (659
Exchange realignment EREZ - - = 61) = . (&)
Gross deferred tax iabiities RIEZ-F+ZA=1-H

at 31 December 2021 ELREEREE 2,546 8,801 - 17,196 16,915 7824 53,282
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29.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB386,479,000 (2020: RMB177,586,000) that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on
the dividends declared by the companies established
in the PRC to their foreign investors out of their profits
earned after 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding
tax rate may be applied when the immediate holding
companies of the PRC subsidiaries are incorporated or
operate in Hong Kong and fulfil the requirements under
the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and
Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future and therefore, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised as at 31 December 2021 and
2020. As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB756,158,000 (2020:
RMB713,620,000).

29.

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

EIERRIA (4
IEER AR ()

AEEBRFAEANMELERBEBBEAR
#386,479,0007c (CZE-TF . AR
177,586,0007T) * &%k I8 A 71 5 A9 AR HR $E 8
KRR N c AR ZEBIBIIHERSIR
— R BB ABIPTES » # FRLILRE
RIFIERIEE & RAEB AT KA BER FEF
HUEA A A B AR TR RS 1B °

RPENINABRESIINCEETIRE
TEN\F—A—HERIBGF RS-
10%BYFE R AR o B TR P S A62 o fisf o B B
BRABINWEEIER AT DN EBEMA L
REBEEENSTRAEETENRBBER
HERE » BIFEFS% B TRIN IR EK

B —F+_B=+—H TERLE
& 7E FR B A 3t A 32 B BT B A B) BI A BE HH 2R 7
(CESMIEING) B HTEINRERIELER
B BEERA ZEWBABER REEHRAR
AAEDERMN MR 2 —FKk_FT
TEF+ A=+ —HIURMUICHESRIELER
BHaF RN _E-_—F+-/A=+—H#H
A AR B P LB B R B RV B A R AL A Lt
IR IEE BN RS ERRES L
A ARIE756,158,00070 (CE_EF AR
713,620,0007T) ©
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31 December 2021
E—H+°"HA=+—H

30.SHARE CAPITAL 30. fg &
Shares B {7
2021 2020
—EZ—F ZEIEF
Authorised: VERE
10,000,000,000 (31 December 2020: 10,000,000,000 (ZE_&4
10,000,000,000) ordinary shares of +ZA=+—H":
HK$0.1 each (HK$'000) 10,000,000,000) A& A%
EE0. 1B THNEER
(F%E7T) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRME :
1,357,854,666 (2020: 1,357,644,666)  1,357,854,666/8 (— T T4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 1,357,644,6668%) =A%
(HK$’000) EE0. 1B THEER
(F%E7T) 135,785 135,764
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARETT 116,241 116,224
A summary of movements in the Company’s share RN B RASEENBALT -
capital is as follows:
Number of
shares in Share
issue capital
BRITRHEE R s
Note RMB’000
B 5% ARET T
At 1 January 2020 RZE2-ZF—HF—H 1,357,521,666 116,213
Exercise of share options T1ERERR ) 123,000 11
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZEF+"HA=+—H 1,357,644,666 116,224
At 31 December 2020 and KR_B_ZBHE+_A=+—R~
1 January 2021 rRZEZ—%—HF—H 1,357,644,666 116,224
Exercise of share options 1T1ERER 1 210,000 17
At 31 December 2021 R_E2_—F+"A=+—H 1,357,854,666 116,241
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30.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

31

Shares (continued)

()  The subscription rights attaching to 210,000
share options were exercised at subscription
prices ranging from HK$0.20 to HK$1.02 per
share, resulting in the issue of 210,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of RMB123,000. An amount
of RMB167,000 was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account
upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and

the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 31 to the financial statements.

.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme include the Company’s directors
and other employees of the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme became effective on 1 June 2010 and
expired on 31 May 2020.

30. i 7s (&)

31.

15 ()

) 210,0001%

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

BRIEBNSSEECKRE

BE T F0.208 7T E1.028 TR BB BT
188 > B BE47210,00008 T RS E{E0. 1078

TTHYRRLD »

RN AVBIR S ER

AR123,0007T ° fERREE T 6% > A
R1167,0007cAN BB R EFHBEEE
Rt s ERRA °

RE R

A BRI B RIREZ S BT 2B
Itz s IR A B R AR M EE31

fshctEstEl

BERAREERBIRESE

KTRBBTERAREEAERESE (B
RLoRBEMBRESE)) EEAETEER
WA EEFHEMNGER A TREH

G EIE TN =R

NRABERBRESING

BERATERETIRANESRAEENH

A—

~N—=

FEEERiEAR S8

—FERA—BER AR - F-FERA

thES -BRA
=t+—REme
B

—=
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is available to the
directors and employees (whether full time or part time)
of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be 60,000,000 shares,
representing approximately 4.5% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately after the
completion of the global offering, taking no account of
the exercise of the over-allotment option.

The subscription price in respect of each share under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is determined by the
board of directors at its discretion and set out in the
relevant offer letters provided that it should not be less
than the nominal value of the shares.

After 28 October 2010, no further options will be
offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme but in other respects the provisions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and
options which are granted on or before 28 October
2010 may continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of issue.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

Any exercise of an option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is subject to conditions as may
be specified in the offer letter in respect of the grant of
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year:

31.

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

BizEstE (B

BRAREERBRESE (&

TEREE R ARE SR BREST BIE LAY
FERR RELUR BB AR I BV B AT BRI 1 P 51 BR 2 AP
o

Rt I TR AEEERN UZAR
BHRKRREAE LR

RENBRAREERERESEITE N EE
TTEREEARAEL T

2021 2020
—E-—-F —EEF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

Ty AT
TEE  BREHE TEE BREHE

HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share '000
skET T4 BRET )
At 1 January w—A—H 1.17 6,490 1.34 9,153
Exercised during the year FRTH 0.20 (80) 0.20 (123)
Forfeited during the year TR 1.03 (468) 1.83 (2,540)
At 31 December W+_B=+—H 1.19 5,942 1.17 6,490

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares at the dates on which the options were
exercised during the year was HK$0.45 per share.

FRRRBERMINBREETEHRAZME
TR EAER045BTT

5 - BTEBRRKAERAT 225 ——O—



O

Notes to Financial Statements BAFSER =R M1zt

31 December 2021
—E-H+ZA=+—H1

31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

(continued)

31

Movements in the Company’s share options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year are as

BizEstE (B8

BRAREEMBRESE (@)

FR RABNER LA ERRERIES S
TE BB ET ¢

follows:
Number of share options
BRiEYE
Date of Exercise
At Exercised  Forfeited At grant period Exercise
Name or category of 1 January during during 31 December of share of share price of
participant SEEHLYER 200 theyear  theyear 2021 options options  share options  Vesting period
®
| 3%
3 128 BB
-B-B  Eafif  EARM  =t-B RHB® BRECED BRECRE BES
HKS per share
SRR
Director B2
Ms. Yin Haiyan {53 150,000 - - 150000  1June2010  1June 201210 1.200 (1) agrantee i entiied to exercise 25% of the total number of options granted at any time during
Z2-ZE 1My 202 the 10 years after the second anniversary of the date of offe (the *Offer Date”) of the options
7~A-H “E-°% with the relevant vesting period from the Offer Date up to the date immediately before the
7A-HE second anniversary of the Offer Date;
IEIIE () REABENERERORS (ZHEH) 3 BEAHERRRAREERRRELY
iR 2% MBS AR RRENEBE_BENERL;
=+-H
(2) agrantee is entied to exercise an aditional 25% of the total number of Options granted at
Other employees HitfES it 6,340,000 (60,0000  (468,000) 5792000 1June2010 1June20i2to  0.400-2.000 any time during the 9 years after the third anniversary of the Offer Date with the relevant vesting
in aggregate Z2-ZE 31 My 202 period from the Offer Date up to the date immediately before the third anniversary of the Offer
7~A-H 3o Date;
7RA-HE (@ FEAREREOORZ=BERNERRROREERRRRAN B, TEE
S BEENENNBEERERNAEECARAEAL;
iR
=+-A (3) agrantee i entied to exercise a further additional 25% of the total number of Options granted
at any time during the 8 years after the fourth anniversary of the Offer Date with the relevant
vesting period from the Offer Date up to the date immediately before the fourth anniversary of
the Offer Date; and
(3 REABRREADBEMEFE )\ FNRRTICEREREGH BRI 5 i
FERRLENEREIRERANMEMEREAL R
(4) a grantee is entied to exercise the remaining 25% of the total number of Options granted at
any time during the 7 years after the fifth anniversary of the Offer Date, with the relevant vesting
period from the Offer Date up to the date immediately before the fith anniversary of the Offer
Date.
() ARABRNEARSERRER L ERBROECEERRREH 2 Hios MEE
BEANEARREE RN RN REEAZAL:
6490000 (80000) (468000 542000
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the Pre-IPO
Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2021 are

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

31.MBAR st 2l (4
HRARYEABREN D (4

RIE_—F+_A=+—HEKXTENE
RARBEMBRENITEERITERN

as follows: T

Exercise price
Number of options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE 1TfEHA
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2012 to 31 May 2022

0.40078 7T TE-_FERB—HE_E-__F#HEA=1+—H
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2013 to 31 May 2022

0.4007 7T TE-—ZFEXNB—HE_E-__F#HEHA=1+—H
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2014 to 31 May 2022

0.4007 7T —E-NEANB—HE_E-__FHEHA=1+—H
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2022

0.4007 7T TE-AEANB—HE_E-__F#HEHA=1+—H
17,500 HK$0.600 1 June 2014 to 31 May 2022

0.6007 7T —E-NEANB—HE_E-__FHEHA=1+—H
42,500 HK$0.600 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2022

0.6007 7T —E-AEANB—HE_E-__F#HEHA=1+—H
37,500 HK$0.800 1 June 2014 to 31 May 2022

0.8007 7T —E-NEANB—HE_E-__F#HEHA=1+—H
112,500 HK$0.800 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2022

0.8007 7T TE-REANB—HE_E-__F#HEHA=1+—H
305,000 HK$1.000 1 June 2012 to 31 May 2022

1.00078 7T T E-—_FEXB—HE_E-__F#HEHA=1+—H
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES B (B)
(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BRARAZEEFBERESNS (&
(continued)

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
B ESE BRITEE 171EHA
657,000 HK$1.000 1 June 2013 to 31 May 2022

1.00078 70 TE-—=FXNB—RE_Z__F#HEA=+—H
725,000 HK$1.000 1 June 2014 to 31 May 2022

1.00078 7T _E-NMEAB—RHE_E__FHAHA=+—H
725,000 HK$1.000 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2022

1.00078 7T —HFRA—RHE_ZE__F#HA=1+—H
75,000 HK$1.200 1 June 2013 to 31 May 2022

1.20078 70 TE-—=FANB—RE_Z__F#HEA=+—H
212,500 HK$1.200 1 June 2014 to 31 May 2022

1.20078 70 —E-NEAB—HE_ZE-_"_FHEA=1+—H
212,500 HK$1.200 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2022

1.20078 7T —HFRNA—RHE_ZE__F#HA=1+—H
140,000 HK$1.400 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2022

1.40078 7T —HFRNA—RHE_ZE__F#HA=1+—H
30,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2012 to 31 May 2022

1.60078 70 TE-—TEXB—HE_ZE_"_FHEA=+—H
80,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2013 to 31 May 2022

1.60078 70 B CEXB—HE_ZE_"_FFHA=+—H
80,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2014 to 31 May 2022

1.60078 7T —_E-NEAB—HE_E__FHH=1+—H
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BB REE (&
(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BRAMBEFBRESS &)
(continued)

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
EBREHE BRITEE 1T{EHA
80,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2022

1.60078 7T TE-AHFEANB—HE_E__F#HRA=+—H
140,000 HK$1.800 1 June 2012 to 31 May 2022

1.80078 7T T E-THFRAREE__FRB=+—H
400,000 HK$1.800 1 June 2013 to 31 May 2022

1.80078 7T T =FEARB—HEIZ-HFHA=1+—H
400,000 HK$1.800 1 June 2014 to 31 May 2022

1.80078 7T —E-NEAB—HE_E__FHRA=1+—H
400,000 HK$1.800 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2022

1.80078 7T TE-HFEANB—HE_E__F#HRA=1+—H
367,500 HK$2.000 1 June 2014 to 31 May 2022

2.00078 7T —E-MOFEXB—REZZEFHEB=+—H
622,500 HK$2.000 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2022

2.000% 7T TE-HFEANB—HE_E__F#HRA=1+—H
5,942,000
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

The 80,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 80,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$8,000
(equivalent to RMB6,000) and share premium of
HK$8,000 (equivalent to RMB6,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options for the subscription
of 5,942,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.44%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding Pre-
IPO Share Options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of
5,942,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$594,000 (equivalent
to RMB493,000) and share premium of HK$6,488,000
(equivalent to RMB5,381,000), before related issuance
expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 5,692,000 share options outstanding
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 0.42% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)
Share Option Schemes

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“2010 Share Option Scheme”) which was approved
and adopted by the written resolutions of all the
shareholders of the Company passed on 14 October
2010 (as amended at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on 18 May 2018) for the purpose
of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Group and for such other
purposes as the board of directors may approve from
time to time. Eligible persons of the Scheme include
any director or employee (whether full time or part time),
consultant or advisor of the Group who, in the sole
discretion of the board of directors, has contributed to
or will contribute to the Group. The 2010 Share Option
Scheme expired on 13 October 2020.

The Company operates a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) which was
approved and adopted by the written resolutions of
all the shareholders of the Company passed on 30
October 2020 for the purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to eligible persons for their contribution to
or potential contribution to the Group and to enable the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group,
and for such other purposes as the board of directors
may approve from time to time. Eligible persons of the
Scheme include any executive or non-executive director
including any independent non-executive director or
any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any
member of the Group, any trustee of a trust (whether
family, discretionary or otherwise) whose beneficiaries
or objects include any employee or business associate
of the Group, any adviser or consultant (in the areas of
legal, technical, financial or corporate management) to
the Group, any provider of goods and/or services to the
Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion,
has contributed to the Group.

31 December 2021
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

The 2010 Share Option Scheme and New Share
Option Scheme are available to the directors and
employees (whether full time or part time) of any
member of the Group.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and reporting
requirements.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the 2010
Share Option Scheme, the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes, must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the 2010 Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting and certain
disclosure and reporting requirements.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

The subscription price of share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
() the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company. A consideration of
RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of an
option or options.

After 13 October 2020, no further options will be
granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme.
However, the provisions of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options,
which were granted during the life of the 2010 Share
Option Scheme, and may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

The New Share Option Scheme became effective
on 30 October 2020, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
date of adoption of the New Share Option Scheme by
shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.

31 December 2021
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BB EEE (BB
(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued) iR (&
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to R mA TR A AR UZER
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. BEHNREAE LRE-
The following share options were outstanding under the T A5 M2010F A s 8 S ig e i st
2010 Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option 2B BB RITEREAGHE

Scheme during the year:

2021 2020
5§ “EIFF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

IR T
1fEE BBREHE 718 fElEHE

HK$ HKS
per share ’000 per share '000
SHT Fit SRAET T
At 1 January K—B—H 1.27 38,080 1.28 43,227
Granted during the year FREH 0.82 20,450 0.67 4,050
Exercised during the year ERFTH 1.02 (130) - -
Lapsed during the year FREH - - 0.93 (3,517)
Forfeited during the year FRRI 1.30 (5,370) 1.14 (5,680)
At 31 December K+ZBE=+—H 1.09 53,030 1.27 38,080
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31.BBRGHEETE (A&

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued) BRREE (&)

Movements in the Company’s share options under the FR2010F BT 8 R BRETEIIE T
2010 Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option KACIRERGRE 2 SBIUIT

Scheme during the year are as follows:

Number of share options
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of SREHRY 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
B
|3 8- SRERERL
23§ +2B Bl BhkiE Bk AR
-B-A ERIEY  EARE FARK =t-B RHiBE fifes ke HEH it 2iE
HKS per
share
&hiEn
Directors i
Mr.Cao Yidong Aan BT E 300,000 - - - 300,000 22 November 1 December 1020 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1020
2016 201710 exercisable at any time on o after 1 December 2017;
ZE-RE 21 November | EERREGHZ=HZ-IR-F-tE+ZA-HIZ
t-B 2026 SBEFRENE,
sy ZEtE
+ZA-B% (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
ZEINE exercisable at any fime on or after 1 December 2018; and
+-A i) EERRELHZ=HZ-IR_F-NE+ZF-HAZ
—t+-A BERBRRGE; &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 December
2019,
i) EEEREEIZBT=AZ-AR_F-NE+E-H
HEEABEATE
M. Cao Yixong Aln ~~ BTRELE 200,000 - - - 200000 19y 2019 1 August 2020 1280 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0610
It o to 18 July exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2020;
tA+nA 2029 | EEBREGHZ=HZ-IR-F_FE\A-BHE
5%k AARERITE;
NA-BE
Sy -3 (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are

tB+NB exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2021; and
BERRERUZ=22-TR_F_-F)\A-BHak
AREEAGE; &

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2022.

i) EEBRREHZAT=H2-TR -2 _E\A-AY
ZBAAREAGE:
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BB tEEtE (&)

(continueqd)
- - = ==
Share Option Schemes (continued) fRAGERTE (B)
Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEHAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
|3 B -f SRERERY
St +2B Bk ik Bl A#AEAT
-B-B FRIEY  EATE FRRK Zt-B KHAE s ke HES it 2mE
HKS per
share
8kin
Directors (confineg) % (5
Mr.Cao Yidong Aan BTl 4E 300,000 - - - 300,000 3Aprl2020 16 Aprl 2021 0600 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0480
Z3I%E 102 Apil exercisable at any time o or after 16 April 2021;
BA=A 2030 (| EEEREAE=57-IR_E_-EMB+RANZ
S BRREBAGE,
ME+75BE
CECRE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
mAZH exercisable at any time on or after 16 Aprl 2022; and
i) EERRELHZ=HZ-IR-F__EMA+ARTZ
BEARERGE; R
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 April 2023.
i) ERBRELHZETZNZ IR _E_ZEMATHA
BAMBEAGE
Mr, Lau Chi Kit i 300,000 - - - 300,000 22 November 1 December 1020 () Onehird of the total number of the share options granted are 1020
2016 201710 exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2017;
ZZ-RE 21 Noember (| EEERELHZ=H7-TN_F-tE+TZR-HAZ
+-A 2% BENREATE;
I o R ]
+ZB-B% (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
CETRE exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2018; and
B [ ERBRESH=A7-TR_F-\E+ZA-BEZ
Z+-8 BERBERGE, R

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 December
2019,

i) EERRELHZBT=AZ-IR_F-NE+_E-H
FZBABEAGE
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2 —F+"A=+—H

(continueqd)
- - A S = —
Share Option Schemes (continued) fRAgERTE (B)
Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEMAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
S B -f SRERERL
St +2B Bk ki Bk REAEAT
-B-B EFRIEY  EARE FARK 1B RHiBH e ke HES it 2iE
HKS per
share
ShiEn
Directors (contined) &% (8
Mr. Lau Chi Kit poikd 200,000 - - - 200,000 19July 2019 1 August 2020 1.280 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0610
ZZNE to 18 July exercisable at any time on o after 1 August 2020;
tA+hA 2029 () ERBRESHz=A7-UR_F_REN\F-AYZE
-3 AEEERTE;
N\B-BZ
“ETRE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
tA+NE exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2021; and
i) EERREEHZ=HZ-IR_F_-F\F-HH2%
AREEAGE; &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
qranted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2022.
i) ERBRELHNZ BTN AN "2 E\B-BY
ZBEAREAGE:
M. Lau Chi Kit Pk 300,000 - - - 300000  3Api2020 16 Apr 2021 0600 () Onethird of the total number of the share options granted are 0480
ZZTEER 102 Aprl exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apri 2021;
A=R 2030 (| EEERELHZ=H7-TIN_F_-EMB+AEAZ
It et BEARERGE;
TA+/EE
- (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are

B_H exercisable at any ime on or after 16 April 2022; and
ERERELH =27 TR _F2ERMA+HARRZ
BERRERGE, R

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 April 2023.

i) BERRELHZBT=AZ-AR-F_ZFMA+/H
S EERBARGR.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BB tEEtE (&)

(continueqd)
- - A ==
Share Option Schemes (continued) fRAGERTE (B)
Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEHAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
|3 B -f SRERERY
St +2B Bk ik Bl A#AEAT
-B-B FRIEY  EATE FRRK Zt-B KHAE s ke HES it 2mE
HKS per
share
8kin
Directors (confineg) % (5
Ms. Yin Haiyan PERt 150,000 - - - 150,000 22 November 1 December 1020 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1.020
2016 01710 exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2017;
ZZ-RE 21 November i EEBREAE=H7-TR_E-tE+R-RFZ
1t-B 2026 RERRERGE;
ZtZ8 It
+2A-B% (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
ZETRE exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2018; and
+-A i) EERRELHZ=HZ-IR-F-NE+ZR-HAZ
Z+-8 BEARERGE; R
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 December
2019.
i) EEERREHZET=AZ-AR_F-NE+E-H
HZBAMEEAGE
Ms. Yin Haiyan PERst 150,000 - - - 150000 4 December 16 December 1442 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1430
2017 201810 exercisable at any ime on or after 16 December 2018;
ZZ-tE 3 December i EEEREAE=H7-IR_E-\E+A15ER
+ZEmA 2027 LEERRERGE;
3-)\%
+ZA+5E (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are

FCEtE exercisable at any time on or after 16 December 2019; and
A=A i) BERRELHZ=HZ-IR-F-AETZAARY
ZEEARBAGE &

The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 December
2020.

i) EEBREAHZET=NZ-AN_BEEL2AR
EEPA Gl
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

2 —F+"A=+—H

31.fEieiEst 8 (@)

RERRTESHE (BB

Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEMAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
S B -f SRERERL
St +2B Bk ki Bk REAEAT
-B-B EFRIEY  EARE FARK 1B RHiBH e ke HES it 2iE
HKS per
share
ShiEn
Directors (contined) &% (8
Ms. Yin Haiyan ERLL 900,000 - - - 900,000 19 July 2019 1 August 1.280 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0610
-0 F3 202010 exercisable at any time on o after 1 August 2020;
tATAE  18Uuy 2029 i EEEREAE=57-TN_E_RE)\B-Agzk
-3 AEEERTE;
N\B-BZ
“ETRE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
tA+NE exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2021; and
i) EERREEHZ=HZ-IR_F_-F\F-HH2%
AREEAGE; &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
qranted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2022.
i) ERBRELHNZ BTN AN "2 E\B-BY
ZBEAREAGE:
Ms. Yin Haiyan ERLL 300,000 - - - 300,000 3 April 2020 16 Apr 0600 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0480
Z3I%E 202110 exercisable at any fime on or after 16 Apr 2021;
S 24pd 2080 (| EEERESHZZH-IN_EC-EMA+RALNLZ
Z5I-E BERBRAGER,
MA+7AE
- (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
mAZH exercisable at any time on or after 16 April 2022; and
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EERRRSH =22 -TR-F_ZEMATRANLZ
SEABRNTE, R

(i

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 April 2023.

i) BERRELHZBT=AZ-AR-F_ZFMA+/H
S EERBARGR.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

31.fgfieiEst 8 (@)

RERRTESHE (BB

Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEHAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
|3 B -f SRERERY
St +2B Bk ik Bl A#AEAT
-B-B FRIEY  EATE FRRK Zt-B KHAE s ke HES it 2mE
HKS per
share
8kin
Directors (confineg) % (5
M. Yin Haiyan PERLE - 1,000000 - - 1000000 13 Janvary 16 January 0560 () Onefith of the total number of the share options grnted are 0560
2021 202210 exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2022;
It S 12 January i EEBREAE ERZ-AR_E_"E-BRANZ
-Bt=H 203t SEFRENTE,
-3
—B+/EE (i) One-fith of the total number of the share options granted are
ZE=-E£ exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2023;
-At+ZA i) EERRELHZENZ-AR_F_ZE-FtrAAZ
GEFRERE,
(i) One-fith of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any ime on o after 16 January 2024;
i) BEEREEHZIH2-TR_F_ME-F+AEAZ
BEFARERGE;
(i) One-fith of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2025; and
() EEERELEZANZ-AR-EIRE-F1ARZ
BERREAGE; &
(v) The remaining one-fth of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any fime on or after 16 January 2026,
() BEBREAEZETIN-TR_BIRE-A+5RA
S EERRARGR.
3,100,000 1,000,000 - - 4100000
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

31 December 2021
—E—F+ZA=t+—H

31.fEieiEst 8 (@)

RERRTESHE (BB

Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEMAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
S B -f SRERERL
St +2B Bk ki Bk REAEAT
-B-B EFRIEY  EARE FARK 1B RHiBH e ke HES it 2iE
HKS per
share
ShiEn
Other employees RftER Az
in aggregate
5,330,000 - (130,000) (170,000) 5,030,000 22 Novernber 1 December 1020 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1.020
2016 201710 exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2017;
ZE-RE 21 November (| EERREEHZZHZ-IR-F-tE+ZR-HIZ
+-B 2026 GEFRERE,
ZtIR IE-tE
+ZA-BE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
ZEIRE exercisable at any time on or after 1 Decernber 2018; and
+-B () ERBRESHZZHZ-TR_E-\E+ZA-BEZ
~+-A BEFARERGE; R
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 December
2019,
i) EEEREAHZ BTN -TIR_B-NEFZA-H
2 BAAEEATE
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 16 May 2017 1 June 2018 182 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1,840
ZE-tE to 15 May exercisable at any ime on or after 1 June 2018,
TA+RA 2027 (| EERREEHZ=HZ-IR-F-NERR-BIZE
ZB-)\E AARERITE;
~A-BE
“ECtE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
BATEA exercisable at any time on or after 1 June 2019; and

BRERRAN=NZ-IRF-NERR-RHZE
AFABEATE &

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 June 2020.

i) EEBREEHZET=NZ-AN_B_EERA-AY
ZBEAREAGE:
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

31.fgfieiEst 8 (@)

RERRTESHE (BB

Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEHAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
|3 B -f SRERERY
St +2B Bk ik Bl A#AEAT
-B-B FRIEY  EATE FRRK Zt-B KHAE s ke HES it 2mE
HKS per
share
8kin
Other employees RftEa A
in aggregate &
(confinued)
2,350,000 - - (250,000) 2,100,000 25 May 2017 1 June 2018 1760 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1,690
ZE-tE to0 24 May exercisable at any fime on or after 1 June 2018,
1AZ+EA 2007 (| EERREEHZ=HZ-IR-F-NERR-BIZE
“E-N\E ARBRATE;
~A-BE
“ECtE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
AAZ+EA exercisable at any time on or after 1June 2019; and
() ERBRESNZZH-IR_E-NERR-BAZE
AEEENGE; &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 June 2020.
i) EEBRELHZ BTN AN EERA-RY
ZEEARERGE
4,950,000 - - (900,000) 4,050,000 4 December 16 December 1442 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1430
2017 201810 exercisable at any ime on or after 16 December 2018;
ZE-tE 3 December i EEEREAE=H7-IR_E-\E+A15ER
+ZEmA 2027 LEERRERGE;
3-)\%
+ZA+5E (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
FCEtE exercisable at any time on or after 16 December 2019; and
A=A i) BERRELHZ=HZ-IR-F-AETZAARY
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ZREMBERGR &

2020.

i) EEERREHZBT=AZ-AR_F_BE+IRR

Az & ARBERE:

The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 December
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

31 December 2021
—E—F+ZA=t+—H

31.fEieiEst 8 (@)

RERRTESHE (BB

Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEMAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
S B -f SRERERL
St +2B Bk ki Bk REAEAT
-B-B EFRIEY  EARE FARK 1B RHiBH e ke HES it 2iE
HKS per
share
ShiEn
Other employees RftEEAs
in aggregate &
(confinued)
18,600,000 - - (3,300,000 15,300,000 19 July 2019 1 August 1280 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0610
ZZ-pE 2010 exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2020;
tBthE 18 July (| ERBRESHZZHZ-IR-F_FEN\B-BAZE
229 HARERITE;
2
NA—HE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
ZEIpE exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2021; and
tB+/A () ERBRESHZZH-IR"ET-E\B-BaK
AREEAGE; &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
qranted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2022.
i) EEERREHZBT=AZ-AR_F_EN\B-BY
ZEEARERGE.
1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000  3Api2020 16 Apri 2021 0600 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0480
Z3I%E 102 Apil exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apr 2021;
BA=R 2030 () ERBRESH=A7-TR_F_-EMA+ARNZ
25 BREEERAGE,
Bt7BE
TECRE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are

mAZH exercisable at any fime on or after 16 April 2022; and
i) EERRELHZ=HZ-IR-F__EMA+AATZ
BERERRGE, R

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 April 2023.

i) ERBRELHZET=NZ IR "2 ZEMATHA
FZBATBEATE
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

31.fBfeEstE (&

RERRTESHE (BB

Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEHAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
|3 B -f SRERERY
St +2B Bk ik Bl A#AEAT
-B-B FRIEY  EATE FRRK Zt-B KHAE s ke HES it 2mE
HKS per
share
8kin
Other employees RftEa A
in aggregate &
(confinued)
450,000 - - (450,000) - 14y 2020 16 July 2021 1280 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0480
“EC%E to0 18 July exercisable at any fime on or after 16 July 2021;
Ryl 2030 (| ERBRESYHZ=HZ-IR-F_-ECAtRANL
o5& GEFRERE,
tATARE
ZE-%E (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
tA+=H exercisable at any time on or after 16 July 2022; and
i) EERRELHZ=H2-IR_F_ZEtE+ARAZ
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REARERGE; R

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 July 2023.

i) EEERREHZBT=AZ-AR_F_ZELA+AH
HZBAMEEAGE



Notes to Financial Statements BAF83R =R MizE

31 December 2021

—_E_—-F+”"B=+—H
LBl ()
31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 1. B REEE (&
(continueqd)
H ; 7L 25 <. =1
Share Option Schemes (continued) BRREE (&)
Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEMAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
S B -f SRERERL
St +2B Bk ki Bk REAEAT
-B-B EFRIEY  EARE FARK 1B RHiBH e ke HES it 2iE
HKS per
share
ShET
Other employees RftEEAs
in aggregate &
(confinued)
- 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 13 January 16 January 0560 () Oneifth of the total number of the share options granted are 0560
2021 20210 exercisable at any fime on or after 16 January 2022;
-k 12 January (| ERBRESHZENZ-IR-F__E-BHiRALZ
-B+=H 2081 GEFRERE,
St
-B+ABEE (i) One-fth of the total number of the shere options granted are
25 exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2023;
-At+Z8 i) EERRELHZENZ-IR_F_ZE-FtrEAZ
BEARERGE;

(i) One-fith of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2024;

i) EEERELHZ N2 -IN_S_ME-F+rHHZ
BERBRAGER,

() One-fith of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2025; and

() EEEREAE BHZ-IN_E_RE-BIRANZ
BEARERGE; R

(v} The remaining one-fih of the total number of the share options

granted are exercisable at any fime on or after 16 January 2026.

() ERBRESHZETINZ-AREAE-AiA
A REANEATE
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31.BBRGHEETE (A&

(continueqd)
- - A ==
Share Option Schemes (continued) fRAGERTE (B)
Number of share options
BhRiEsE
Closing price
of the shares
of the
Company
immediately
Date of Exercise Exercise before the
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant period price of date on
category of 2EEHAT 1 January during during during 31 December of share of share share which options
participant 25 2021 the year the year the year 2021 options options options  Vesting period were granted
®
|3 B -f SRERERY
St +2B Bk ik Bl A#AEAT
-B-B FRIEY  EATE FRRK Zt-B KHAE s ke HES it 2mE
HKS per
share
8kin
Other employees RftEa A
in aggregate &
(confinued)
- 15450,000 - (300,0000 15,150,000 2 September 16 September 0910 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0840
2021 20210 exercisable at any time on or after 16 July 2021;
ZEC-F 1 September () ERBRESHZ=H7-UR_FI-ELA+ABIZ
nBZA 2081 GEFRERE,
—m——
NATARE fi) One-thrd of the total number of the share options granted are

Z5c-& exercisable at any time on or after 16 July 2022; and
) EREREGHZ =N -IR-E-"ELATRALZ
BEARERGE; R

=
T
m

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 July 2023.

i) EEBRELHZET=NZ-AN_E_ZELATAA
HZBAMEEAGE

34,980,000 19,450,000 (130,000 (5:370,000) 48,930,000

3B0B0000 20450000 (130000  (5370000) 53,030,000
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(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

A\

Notes to Financial Statements BAF83R =R MizE

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

JEiRESE (B

RERRIESHE (&

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share N TR —F+ R =+—HHEXTENE
options outstanding at 31 December 2021 are as AR TIEERATERRI T -
follows:

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREHE SRITHEE 1T1EHR
5,780,000 HK$1.020 1 December 2017 to 21 November 2026

1.020% 7T E—t+tFE+ " B—HE_E-E+—B-+—H
1,500,000 HK$1.822 1 June 2018 to 15 May 2027

1.822% 7T —E-N\EXB—HE_ZEZ_tFHRA+HH
2,100,000 HK$1.760 1 June 2018 to 24 May 2027

1,760 7T —E-N\ERB—HEZE_ttHFHERA"+HTH
4,200,000 HK$1.442 16 December 2018 to 3 December 2027

1.442%7T S —NEFE+_B+AHE_ZE-_tH+"8=H
16,600,000 HK$1.280 1 August 2020 to 18 July 2029

1.2807% 7T —EIEFNB—HEZZZAFEE+/\H
2,700,000 HK$0.600 16 April 2021 to 2 April 2030

0.6007 7T —EI—FOB+SRAHEZIZ=ZFMATH
5,000,000 HK$0.560 16 January 2022 to 12 January 2031

0.5607 7T BT F—HB+ANHEZZE=—%—B+ZH
15,150,000 HK$0.910 16 September 2022 to 1 September 2031

0.9107 7T —EC_EFAB+AHEE=—FHAB—H
53,030,000
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31.BBIGHEETE) (B)

(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

On 13 January 2021, 5,000,000 share options under
the New Share Option Scheme were granted to 5
employees of the Group. The fair value of these options
was HK$944,000 (equivalent to RMB787,000), of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$416,000 (equivalent to RMB347,000) in the current
year.

On 2 September 2021, 15,450,000 share options
under the New Share Option Scheme were granted
to 68 employees of the Group. The fair value of
these options was HK$7,934,000 (equivalent to
RMB6,590,000), of which the Group recognised a
share option expense of HK$2,211,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,837,000) in the current year.

The fair value of the share options granted under the
New Share Option Scheme was estimated as at the
date of grant by management, using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:

RERRESTE (&

AT —F—A+=H RERERET
£ 5,000,000 BB EE M AERESHES
R - ZEEIREN A AEEA944,000/87T

FEER ARKE787,0007T) » B AEEED
TR A ERERR B IR R S2416,00078 7T (IBE
7 A B2 #5347,0007T) ©

RIEZ—FNAZH REmERES
2> 15,450,00017 FE Ig i B M A £ E68%4 2
B - EEREN R NEEA7,934,000
Bt FEER ARK6,590,0007T) » &/ 48
EBE R AFEEERERERSZ2,211,0008
7t FEE R AR #1,837,0007T) ©

IRIEH B RET B REHBRENANEE
Rz BAVE SRR A TR A EE
& 58 4% tH P R 1 T AR 38R B AR TR B A6 4 T
EITEET o TREYIIRAZERRFRANE
i}

Grant date EHBH 2 September 13 January

2021 2021

-5 %

hBZ=H —B+=H

Exercise price (HK$ per share) T1EE (ERET) 0.910 0.560

Expected dividend yield (%) FEH AR B (%) - -

Expected volatility (%) TEHA R 18 (%) 58.13 49.18

Risk-free interest rate (%) 1 [ B 1) 22 (%) 1.34 0.81

Expected life of share options (years) TEHRBE AR RERV SR HR (5) 10 10
Weighted average share price PR H HEAR IR E

at grant date (HK$ per share) (BB IT) 0.910 0.560
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

The expected life of the share options is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility may not necessarily reflect the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

The 130,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 130,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$13,000
(equivalent to RMB11,000) and share premium of
HK$120,000 (equivalent to RMB100,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had outstanding share options for the subscription
of 53,030,000 shares under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 3.91% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at that date. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 53,030,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$5,303,000
(equivalent to RMB4,398,000) and share premium of
HK$52,533,000 (equivalent to RMB43,567,000), before
related issuance expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 51,380,000 share options
outstanding under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and
the New Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 3.78% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

1. 8Bk#EstE (&

RERR ST (&

BRENTRRATHRSEEEENTTE
RIVHVIEIR - FREAR I8 AR — TE R BRE R4S
o

BRI S MR A S
BHET R

FRERITHE130,00017 B RE BB 21T
130,000 XA B Z @B > UK EBINR K
13,0007 7t (FHE 7 AR 111,0007T) K A&1H
#18120,0007%8 7T B EH A K #100,0007T) ©

RRERFR > AR BB RITEERE 7
B0 B IR 5T 8 R FT B IS RE st 21 1B
T53,030,0008 8% 17 > HHE R A RBINE
MEEITIRALZ.91% RIS ATWIRA
BARARE 2ETERTEEREGER
#%1753,030,0008% A=~ B EASME 3B ARG 15
R B9NI& 755,303,000 7T FEE R AR
4,398,0007T) K A%1% im1E52,533,0007E 7T (12
B A\R143,567,0007T) (OFRMEREZE1TRD
SZAl) o

RZEVHRREA B RIF2010F 5
RSB RMBRIESS AREHER
51,380,00017 RITEfERE  HER T AT
RE BB #1TIRAL3.78%
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31 December 2021
—E--—#+-H=+-0H

32.RESERVES 32.# &

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity in the financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the capital
contributions by Dr. DONG Li, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to the subsidiaries directly
held by Dr. DONG Li before the group reorganisation
on 8 June 2010 and, in the case of an acquisition
of an additional equity interest in a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary, the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the non-controlling interests acquired.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax to the reserve fund until this
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
PRC subsidiaries. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the reserve
fund may be converted to increase paid-up capital/
issued capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less
than 25% of the registered capital. The reserve fund of
the PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB183,520,000
and RMB170,838,000 as at 31 December 2021 and
2020, respectively.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of companies outside the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4.
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32.RESERVES (continued)
Share option reserve

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and
the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 31 to the financial statements.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the fair value
differences arising from the revaluation for the
equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income and debt investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

33.NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of RMB17,089,000 (2020: RMB547,000)
and RMB17,089,000 (2020: RMB547,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
property, machinery and other equipment.

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

32.(H#1E &
B IR A
BREAKABNBEIESTE MRt 81517
BERSHESYIS » U A TSR RMIEES o
ARBEEE
NAEEHEEREEGHIEERANEEE
st AEMEEWNGENER TR E MIETER

ARBEZFFAHMEER@EINERRE
R REEETRERM

3B.iFREEMERME

(@) EBFHRERSH

TR REBMYE KB REMEE
HMEZHzFAREEREESEN
IERERE D HIA ARE17,089,0007T

— T ZF 1 ARHEB47,0007T) KA
R #617,080,00070 (CET4HE : ARHE
547,0007T) ©
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31 December 2021
—E--—#+-H=+-0H

33.NOTES TO THE B.ixeHERERME B)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continueqd)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MEEFEBELEZEEEH
financing activities
2021 B4
Bank and Lease
other loans liabilities
R1Tk
Hh &M HEAR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT AR®ETT

At 1 January 2021 R-E-—F—5—1 2,303,284 11,131
Changes from financing cash flows RiEIR& M= EE) 109,330 (8,975)
Waived by the bank EIRTTEH R (3,856) -
New leases miEE - 17,089
Foreign exchange movement CAN ) (36,552) (725)
Interest expense A ERX - 1,980
Revision of a lease term arising =R NEIE E= R i p= )

from a change in the non- Fri& A PO FE HBIERT

cancellable period of a lease - (32
At 31 December 2021 W& _—F

+-_B=+—H 2,372,206 20,468
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31 December 2021

B2 —F#+"H=+—H

33.NOTES TO THE .ixEIREMEBRMEE (&
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continueqd)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MMEEBELX ZEEEH
financing activities (continued) (#)
2020 T
Bank and Lease
other loans liabilities
RITR
HEm HESE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREF T
At 1 January 2020 NZE-ZEFE—H—H 2,306,186 19,426
Changes from financing cash flows B#& IR 57 = £ 78,205 (8,408)
New leases MHEE - 547
Foreign exchange movement CANE L) (81,107) (502)
Interest expense MERX - 958
Revision of a lease term arising HER O HEE AR &S
from a change in the non- P3G AL O FE BRIE 5T
cancellable period of a lease - (890)
At 31 December 2020 RITE_ZF
+-A=+—H 2,303,284 11,131
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31 December 2021
E—H+°"HA=+—H

33.NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow/(inflow) for leases included

an | EE kY 1 3 %ipﬁtgi C,‘é'.é%)

(c) HERERHLEE

SARERERZEERERE, (R

in the statement of cash flows is as follows: A) 4ABZBUIS -
2021 2020
—E—F ZEIFHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Within operating activities A ZED 5,108 5,706
Within investing activities STAKEEE 7 (30,563)
Within financing activities FFABEEE) 8,975 8,408
14,090 (16,449
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31 December 2021
2 —F+"A=+—H \

34. EE R \

\
Prepaid Property, \\
land lease plant and Pledged Trade )
payments equipment deposits Inventories receivables Total
it ENT EREk
HERE RikfE EREHER [ HE ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR
(note 16) (note 14) (note 25) (note 20) (note 21)
(fz16) (MzE14) (Hiz£25) (M5£20) (MfzE21)
31 December 2021 —E--E+”A=+-A
Interest-bearing bank FEHTEE
borrowings (note 28) (GEZS) 38,998 800,281 4,269 100,000 365,908 1,309,456
Bills payable (note 26) fEf =% (zt26) - - 440,448 - - 440,448
Issue of letters of credit HHERE - - 157,796 - - 157,796
38,998 800,281 602,513 100,000 365,908 1,907,700
31 December 2020 “ETFE+THAZ+-H
Interest-bearing bank HERITRE
borrowings (note 28) (Hit28) 49,168 628,945 4,394 100,000 178,744 961,251
Bills payable (note 26) S (fae20) - - 387,303 - - 387,303
Issue of letters of credit BHERE - - 69,656 - - 69,656
49,168 628,945 461,353 100,000 178,744 1,418,210
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31 December 2021
E—H+°"HA=+—H

35.COMMITMENTS

(a) The Group had the following capital commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

35. 5

(a) MI|EPR AEBBUTEREE !

2021 2020
—E-—F  C—E-%E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR®ET T
Contracted, but not provided for: B 5T £J1B Sk B :
Land and buildings TR IEF 999 1,613
Capital contribution for IBEARABEES
investments in equity FFAREMEEWE
investments designated MR ERER
at fair value through other KEIE
comprehensive income 22,500 62,500
23,499 64,113
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31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

36.RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

36.FAEANLTR S

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere (@) BPZERBHRFREMM SRR

in these financial statements, the Group had the

S0 AEBEBEALTEFRAUT

following material transactions with related parties FEXH !
during the year:
2021 2020
ZEZ—&F “EIEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B s AR®BTT ARBT T
Purchases of raw materials BRIEATBE R
from related companies (i)
Related companies ETEIREBEAL
owned by Dr. DONG Li and BENREAT
his associates 18,056 31,352
Sales of products to RBEATHEER
related companies (i)
Related companies ETEIREBEALT
owned by Dr. DONG Li and BENREAT
his associates 116,796 79,630
Interest expense to mBEANLTZ T
related parties FERXZ 36(b)(i)
Non-controlling shareholders of ~ HfEBA & Z JEIEA AR
a subsidiary 1,737 1,740
Note: st -

(i) The purchases of raw materials and sales of
products with the related companies were made
according to prices mutually agreed between the
parties on terms not less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate)

independent third parties.

The related party transactions in respect of the
purchases of raw materials and sales of products
above also constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

() HRERRETRMEEEREME
ENRBEARNZRENEREEAER
MENRN MBI E=HRMENES
YE=H WBEE) RHEFERET

LB B R R E R AR
BAEZZIAE LEHRBE DA
SEENAERZRITEMERS

B2 —FFR - B
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31 December 2021
—E--—#+-H=+-0H

36.RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related

36. Fl

BANLRS (&

(b) HERAEANLRREELER !

parties:
Due from related parties Due to related parties
FEEIEA LIS FEfIRREALRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
R CZBI®EF B ZZ°F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARBTRT AR%®Tx ARETR AREBTR
Current: RE
Non-controlling —ERE AR
shareholders of FEERAR SR
a subsidiary 0 - - 94,835 46,898
Related companies EFHTIREBREA
owned by THENBEERE
Dr. DONG Liand
his associates (i 87,677 34,877 28,525 50,706
87,677 34,877 123,360 97,604
Notes: B 5E

(i) As at 31 December 2021, a loan amounting to

(i)

RMB39,000,000 from non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary was unsecured, bore interest rate
at 4.35% per annum and had no fixed terms of
repayment. A loan amounting to RMB47,200,000
from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed
terms of repayment and RMB20,000,000 of the
loan was repaid in January 2022.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all balances
with the related companies owned by Dr. DONG
Li and his associates were traded in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of
repayment.
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36.RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) A rental contract dated 15 February 2019

between the Group and a related company
owned by the spouse of Dr. DONG Li named
Eastern International LLC (“Eastern International”)
to lease a building as the Group’s office and
warehouses commencing 1 January 2019 at a
monthly rent of US$49,900 in 2019 with annual
increment expired on 31 December 2021 and
was not renewed. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had total lease liabilities with this related
company under non-cancellable leases falling due
as follows:

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

6.FIEANLRS (&)

(c) *"EEREFFLNERBEAN—
RIRAZEE A SlEastern International LLC
(TEastern International 1) 2 RERI—IEH
BAaZZE—NFATHREHAMBZ
T—hF—HB—Hi##%49,900% tH
Bii® RFRE HE—BIEFEA
$$%#ﬂ#/\ﬁﬂlﬁfﬁﬁ$ﬂ§§ HER
T2 F+ZA=1+—HEH BX
FEE- R _TE—F+"A=1+—
B AEEEZAEA RN o HiEEE
ENHESBLENT

2021 2020
—E-—5F TETE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRE ARBTT

Lease liabilities included in other BIETEE MBI RIER
payables and accruals — current FESTERTHNEE

BE—RE

= 4,058

- 4,058

Under such rental contract, the minimum lease
payment during the year was RMB4,096,000
(2020: RMB5,141,000). As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s right-of-use assets relating to
such rental contract was nil (31 December 2020:
RMB3,762,000).

The rental contract also constitutes connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

RIBEZBESL FRANREHEENHR
A ANR#84,006,0007c (CZEZEFE A
K 15,141,00070) - ZEZ—F+=
B=1+—H #~&EBHZHEEHNERH
NERESEAS CEZIEF+AH
=+—H : AR3,762,0007T) °

ZAE G TMER L TARRISE14AEFR
FEBIRIERLS ©
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31 December 2021
E—H+°"HA=+—H

36.RELATED PARTY 36.FAEANTRS (&

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Compensation of key management d =£EEFEEEAENME:

personnel of the Group:

2021 2020

—E—F TETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREF T

Basic salaries and other benefits HEAFE REMER 9,571 7,525

Equity-settled share option expenses LU % 4% EHIBE IS RS X 862 1,134

Pension scheme contributions BRIREET B 177 116

10,610 8,775

Further details of directors’ emoluments are BREEMNE 2 E—PHBENTE

included in note 9 to the financial statements. HRFRMIET9
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31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 37.3%#ER 9SS T A
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of HHEERM T ANRSHRNRmEDT
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2021 —E—F
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Financial assets
profit or at fair value through
loss other comprehensive income
NREE
ZEA

Huml AREEEFHHA
THEE Ht2ERzZNZREE

Financial

Mandatorily assets at

designated Debt Equity amortised
as such investments investments cost Total

st Sl

Ee) HEZ
MitiEE BHEE EEURE ERHEE Wzt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETRT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR

Equity investments designated 15 TEHA A BEEE

at fair value through other HAHEM2ENE

comprehensive income MEZERE - - 182,680 - 182,680
Debt investments at NRBEEHA

fair value through other Hith 2 EmURaEH

comprehensive income BEHRKE - 106,349 - - 106,349
Trade receivables BAEWHIE - - - 2725702 2725702
Financial assets included in BPNEIECER

prepayments, other receivables  ELftEIFUE K

and other assets HMEEN

THEE - - - 33,403 33,403

Financial assets at fair value NRBEEHEA

through profit or loss BRalNeREE 67,798 - - - 67,798
Pledged deposits BIEER - - - 602,513 602,513
Cash and cash equivalents RehBeEEBY - - - 349,229 349,229

67,798 106,349 182,680 3,710,847 4,067,674
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31 December 2021
—E--—#+-H=+-0H

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

37. FAER DM ER TR

CATEGORY (continued) (#&)
Financial liabilities EHMER
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or
loss
AREE
BEE A
b=Fnli)
EHaRE
Financial
Mandatorily liabilities at
designated amortised
as such cost Total
RIS &
E=] SHEN
WMLEIEE THERE fst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TT ARETR
Trade and bills payables BSRAFTIER
i REL - 2,319,251 2,319,251
Financial liabilities included in STAEAMBENTIER
other payables and accruals A ERNEHREE - 308,176 308,176
Lease liabilities HEaE - 20,468 20,468
Financial liabilities at fair value NAEEEEH ABTR
through profit or loss NERBaE 851 - 851
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERITEE - 2,372,206 2,372,206
851 5,020,101 5,020,952

—O——— 262 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2021



o W

Notes to Financial Statements BAF83R =R MizE

31 December 2021
—E—F+ZA=t+—H

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 37.#%E5|oHEmM IR

CATEGORY (continued) (#2)
2020 S
Financial assets EHEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Financial assets
profit or at fair value through
loss  other comprehensive income
rAfBE
BEA

By AREEZFHFA

EHEtE HtzEKaNE@REE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated Debt Equity amortised
assuch investments  investments cost Total
g Sl
Gl HEZ
Jalligi=hd RERE EalRE EHEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBTr AREFTR ARETx
Equity investments designated ~ $STEHA A BELEE
at fair value through other SAEMZEEDN
comprehensive income BatRE - - 143,027 - 143,027
Debt investments at NABEZEHA
fair value through other Hi2mlmn
comprehensive income BHRE - 197,128 - - 197,128
Trade receivables B ENIE - - - 2419676 2,419,676
Financial assets included in BPNERESER
prepayments, other receivables  EftIEIZIER
and other assets HtEENEHEE - - - 62,063 62,063
Financial assets at fair value NABEEHA
through profit or loss BalsREE 75,912 - - - 75,912
Pledged deposits BIRHER - - - 461,353 461,353
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEY - - - 387,148 387,148
75,912 197,128 143,027 3,330,240 3,746,307
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31 December 2021
E—H+°"HA=+—H

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

37. FAER DM ER TR

CATEGORY (continued) (#&)
Financial liabilities THAaRE
Financia
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or
loss
NAEE
EEEA
BEH
EHER
Financial
Mandatorily liabilities at
designated amortised
as such cost Total
Eeegl STEM
SNILIETE EHERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTRT ARETET
Trade and bills payables BSRAFTIER
i REL - 2,139,389 2,139,389
Financial liabilities included in STAEAMBENTIER
other payables and accruals EERNERERE - 242,152 242,152
Lease liabilities HEaRE - 11,131 11,131
Financial liabilities at fair value NAEEEEH ABTR
through profit or loss NERBaE 2,679 - 2,679
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITEE - 2303284 2,303,284
2,679 4,695,956 4,698,635
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38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals, approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values.

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

. TR TEARBERARD

BEREK

FEESRTANKREERAADBEREER
MBERLT-

BEECHAEREKRIBELEEY BRAT
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38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 38.£RiTEAAAEBEEAR

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
amortised costs which have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair
value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
December 2021 were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss have been estimated
using a market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the
directors to determine comparable public companies
(peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such
as enterprise value to earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (‘EV/EBITDA”)
multiple and price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earnings measure. The
trading multiple is then discounted for considerations
such as illiquidity and size differences between the
comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is
applied to the corresponding earnings measure of
the unlisted equity investments to measure the fair
value. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation technique, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which
are recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.
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38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income have been estimated using the asset-based
approach. The assets of the unlisted company
include cash and cash equivalents, short-term
principal-protected investment and investments in
portfolio companies. Management has assessed
that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
the short-term principal-protected investment and
the liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts
with consideration of the nature and the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The fair values of the
investments in portfolio companies is estimated using
different valuation methodologies according to the
nature of individual investments, such as the trading
price of listed shares, price of recent investments,
market multiples and the discounted cash flow method.

The fair values of debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, which are bills receivable,
have been estimated using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the interest rate yield curve.

31 December 2021
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38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 38.£RITEAABEEAR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEELK (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group invests in other unlisted investments, which AEBGERHEMIE LHRE  ZERET
represent the right to receive the proceeds from future WEAR SR ZE 85 & PRAS RUIBERVER o AN EH
sales of the properties. The Group has estimated the EfEAMmSERGEERTER B LR =
fair values of these unlisted investments by using a ZEBMHAZEFELTREZADBE

market-based valuation technique based on the selling
price of comparable properties.

The Group enters derivative financial instruments AEBERLHFH (FEAEETREYE
with various counterparties, principally financial ZERIER) I TTE SR T R T4 &/l
institutions with good credit ratings. Derivative financial TEEEERMEREZERAEHPES
instruments, including commodity future and options #o

contracts, are based on quoted market prices.
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38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

B.TRMTEARBERARD
BER%R )

NREEER

TR FEESRTANRANEEFERE

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial iR

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

BARIBEENEE

Fair value measurement using

AREESEFMARER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTHE EARITHRR
TERTIZERE WASE WAHE
(B1E) (B2E) (38358) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFIT ARETFIT ARETFT
2021 —EZ-fF
Equity investments designated 5 TEIRA ABEZE)
at fair value through other STAEMEEm G
comprehensive income WEZMRE - - 182,680 182,680
Debt investments at fair value RABEEEHA
through other comprehensive Ht 2 ERER
income BHKRE - 106,349 - 106,349
Financial assets at fair value NABEEBEA
through profit or loss BalEHEE 134 67,664 - 67,798
134 174,013 182,680 356,827
2020 “ECTE
Equity investments designated TR A ABEE
at fair value through other StAEMEEE TR
comprehensive income WERERE - = 143,027 143,027
Debt investments at fair value PNABEEEEA
through other comprehensive Hit2EkEN
income BHKRE - 197,128 - 197,128
Financial assets at fair value RABEEHA
through profit or loss BalEREE 265 67,084 8,563 75,912
265 264,212 151,590 416,067
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38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEEBHk (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RREBEESR (&

Assets measured at fair value (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level
3 during the year are as follows:

BASIBEEBHEE (B)

B.EHMITEANARABERAR

FREIBANBESELIUWT !

2021 2020

B % TEISF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

At 1 January n—A—a 151,590 173,711

Total gains/(losses) recognised in EREMEEREERZ

other comprehensive income Wiz, (B548) 42%8 8,736 (541)
Total losses recognised in profit or loss B 8% FESE 2 E5 184848 (8,563) (439)
Additions B 40,500 33,262
Disposals HE (9,004) (53,095)
Exchange realignment PE R AR (579) (1,308)
At 31 December R+-—BA=+—H 182,680 151,590
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INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value

31 December 2021
—E—F+ZA=t+—H

B.ERTEANARABERAR

BERE®R #)

AREEER (&)
AR EE B E

Fair value measurement using

AREEFEFMBER

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

inactive  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTBRRE EATITHZ

ERTIERE BARE BARE

(E18) (%27E) (5378 a5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTT ARETT ARET:R

2021 —_EC-F
Financial liabilties at fair value A EEEE ABR
through profit or loss A=V 851 - - 851
2020 _E_EF
Financial liabilies at fair value ~ ARNBEZETAER
through profit or loss HEMaE 2,679 - - 2,679

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1
and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for

both financial assets and financial liabilities.

Y R
B ARBEN ERAEE—BRNE B
Bz BBERE REBAERSBE R
REBARMLE=ER
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39.FINANCIAL RISK 30. Rt EMEIEB N KRR

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings,
and cash and pledged deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market

interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
debt obligations with floating rates.
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39.FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and the
Group’s equity.

(#8)

MERERER (&

TRITEFERBERTE
D AEERA AR AL

BIER A

mR ISR BRUE °

30. Rt EMEIEB N KRR

ERINRIES

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity”
B2 AT L
wm, GEA) s GRd) i G~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT AREEFT
2021 T %
RMB AR 50 (232) -
RMB ARE (50) 232 -
SG$ s IT 50 (105) -
SG$ 0 TT (50) 105 -
uss$ ETT 50 (1,276) -
Us$ ET (50) 1,276 -
MYR ERADRE 50 (15) -
MYR ERADRE (50) 15 -
VND HrEE 50 (20) -
VND HrEE (50) 20 -
2020 T TF
RMB AR 50 (199 -
RMB AR (50) 199 -
SG$ Fn o 50 (144) -
SG$ Fn o (50) 144 -
USs$ E5T 50 2,313) =
USs$ E5T (50) 2,313 =
MYR ERADRTE 50 (24) -
MYR ERADRTH (50) 24 -
VND HrEEE 50 (32) -
VND HrEE (50) 32 -
FEIERB R

Excluding retained profits

2 —FFR - BXERRNERAR
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39.FINANCIAL RISK 30. Rt EMEIEB N KRR

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The Group operates in Hong Kong, the
United States, Singapore, Malaysia and Mainland
China. For companies in Mainland China, their principal
activities are transacted in RMB. For other companies
outside of Mainland China, their principal activities are
transacted in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Approximately 38% (2020: 34%) of the
Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units
making the sales, whilst approximately 62% (2020:
66%) of costs were denominated in the units’ functional
currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities) and the Group’s equity.
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30. R EMEIERN KRR
(%)

39.FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

s (4

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity”
EX a0z F L
L3R (FE) 8 GRd)  Em, GRd)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AREFT ARBTT

2021 ZEZI-fF
If RMB weakens against US$ HMARBRETEE 5 2,816 =
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARERETHE (5) (2,816) -
If RMB weakens against HK$ HARERETEE 5 (18,771) -
If RMB strengthens against HK$ HARBRBTHE (5) 18,771 -
If RMB weakens against EUR$ HARBRETEE 5 1,659 -
If RMB strengthens against EUR$ WARBRETHE (5) (1,659) -
2020 “ERF
If RMB weakens against US$ HARBRETEE 5 (32,193) -
If RMB strengthens against US$ HARERETHE () 32,193 -
If RMB weakens against HK$ HMARBRABTEME 5 (19,191) -
If RMB strengthens against HK$ HARBEREBTHE () 19,191 -
If RMB weakens against EUR$ HARBRENTEE 5 156 -
If RMB strengthens against EUR$ HARBRETHE 5) (156) -
* Excluding retained profits * REIFFRLHEH
Credit risk EER
Management has made a detailed analysis of the credit EEEEHIRREANEERBETHED

o MR R D AW BIAEER (A
Hk RiF A E AR EMER RN
REE) MBEER (HithZTERF) R4
EENEER FTARZEERRETISH
ERRRSEBEERERRRF UL K&
EREERBWEHIER It REER
IEEREE LA EK o

risk of different customers and divided the customers
into two classes, i.e., type A customers, which have
good credit ratings or have coverage by letters of
credit or other forms of credit insurance, and type B
customers, which are the other diversified customers.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis, and therefore, the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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39.FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December.

As at 31 December 2021

30. Rt EMEIEB N KRR

(&

EEERE #&)
RABGHORFEFERSH

TRETHN+TZA=+—HEREEREE
HER (EZ2ENBEMAER RIFFEBER
B AR BT e] AR EAth B 5] )
RUENEEERREXREERBRKORFR
PEEZ D48

\_E_—&F+”"HB=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A B
B=0t 2HBEBGEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
FIREE BoREEL RIS N oy @
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®Tr ARETR ARETR AR®ETR
Trade receivables* B R RRE" - - - 2725702 2,725,702
Financial assets included BYNENESER
in prepayments, other Hitt W IERK
receivables and other assets ~ HtEER
THEE 33,403 - - - 33,403
Pledged deposits BIREED 602,513 - - - 602,513
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFEEEY 349,229 - - - 349,229
985,145 - - 2,725,702 3,710,847

—O——— 276 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2021



o W

Notes to Financial Statements BAF83R =R MizE

31 December 2021
—E—F+ZA=t+—H

39.FINANCIAL RISK 0. TR AR EEEHNAREE
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (#)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continueq) BRA R B 1 [ R T K [ B 7 48 (#8)
As at 31 December 2020 N TEIEF+ZHA=1+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12@B T8
FEBE 2 EHEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
H1REER FOPSER B BEAE st

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT AREBTET

Trade receivables* B S REEIE - - - 2419676 2,419,676
Financial assets included SFABAFE
in prepayments, other Hitt W IERK
receivables and other assets HM&EEN
THEE 62,063 - - - 62,063
Pledged deposits BIERER 461,353 - - - 461,353
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 387,148 - - - 387,148
910,564 - - 2,419,676 3,330,240
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * MAEEEBBCA ZETHRETGNE
simplified approach for impairment, information based on SEBFIEMS > BN EEERNE R
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21. 21 EE o
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s AEEBE S ERFIEEENEER MO
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are 21 BRI I IR RMT2 1 EE

disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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39.FINANCIAL RISK 30. Rt EMEIEB N KRR

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank borrowings and lease liabilities. In addition,
banking facilities have been put in place for contingency
purposes.
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39.

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities,

EHEARE
(#Z)

MRENE & EE

EEHYRER

(&

FEBNEREEHNIAN IR SRR

based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as IRAWT -
follows:
Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
DRME 1555 Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®BTRT ARETT
2021 —E-—fF
Lease liabilities HEaRE 6,175 18,537 24,712
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTEIRITEE 1,793,978 642,301 2,436,279
Trade and bills payables B ENTIBRENERE 2,319,251 - 2,319,251
Other payables and accruals HthE A RIERETER 308,176 = 308,176
4,427,580 660,838 5,088,418
Less than 1t05
1 year years Total
DIME 1855 13
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT
2020 .-
Lease liabilities HE&R 7,969 5,590 13,559
Interest-bearing bank borrowings StRIBITEE 1,775,967 610,682 2,386,649
Trade and bills payables B EMTIEREMEZE 2,139,389 - 2,139,389
Other payables and accruals HtENRIBERETER 242,152 - 242,152
4,165,477 616,272 4,781,749
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39.FINANCIAL RISK 30. Rt EMEIEB N KRR

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had certain
interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated in
United States dollars. The interest rates of these
instruments are based on the LIBOR with a tenor of
six months or twelve months, which will cease to be
published after 30 June 2023. Replacement of the
benchmark rates of these instruments from LIBOR to
an RFR has yet to commence but it is expected that
there will be renegotiations of terms in the future. During
the transition, the Group is exposed to the following
risks:

° Parties to the contract may not reach agreement
in a timely manner as any changes to the
contractual terms require the agreement of all
parties to the contract

o Additional time may be needed for the parties
to the contract to reach agreement as they
may renegotiate terms which are not part of the
interest rate benchmark reform (e.g., changing
the credit spread of the bank borrowings due to
changes in credit risk of the Group)

° The existing fallback clause included in the
instruments may not be adequate to facilitate a
transition to a suitable RFR

The Group will continue to monitor the development of
the reform and take proactive measures for a smooth
transition.
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39.FINANCIAL RISK 30. TRt AR EIEH KR BER
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (#&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform MERENE (B
(continued)
The information about financial instruments based on ERIRTTRIZERSBEHAREER B EER]
an interbank offered rate that has yet to transition to an ENEMTENER ST

alternative benchmark rate is as follows:

As at 31 December 2021 nw-E-_—+=-HBA=+—H
Non- Non-
derivative derivative
financial financial
assets - liabilities -  Derivatives
carrying carrying - nominal
value value amount

T T
TMEE- EMAR- TEIR
AREE FREE —-2E%HE
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTR ARBTRT

Interest-bearing bank and SHEBTREMES
other borrowings
- United States dollar LIBOR —%7TLIBOR - 439,924 -
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39.FINANCIAL RISK 30. Rt EMEIEB N KRR

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by total
assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

(&

BAREE

FEBEAEENTRERARFRIERE
R M5 BT R A R BRI B AN EE RS
FHED URRKRRNEBERAZERS

FEBERBEERAREHEEASARE
RAFL A - REEPRB S FRENR
BmRRESEANETHRES A 4
FUHREELRB - BE_ T —FK"F
TEF+RA=+—HLFER BEEEL
WERBEREEF I EEH)

FEBUEEBRILREESR  ZERS
SHRIRTTIEERUEERE - RS HRNE
EBELERNT

2021 2020

—EZ—F “EISEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings HEIRITEE 2,372,206 2,303,284
Total assets BEHEE 9,596,131 9,072,832
Gearing ratio BEEABBLEX 25% 25%
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40.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL

ASSETS

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

As part of its normal business, the Group entered
into a trade receivable factoring arrangement (the
“Factoring Arrangement”) and transferred certain
trade receivables to banks. The Group is exposed to
default risks of the trade debtors after the transfer.
Subsequent to the transfer, the Group did not retain
any rights on the use of the trade receivables, including
the sale, transfer or pledge of the trade receivables to
any other third parties. The original carrying value of
the trade receivables transferred under the Factoring
Arrangement that have not been settled as at 31
December 2021 amounted to RMB365,908,000
(2020: RMB178,744,000). The carrying amount of
the assets that the Group continued to recognise as
at 31 December 2021 was RMB365,908,000 (2020:
RMB178,744,000) and that of the associated liabilities
as at 31 December 2021 was RMB303,376,000
(2020: RMB152,010,000), which were recognised as
collateralised bank advances, secured (note 28).

Financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, the Group factored trade receivables to
a bank on a non-recourse basis for cash. In the
opinion of the Directors, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards associated with the
factored trade receivables. Accordingly, the Group
derecognised the full carrying amount of the trade
receivables factored. The carrying amount of the trade
receivables derecognised as at 31 December 2021 was
RMB85,167,000 (2020: RMB82,838,000).

31 December 2021
—®2-—#+-HB=+-H

40. HRERMEE

REEHRILEDEE RS
BE

EAEREBN D AEEEIILE
%F‘LI&%’RIET%IE?EEF(F*?ﬁiiﬁ}ah) 1

ETEZREWARIBEETIRT  AEEK
TREZEEREZEBANENRR -NE
TEER AEBTEREEREZER
B (BEREAEMB=HHE  EEg
BRESREWEIE NEA#ER -KRZE
T —E+ZB=+—H REZRELZH
EEMERSENE S ERIIENRRE
B4 AR1E365,908,0007T (CEZZF | A
F&178,744,0007T) - R 2 Z—F+ZAH
=B AERSERINEENER
H4 AR 365,908,0007T (ZB_ZF !
ANER1178,744,00070) * MR = —4
+ZA=+—HEMEaENREEAA
E#303,376,000c (ZE-ZEF : AR
152,010,0007t) » W FESR A A IR 9K IR{E
BISRTTEARR (Ff5E28) ©

%ﬁﬁm\iﬁﬁwmﬁnﬁﬁé

REBEE_ZE-_—FKREZEF+A
=t+—HIEFE  AEBERIFERELER—
MIRTREEZENARBUERES EE
RA - RER D BRIEE 5 ENFUIERE A
B> R Kz Bl 3R $558 o (Rl ItE » AREE AR IEE
RREBEEZEWRIBZ 25 REE B 1L

RNEZERHREBER_E-_—F+"H4
=t+—HZREER ARS5,167,0007t (=
TZF . ARE82,838,0007T) ©
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41.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

N RBZHFFARIR

BERANRABRRBREHRZMBRRRZER

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as wr:
follows:
2021 2020
—E—F “ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®ET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZRE 1,731,966 1,939,061
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIRSEEBY 5,368 5,452
Financial assets at fair value through AABEEHF AEEN
profit or loss SRUEE 134 8,828
Total current assets MENEEMEE 5,502 14,280
CURRENT LIABILITIES Bt R=RE
Other payables and accruals HAEARIB R EET &R 403 919
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEE 188,539 192,321
Total current liabilities MENEERE 188,942 193,240
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FEaERE (183,440) (178,960)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BERERTSHEE
LIABILITIES 1,548,526 1,760,101
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIBITEE 251,385 448,750
Net assets BEFE 1,297,141 1,311,351
EQUITY B
Issued capital BEITRAS 116,241 116,224
Reserves (note) R (BIsE) 1,180,900 1,195,127
Total equity HEm4EEa 1,297,141 1,311,351
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41.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL M. AT ZMBRKRRR B
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
Note: BT -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARZHEBENT
Share Share Exchange
premium Shareholders’ option fluctuation Accumulated
account  contribution reserve reserve losses Total
ER XS
R EERR RREE  BRERE E1 Bt at

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTR AR®TT ARETT ARETT AREBTR

At 1 January 2020 RZZ-ZE—-F—H 1,148,909 337,830 34,715 72,861 (383,746) 1,210,569
Gain and total comprehensive EEE U K

income for the year FHENEELE - - - - 94,831 94,831
Exercise of share options fIfbiEmRE 183 - (172) - - 11
Lapse of the share options ~ BE PRI 3% - - (1,410) - 1,410 -
Exchange differences MERIMNEBR

on translation of ERER

foreign operations - - - (87,515) - (87,515)
Final 2019 dividend paid BRHZE—NE

RERE - - - - (24,803) (24,803)

Equity-settled share URREEN

option arrangements BRI - - 2,034 - - 2,034

At 31 December 2020and ~ WZZ_ZF

1 January 2021 +ZB=+-Bk
“ET-F
—HB—H 1,149,092 337,830 35,167 (14,654) (312,308) 1,195,127
Gain and total comprehensive  EEE U E K
income for the year SHEHNGREE - - - - 12,394 12,394
Exercise of share options TR 273 - (167) - - 106
Exchange differences MERIMNEBR
on translation of ERER
foreign operations - - - (29,659) - (29,659)
Equity-settled share DREGEEN
option arrangements BRETY - - 2,932 - - 2,932
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ—fF
+-B=+-H 1,149,365 337,830 37,032 (44,313)  (299,914) 1,180,900
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41.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL M. ERBEZHBHERRER &
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of B EEECEERHMARITENEREN
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, NABE BREFBER T ERERM2.45
as further explained in the accounting policy for share- DD AR TR E S BER P E— T #7
based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. oz ERMBERERTERIEEE
The amount will either be transferred to share premium D RERNTEA EEREE mFEEER
account when the related options are exercised, or be BimAe
transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire.

42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 42 3t HREK
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised ZEMBHREREN T E =B =1+—H
for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2022. EEEOHIEWRRET| o
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial

hFEMBREE

B EETHNEERYBRENATERNBEER
BUBEENFEREE BREAIFEREDE
ZESINT

statements is set out below:

Year ended 31 December

HE+ZAZ=+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
- ZZZ%TF T-hE IZ-N\FE CZT—t&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AREBEFx AR®TRT AREFRT AR®TR
RESULTS ES |
REVENUE Wi 11,303,125 9,631,362 8,362,722 9,544,418 9,465,444
Cost of sales SHERA (0793419) (8443083  (7,347,336)  (3489,308)  (8,302,904)
Gross profit EF 1,509,706 1,188,279 1,015,386 1,065,022 1,162,540
Other income and gains HAA Rz 84,221 108,360 173,784 118,326 94,031
Selling and distribution HERDHERS
expenses (586,076) (481,179) (392,029) (408,667) (367,199)
Administrative expenses  TEEI (306,212) (266,359) (273,530) (269,719) (260,742)
Research and development  FF Al 2
costs (230,446 (172,720) (119,347) (111,005) (143,084)
(Impairment losses)/reversal  £RIEE (RERE) /
of impairment on financial ~ JE{E &[]
assefs (23,761) (20,675) 6,013) (3,266) 7,713
Other expenses Hihpas (102,594) (35,874) (41,717) (35,329) (34,639)
Finance costs B (143,874) (158,180) (197,772) (202,356) (151,788)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX el 191,964 161,652 158,762 142,986 306,832
Income tax expense FremBY (25,235) (23,688) (31,229) (15,846) (35,352)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EEERH 166,729 137,964 127,533 127,140 271,480
Profit for the year UFATEEAEE
attributable to: pehil
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZ 2PN 136,126 123,732 132,586 106,418 242,885
Non-controling interests E| 32 I 30,603 14,232 (5,053) 20,722 28,595
166,729 137,964 127,633 127,140 271,480

—=
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As at 31 December

2L

BE - BRRIFERER

~

®+ZB=+—H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Z¥I-F  IFIEFE IE-AF IE\& IRtF

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTR ARETT AR®Fx ARETR

TOTAL ASSETS BEME 9,596,131 9,072,832 8,671,526 9,032,055 8,625,282

TOTAL LIABILITIES =REEE (6,017,066)  (5,672,896)  (5,397,337)  (5,858,151)  (5,578,594)
NON-CONTROLLING iR

INTERESTS (191,137) (160,310) (156,443) (196,977) (170,078)

3,387,928 3,239,626 3,117,746 2,976,927 2,876,610
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